AggieBuy Contract #
C2020-1460 |
R Texas DIvIsIoN oF
2 - EMERGEMCY MAMAGEMENT

MASTER ORDER
TEXAS DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
AUSTIN, TEXAS

Vendor: Billing Address:

Ameriqual Foods Group LLC DBA Texas Division of Emergency Mgmt-A/P
18200 Highway 41 North ***Do Not Mail Invoices***
Evansville, IN 47725 Email invoices to invoices@tamu.edu
812-867-1444 750 Agronomy Road - Suite 3101

Lana Lis 6000 TAMU

llis@ameriqual.com College Station, TX 77843-6000

This Master Order shall be effective as of October 31, 2019 and pertains to all goods and/or services
covered by TDEM AggieBuy Contract #C2020-1460.

Vendor shall provide goods and/or services as desighated on attached specifications, terms and
conditions as stated in IFB Number 405-EMD-15-B50116 and any addenda thereto, are all made a
part hereof and collectively evidence and constitute TDEM AggieBuy Contract # C2020-1460. This
document is NOT considered as an order to ship from.

1.

Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after acceptance of goods and/or services and
receipt of invoice, whichever is later. Vendor shall submit one copy of an itemized invoice
referencing the AggieBuy Contract number and any departmental issued purchase order
number. Owner will incur no penalty for late payment if payment is made in 30 or fewer days
from receipt of goods or services and an uncontested invoice.

. Freight Terms: FOB Destination, Freight Prepaid and Added

. Changes: Any changes to the Master Order must be made in writing by the Texas A&M

Purchasing Agent as listed below.

Tax Exemption: The State of Texas is exempt from all Federal Excise Taxes. Texas Division of
Emergency Management is exempt from state and municipal sales taxes under Texas Tax
Code, Chapters 151 and 321, et. seq., for all purchases made for the exclusive use of Texas
A&M.

The laws of the State of Texas shall govern this Master Order.

Upon contract completion, any remaining meals will incur storage fees billed on a quarterly
basis.


mailto:llis@ameriqual.com

Fiscal

Year Description Price per Meal
FY20 Prepacked, Shelf-stable Meals $3.77
FY21 Prepacked, Shelf-stable Meals $3.88
FY22 Prepacked, Shelf-stable Meals $4.00
FY23 Prepacked, Shelf-stable Meals $4.12
FY24 Prepacked, Shelf-stable Meals $4.24

ﬁ/] Aruy- ZUZ/& /j’)’?/?/))

Mary Williams, CTPM, C.P.M.
Texas Division of Emergency Management
Director, Procurement Services

979-458-7434

me-williams@tamu.edu

e

L@ﬁa’Lis v

Ameriqual Group

Director of Government Sales
812-452-4309
llis@Amerigual.com
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IF NOT BIDDING
DO NOT RETURN THIS FORM.

Destination of Goods or Services

To Be Determined: Based upon where
the awarded Bidder’'s warehouse would
be located.

FORMAL INVITATION FOR BID

INSTRUCTHONS FOR SUBMISSION OF BIDS:
Bidders must submit sealed bids with the bid opening date
and requisition number below their return address.

Submit Bids to:
Texas Department of Public Safety
ATTN: Karl ), Holdren
IFB #405-EMD-15-B50116

Procurement & Contract Services, MSC 0266

Building A, 1% Floor - 5805 North Lamar Blvd Austin, TX 78752

THIS (FB MAY BE CANCELLED AT ANY TIME

E-MARED BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AS WELL BUT ONLY TO:
Services.branch@dps.texas.gov

****!k%t**%f@s*#NQ?E#*#**@**##**&W

Bids received after the bid due date, as
indicated above, will not be accepted.

405-EMD-15-850116

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
INVITATION FOR BIDS
Revised 8/21/14

BID ISSUE DATE b 8/21/2014
BID DUE/OPENING » 09/22/2014 @4:00pm
{FB NUMBER b 405-EMD-15-B50116

FFAILURE TO SIGN WILL DISQUALIFY BIDSY

S [T/
) 9/19/14

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE DATE

By signing this Bid, Bidder agrees to comply with the Terms &
Conditions of this IFB and cartifies that if a Texas address is
shown as the address of the Bidder, Bidder qualifies as a
Texas Bidder as defined in 34 TAC Rule 20.32(68}.

Bidder's Name should appear on each continuation page of
this Bid, in the block provided in the upper right hand corner
per Section 1.09 of the Terms & Conditions.

BIDDER’S CONTACT INFORMATION

Ameriqual Group LLC

Company Name

18200 HWY 41 N, Evansville, IN 47725

Company Mailing Address

Fifth Third Bank P.O. Box 633031

Cempany Remit Payment to Address
Cincinnati, OH 45263-3030
City, State, and Zip Code

Rashid Hallaway

Printed Name of Representative

rhallaway@amerigual.com
Ermail Address

202.380.5118

Phone Number:

ANIDENTIFICATION NUMBER 15 REQUIRED TO PROCESS PAYMENT FOR GOODS/SERVICES PURCHASED AGAINST CONTRACT
AWARDS. THE FEDERAL EMPLOYERS IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN} WILL BE USED TO ESTABLISH A PAYEE 1D NUMBER;

PLEASE ENTER YOUR FEDERAL EiN: E |:Q]

Each Bidder shall have an EIN prior to receiving payment under any awarded contract, The EIN is required to minimize identity
theft. For information on obtaining an EIN, you may call the IRS at 800-829-4933 or visit the following web site:
CHECK HERE IF YOU ARE A SOLE OWNERSHIP OR PARTNERSHIP: £l

hit:/fwww irs.cov/businesses

PREFERENCES
Sae Section 2.38 of the State of Texas Procurement Manual regarding preferences.

Check below to claim a preference under 34 TAC Rule 20,38

11 Goods produced or offered by a Texas Bidder that is owned nt Texas Vegetation Native to the Region
by a Texas resident service-disabled veteran i Products of persons with mental or physical disabilities
13 Goods produced in Texas or offered by a Texas Bidder that is i1 Bidder’s that meet or exceed air quality standards
not owned by a Texas resident service-disabled veteran o Products and services from economically depressed or blighted areas
1 Agricultural products grown in Texas o Recycled or Reused Computer Equipment of Other Manufacturers
1 Agricultural products offered by a Texas Bidder o Products produced at facilities located on formerly contaminated property
o1 Services offared by a Texas Bidder that is awned by a Texas ©  USA produced supplies, materjals or equipment
resident service-disabled vetaran 0 Rubberized asphait paving material
 Services offered by a Texas Bidder that is not owned by a o Products made of recycled, remanufactured, or environmentally
Texas resident service disabled veteran sensitive materials including recycled steel
o Recycled motor oil and lubricants 0 Energy Efficient Products

11 Foods of Higher Nutritional Value

1




A05-EMD-15-B50116

INVITATION FOR BIDS
Texas Department of Public Safety BID DUE/OPENING: 9/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm
Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Ameriqual Group, LLC

T CLASS: 393 .ITEM: .06 ***#% CLASS: 961 ITEM: 82****% CLASS: 971 ITEM: 81 ~ =

NOTE TO BIDDERS
After the bid opening date, no additional document submissuons shall be allowed.

DESCRIPTION AND PRICING ==~ .0

PURCHASE OF THE FOLLOWING:
The Texas Department of Public Safety (TXDPS), Division of Emergency Management (TDEM) is soliciting Bids in
response to this IFB for Vendor Managed Inventory of Emergency Meals (VMIEM) to supply, warehouse, and ship pre-
packed, shelf-stable meals.

As_outlmed in the specifications, Bidder's cost shall be inclusive of all warehouse and ancillary costs at the successful

Bids shall be submitted on this form. Bidders shall price per unit shown. Unit prices shall govern in the event of
extension errors. if a price gquotation is submitted as part of the Bid, the quotation must be referenced on the Bid

SEE PAGE THREE {3] 0F THE IFB FOR PRE Q,UALIFICATION AND PRICING

The Texas Demrtmeat of public Safetv has :mplemc,med a new web based E- Prccureﬁ ent System (EPS} f?’&ﬁ‘ systam
will allow you to view solicitations, submit responses to solicitation, access and retrieve purchase orders and change
notices or submit invoices for payment. The EPS is an Internet based application and will be available 24 hours a day
seven days a week, Effective 08/02/2014, Vendors must be registered within the EPS in order to receive notifications
about Bid opportumt:es of 1o be issued Purchase Orders [POs), You may accass the system by using the following path.
https:/feprocure. dps.texas.zov/bsoflogindsp

document and 5|gned by the Bldder to establish formal Imkage to the Bid per Section 1.02 of the Terms & Condltlons

IMPORTANT DATES AND INFORMATION

September 4, 2014 10:00 a.m. Optional Pre-Bid Conference located at the TXDPS Headquarters, 5805 N. Lamar, Bldg. A
Lobby Austin, TX 75752.

September 8, 2014 1:00 p.m.  Written questions due via e-mail to the attention of Karl J. Holdren

September 10, 2014 3:00 p.m. Responses to written questions shall be posted to ESBD

Point of Contact

TXDPS Purchaser: Karl ). Holdren

Phone Number: {512} 424-2640

£-Mail: Services.branch@dps.texas.gov

SERVICE PERIOD: Date of award - Through 5 years

SERVICE PERICD WITH OPTIONS D applicable [] Not Applicable

Contract term shall be from the date of award through 5 years with one (1) optional, five (5) year renewal period.
Renewal Option One  Start of second 5 year term through end of second 5 year term.

This IFB consists of the following:

I¥B — Pages ... weecrmennreeen. 123
Attachmant Llstmg Page ............... 24
Attachments A through |- Pages ...  25-67




INVITATION FOR BIDS

Texas Department of Public Safety

405-EMD-

15-B50116

BID DUE/OPENING: 9/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm

Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Amerigual Group, LLC
Coltem oSl 570U Deseription el L QUANTITY | CUNIT ™ | 'UNIT PRICE | . EXTENSION
Cost Ple se_enter Bi f £ f 15' Inclusive of all « " . ,,,
Language | storage and ancillary costs,
p\:;:ﬁ;‘:l 750,000 Meals 750,000 | Lot | 355 = |$2662,500.00
Volume Cost of meals inclusive of all storage and ancillary costs. 1 Each $3.55 $2,662,503.55-
Pricing #2 {750,001 - 1,000,000) meals see addenduni $3 550 000.C0
Volume Cost of meals inclusive of all storage and anclilary costs. 1 Each $3.55 $3.550,003.55-
Pricing #3 {1,000,001 ~ 2,000,000) meals see addendurp$7. 100,000,000
Volume Cost of meals inclusive of all storage and anclllary costs. 1 Each $3.55 $7,100,003.55-
Pricing #4 (2 000 001 3 000 000) meals see addenduin$10,650,000.00
*. o - 'PASS.OR. FAIL PASS FAIL
Bidder shall repty to each requir ment helow hy marking
Q P{? an: g the apphcah!e box “no” ‘response’ to any PASS N F AlL .
uf ;;ers requirement listed below shall disqualify ‘Bidder from
further. mnside_ratiqn.
Bidder shall have the capacity to expand delivery from
1 {750,000} to a maximum guantity of (3,000,000) meals, YES X NO
dependent on available budget. Meals shail be dellvered —— —
and stored at the Bidder’s facility.
Bidder shall have at least ten (10) years of experience
2 providing vendor managed inventory (VMI) services for YES _X NO -
the provision of emergency meals,
3 Bidder shall have provided emergency meals to a YES X NO
minimum of five (5} state and/or federal level disasters. - o
Bidder shall have provided a minimum of five hundred
4 thousand (500,000) meals for a single event to federal, YES _X NO .
state, or local entities under a VMI program.
Bidder has the capabllity to ship one hundred thousand
5 {100,000} meals anywhere in the state of Texas, using YES X NO
the Bidder’s contracted transportation within thirty six — —
{36) hours of official notification from TXDPS/TDEM,
Bidder shall have its own climate controlled warehouse
6 facility capable of storing as a lot, an average of seven VES X NO
hundred fifty thousand (750,000} to three million m— I
{3,000,000) meals purchased hy TXDPS/TDEM,
Bidder shall factor the cost of storage and ancillary
7 sarvice fees into the cost of meals and shall provide an YES X NO o
all-inclusive price for volume pricing items 1-4
All meals shall meet applicable USDA and US
8 Department of Health and Human Services acceptable YES . NO —
nutritional and packaging standards.
9 Each meal r..hall provide a minimum of one thousand YES X NO L
{1,000) calories. B
10 Each meal shall have a minimum shelf life of five {5) YES X NO L
years.
11 All entrées shall Include a self-heating mechanism, YES X NO -
TYDPS/TDEM may request that refrigerated/non X
12 refrigerated trailers be left {dropped) on site for storage YES — NO ——
purposes during activations.




405-EMD-15-B50116
INVITATION FOR BIDS

Texas Department of Public Safety BID DUE/OPENING: 8/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm
Continuation Page VENDOR NAME  Ameriqual Group, LLC
Bidder shali provide storage and ancillary services for
13 the term of the Contract that shall include any meal that YES X NO
has not reached the explration date stamped on the E— -
product.
14 If requasted by TXDPS/TDEM, the awarded Bidder shall YES X NO
dispose of any expired meals at no cost to TXDPS/TDEM. — e
L R "ﬁ:fuﬂy#y;&ni-_isﬂ_uiﬂﬂiix##ﬁ-ﬂ*wMt*ﬂ'#_#'?-ﬂ_ﬂ'?f e e e
Ttem S Descrrpt]on SN s . L K N
* INFDRMATIONAL QUESTIONNAIRE ‘Fallul"e to Cﬂmplete e ok o sk ofe B o ok ke 2k o0 2 ok o o ke ok ok ol o o o ol ol ol ok ok sl o e ok ke o ke Ok ok ke
all questaons below shall be grounds for rejection of Bid)
1 Meals Per Case 12
2 Cases Per pailet 48
3 Pallet Size 40 x 48
4 Gross weight per pallet 864 |bs
5 Pallets per truck 52
6 Can the pallets be stacked? Number of stacked paliets? | 2 high
2 Number of individual meals normally maintained in 1,000,000
inventory
% e ko Ao e ot o A o ROl A o A ok ok ook Insert the Name of your emergency Phone number
contact person below .
8 List 2 24 hour, 7 day a week emergency contact with )
phone number. Rashid Hallaway 202-380-5118
8a. List an alternate tontact person with phone number. Robin Altmeyer 812-453-1975
8 Name your Contract Administrator (if different from
ahove}
10 State your normal hours of operation 8am - 5pm CST
11 State the location where your product is manufactured Evansville Indiana 47710
12 State the location where the product will be stored Marengo Indiana
s Bidder an authorized dealer or manufacturer? if No
13 Bidder is a dealer, attach a copy of the manufacturer’s
authorization for Bidder to resell items.
Awarded Bidder may be required to deliver on v
14 weekends, holidays on in an emergency situation. Can es
your company deliver during these situations?
' Please list the-number of meals below that are de]werahle within the sefected amount of
15 ************#**********#***#****hours**************#*#*i*l#***************
15a 24 Hours 250,000 #
15b 48 Hours 1,728,000 #
15¢ 72 Hours 1,728,000 #




405-EMD-15-B50116

INVITATION FOR BIDS
Texas Department of Public Safety BID DUE/OPENING: 9/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm
Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Ameriqual Group, LLC

" DESCRIPTION {Continued) = -

CHANGE QRDERS

No verbal changes to these specifications are permitted. Any changes shall be by written addendum, Change orders
shall be allowed only if unforeseen conditions arise or if TXDPS needs dictate changes. No verbal change orders shall
be allowed, all change orders shall be in writing and documented by a purchase order change notice.

IMMIGRATION

The Bidder represents and warrants that it shall comply with the requirements of the Immigration Reform and Control
Act of 1986 and 1990 regarding employment verification and retention of verifications forms for any individuals hired
on or after November 6, 1986, who shall perform any labor or services under the Contract and the |llegal Immigration
Reform and Imimigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (HRIRA) enacted on September 30, 1996,

OFFER PREPARATION COSTS
The State shall not be responsible or liable for any costs incurred by any Bidder in the preparation and submission of its
response of for other costs incurrad by participating in this IFB process.

ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

In the event of confllcts or inconsistencies between this contract and its exhibits or attachments, such conflicts or
incansistencies shall be resolved by reference to the documents in the following order of priority. This Agreemant is
composed of the following documents:

4,01,  Purchase Order/Contract, including all attachments;

4.02.  IFB as posted, Including alt Amendments;

4,03,  Bidder's Bid Response.

POSTINGS

It is the Bidder's responsibility to check the Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) for any additional documents that
have been added after the initial posting date. Bidder’s failure to periodically check the ESBD shall in no way release
the selected Bidder from addenda or additional information resulting in additional costs to meet the requirements of
the [F8.

BACKGROUND CHECK ] Applicable Not Applicable

Work on this project is being performed in secure State of Texas facilities. All contract work crews are subject to
Background checks prior to allowing access to these facitities. This includes all workers associated with the project or
their respective sub-contractors.

Documents shail be provided to the primary contractor for distribution to their affected personnel er subcontractors
{post bid and prior to commencement of the work). Personne! information shall be provided upon request from each
person working on this site. Fingerprinting may be included as part of that background check and a location shall be
identified to the contractor for compliance. tncomplete forms shali be returned and only approved personnel shail be
allowed on the site,




405-EMD-15-B50116

INVITATION FOR BIDS
Texas Depaﬂment of Public Safetv BID DUE/OPEN]NG: 9/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm

Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Ameriqual Group, LLC

Bidder, to include all staff working on awarded project shalt have thirty (30) calendar days from the date of award to
get fingerprints taken, paperwork submitted and personnel approved. In case of background check failure of
personnel, bidder shall have five {5) working days from announcement of failure to re-submit completed fingerprint
and forms to the Project Manager for replacement personnel. If all background checks have not been completed in the
thirty (30} calendar days, purchase order shall be cancelled and shall be awarded to next qualified Bidder listed on the
bid tabulation. The procedures above and stipulations notéd, shall apply to any subsequent Bidders that are awarded
the project. TXDPS is a Police organization and shali make every effort to enforce applicable State of Texas, Federal
and International laws. Persons with outstanding warrants shall be subject to immediate arrest. Persons with criminal
histories may not be allowed unescorted in secure TXDPS facilities. Nondisclosure statements may also be required
when working on or within certain TXDPS locations.

BONDS Applicable ] not Applicable

Bends shall be required from the succaessfui Bidder before commencing any work as follows:
7.01.  For a contract in excess of $100,000.00 a performance bond shall be executed in the amount of the contract

conditioned upon the faithful performance of the work in accordance with the plans, specifications, and
contract documents. Said bond shall be solely for the protection of the state,

7.02.  Fora contract In excess of $25,000.00 a payment bond shall be executed in the amount of the contract, solely
for the protection of all claimants supplying labor and material.

7.03.  Any bids submitted shall include the cost of any applicable bond. Costs shall be Included In the base bid and
shail not be itemized separately.

if a bond is required, the successful Bidder shall be notified by mail. The bond must be received by TXDPS within ten
days and must referance the requisition number. A purchase order shall not be issued until the bond is received and
no work shall begin until the Bidder Is notifled. ‘

HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN (HSP} Applicable [T} Not Applicable

In accordance with Texas Government Code §2161.252, a bid that does not contain an HSP is non-responsive and shall
be rejected without further evaluation. In addition, If TXDPS determines that the H5P was not developed in good faith,
it shall reject the proposal for failing to comply with material IFB specifications.

INSURANCE Applicable {71 Bidders May be Required to Present Proof of Insurance
See Terms and Conditions for all insurance reguirements

INSURANCE: PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY [T] Applicable B Not Applicable

If Bidder is a licensed or certified person who renders professional services, then Professional Liability (including Errors
and Omissions) including coverage for the rendering of, or failure to render, professional services with minimum limits
of 51,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 annual aggregate. NOTE: If the insurance described above is written on a
claims-made form, coverage shall be continuous (by renewal or extended reporting period) for not less than twenty-
four (24) months following completion of the contract and acceptance by TXDPS. Coverage, including any renewals,
shall have the same retroactive date as the original policy applicable to this contract,

SERVICE CALL RESPONSE TIME [T Applicable Not Applicable

Response tima shall vary dependent upon the complexity and/or location of the service, After receiving a call for
service, the Contractor shall have a technician on-site within the specified time requirements for the following types of
service calls:




405-EMD-15-B50116
INVITATION FOR BIDS

Texas Department of Public Safety BID DUE/OPENING: 8/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm
Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Ameriqual Group, LLC

12,

13.

14,

15,

16.

11.01. SERVICE CALL DURING REGULAR WORK HOURS {8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.): Within hour(s) of
notification.

11.02. SERVICE CALLS OUTSIDE REGULAR HOURS: Within hour of notification

11.03. EMERGENCY SERVICE DURING REGULAR WORK HOUR (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.: Response time to emergency
call-backs during regular business hours shall be within hours. TXDPS shall identify emergency calls
at time of notification.

11.04. EMERGENCY CALLS OUTSIDE REGULAR HOURS: Within hour(s} of natification.

An emergency call shall be identified as any condition(s} that can potentially impact the health, safety and welfare of
TXDPS' employees and/or the public, TXDPS shall identify emergency calls at time of notification.

WARRANTY CALL RESPONSE TIME [T Applicable Not Applicable
TXDPS requires the Contractor to respond to any warranty call concerning this project within a hour time

period. Any warranty call that is issued, the successful contractor shall have a qualified technician onsite within
hours of being notified that a warranty issue exists.

RETAINAGE ] Applicable Not Applicable

TXDPS reserves the right to withhold 10% retainage from final payment until all work is accepted by TXDPS and
warranty or equipment operation and maintenance documents are in hand (if applicable). This Includes required
original Contractor provided installation letters on their letterhead, applicable material manufacturer industry standard
warranties, any equipment operation and maintenance manuals, or other project inclusive documentation for the
respective trades associated with this project.

WAGE RATES ] Applicable Not Applicable

TXDPS is the contracting agency for this state-funded project. The following statute requires any contracting agency to

specify the generally prevailing rate of wages ih contracts that are bid.

14.01 Texas Government Code Chapter 2258. Prevailing wage rates pussuant to the requirements of this statute.
TXDPS has ascertained the attached rates located in Exhibit F, are paid to various classifications of workers in
the locality of this project.

14.02  The hourly rate for legal holiday and overtime work shall be not less than 1%times the base hourly rate.

A contractor or subcontractor who violates this section shall pay to the state or a political subdivision of the state on
whose behalf the contract is made, 560 for each worker employed for each calendar day or part of the day that the
worker is paid less than the wage rates stipulated in the contract. The Texas Government Code Chapter 2258
prevalling wage rate can be viewed at the following: http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GY, 2258 htm

C LCC [[] Applicable  [X] Not Applicable
This contract shall be governed by the Umform General Conditions (UGC). UGC may be viewed at
hitp:/fwww. e state bousfdivisions/facilities/prog/construct/formsindex/07 C%20-%20UGE 2010 ndf

REFERENCES: [X Applicable ] Not Applicable

Al Bidders shall submit 3 projects of similar size and complexity to include the following information. Verification of
Experience Farm Attachment G to be returned with Bid.

1. Bidder Name;

2. Company Information

3. Project name, location, and description

4. Start and Completion Dates
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INVITATION £OR BIDS
Texas Department of Public Safety BID DUE/OPENING: 9/22/2014 @ 4:00 pm
Continuation Page VENDOR NAME Ameriqual Group, LLC
17.  CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: Applicable L] Not Applicable

tf TXDPS discovers issues of unsatisfactory performance as set forth in this IFB, TXDPS shall request a “Corrective
Action Plan” from the Contractor. Upon request from the TXDPS Project Manager or hisfher designated
representative, the Contractor shall deliver a Corrective Action Plan within ten {10} business days and it must be
approved by the TXDPS Contract Administrator. The Corrective Action Plan must address and correct all
unsatisfactory performance within thirty (30) days of the implementation. Failure to correct the unsatisfactory
performance within the allotted time shall be grounds for termination.
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STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS




405-EMD-15-B50116

STANDARDTERMS ANDCONDITIONS
Revised 81372014

- ITEMS BELOW APPLY TO AND BECOME PART OF BID. ANY EXCEPTIONS THERETO MUST BEINWRITING

1. BIDDING REQUIREMENTS:

1.1 Bidders shall comply with ali rules, regulations and statutes relating to purchasing in the State of Texas in
addition to the requirements of this form.

1.2 Bids shall be submitted on this form. Bidders shall price per unit shown. - Unit prices shall govern in the event
of extension errors. It a price quotation is submitted as part of the Bid, the quotation shall be referenced on the
Bid document and signed by the Bidder to establish formal linkage to the Bid,

1.3 Bids shall be time stamped at Texas Department of Public Safety (TXDPS) on or before the hour and
tate specified for the Bid opening.

1.4 Late and/or unsigned Bids shall not be considered under any circumstances. Person signing Bid shali have
the authority to bind the firm in a contract.

1.5  Quole FOB destination, fraight prepaid and ailowed unless othetwise stated within the specifications.

1.6 Bid prices are requested to be firm for TXDPS acceptance for 30 days from Bid opening date. "Discount from list"

Bids are not acceplable unless requested. Cash discounts are not considered in determining an award. Cash

discounts offerad shall be taken if eamed.

Biddershould enter their Federal Employee |dentification Number (EIN) in the space provided on page 1 of this IFB

Bidder shall complete this contractorcontact information on page 1 this IFB.

Bidder shall complete firm name on each continuation page of the IFB, in the block provided in the upper

right hand comer.

1.10  Bid cannot be altered or amendad after opening time. Afterations made before opening time should be initialed by
Bidder or his authorized agent. No Bid can be withdrawn after opening time without approval by the TXDPS
based on an acceptable written reason.

1.11  Purchases made for the State's use are exempt from the State Sales tax and Federal Excise tax. Do not
include tax In Bid. Excise Tax Exemption Certificates are avallable upon request.

—_ ki
O~

2.  AWARD NOCE

21 TXDPS reserves the right to make an award on the basis of low line item Bid, low total of line items, or in
any other combination that shall serve the best interest of TXDFS and to reject any and all Bid items at
the sole discretion of TXDPS. TXDPS also reserves the right to accept or reject all or any part of any Bid,
waive minor technicalities and award the Bid to best serve the interests of TXDPS. Any contract may also be
extended up to three months at the sole discretion of TXDPS,

2.2 Consistent and continued tie Bidding could cause rejection of Bids by the TXDPS and/or Investigation
for antitrust violations.

23  Inguirespertainingto this IFB shall include ferequisition number, classfitem codes, and opening date. shall include

3. SPECIFICATION:

3.1 Catalogs, brand names or manufacturer's references are descriptive only, and indicate type and quality desired.
Bids on brands of like nature and quality shall be considered unless adverlised under §2155.0687, Texas
Government Code (Gov't Code). if Bidding on other than references, Bid should show manufacturer, brand
or trade name, and other description of product offered. if other than brand(s) specified is offered,
ilustrations and complate description of product offered are reguested to be made part of the Bid. Fallure to
take exception to specifications or reference data shall require Bidder to furnish specified brand names, numbaers,
ate,

3.2 Lintess otherwise specified, items shall be new and unused and of current production.

3.3 Al electrical items shall mest all applicable OSHA standards and reguiations, and bear the appropriate listing from
UL, FMRC or NEMA.

3.4 Samples, when requested, shalt be fumished free of expense to TXDFPS. If not destroyed in examination, they
shall be returned to the Bidder, on request, at Bidders expense. Each sample should be marked with
Bidder's name and address, and requisition number. Do not enclose in or attach Bid to sample.

35 TXDPS shall not be bound by any oral staterent or representation contrary to the written specifications of this IFB,

3.6 Manulacturer's standard warranty shall apply unless otherwise stated in the IFB.
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10,

TIE BIDS:
Awards shall be made in accordance with 34 TAC Rules 20.36(b) {3) and 20.38 (Preferencas).

DELIVERY:

5.1 Delivery is to be as described in the IFB,

52 Detault in promised defivery (without accepied reasons) or failure o meet specificalions autharizes the TXDPS 1o
purchase the goods or services of this IFB eisewhere and charge any Increased costs for the goods or
services, including the cost of rebidding, to the Contractor.

53 No substitutions permitted without written approval of TXDPS,

INSPECTIONANDTESTS:

All goods shall be subject to inspection and test by TXDPS. Authorized TXDPS personnel shall have access to
supplier's place of business for the purpose ol inspecting merchandise. Tests shall be performad on samples
submitted with the Bid or on samples taken from regular shipment, All costs shall be borne by the Bidder in the avent
products tested fail to meet or exceed all conditions and requiraments of the specification. Goods delivered and
rejected in whole or in part may, at TXDPS option, be returned to the Bidder or held for disposition at Bidder's
expense, Latent defscts may resultin revocation of acceptance,

AWARD OF CONTRACT:

A response to this IFB Is an offer to contract based upon the terms, conditions, and specifications contained herein.
Bids do not become contracts until they are accepted through an open market purchase order. This contract shall be
governed, construed, and interpreted under the laws of the Slate of Texas. State agencies shall report a
contractor's performance on any purchase of $25,000 or more from contracts administered by the commission or
any other purchase made through an agency's delegated authority or a purchase made pursuant to the authority in
Government Code, Title D, Subtitle D or a purchase exemption from CPA/TPASS procurement rules and procedures.

PAST PERFORMANCE:

A Bidder's past performance shall be measured based upon passffail criterta, In compliance with applicable
provisions of Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle D, Section 2155.074, Section 2155,075, Saction 2156.007,
Section 2167.003 and Section 2167,125 and Texas Administrative Code, Title 1, Chapter 113.8, information oistained
from the Texas Procurement and Support Services’ Contractor Performance Tracking System may be used in evaluating
responses to iIFBs tor goods and services lo determine the best value for the State. Bidder may fail this selection
criterion for any of the following conditions:

8.1 A score of less than 90% in the Contractor Pedormance System;

8.2 Currently undera Corrective Action Plan through TXDPS;

8.3 Having repeated nagative Contractor Performance Raports for the same reason;

8.4 Having purchase orders that have been cancelled in the previous 12 months for non-performance (l.e. iate
delivery, elc.).

Cantractor parformance information is located on the CPA wab site at;

hitp:Awww. window. state i us/procurement/prog/Vendor _performance/

PAYMENT:

Contractor shail submit 2 copies of an itemized invoice showing TXDPS/TDEM Purchase Order number on all coples.
TXDPS shall Incur no penalty for late payment if payment is made in 30 or fewer days from receipt of goods or
services and an uncontestedinvolee. Payment shall be made in accordance with Chapler2251, Gov't Code.

PATENTS, TRADEMARKS OR COPYRIGHTS:

Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify TXDPS from clalms involving Infringement or violation of patents,
trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, or other proprigtary rights, arising out of the TXDPS or the State's use of
any good or service provided by the Bidder as a result of this IF8,
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11,

12,

BIDDER ASSIGNMENTS:

Contractor hereby assigns to  TXDPS any and all claims for overcharges associated with this Contract arising under
the antitrust laws of the United States 15 U.S.C.A. §1, et seq., and the antitrust laws of the Stale of Texas, Tex. Bus. &
Comm, Code §15.01, et seq.

BIDDER AFFIRMATIONS:

Signing this Bid with a false statement is a material breach of Contract and shall void the submitted Bid and any
resulting contracts, and the Bidder shall be removed from all Bid lists. By signature hereon affixed, the Bidder
hereby certifies that:

12,1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

The Bidder has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any economic opportunity,
future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, specia! discount, trip, favor, or service to a public servant in connection
with the submitted Bid.

Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §1, ef seq. and Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code §15.01, et seq. neither the Bidder nor the
firm, corporation, parinership, or institution represented by the Bidder, or anyone acting for such a firm,
comoration or institution has violated the antitrust laws of this state, federat antltrust laws, nor communicated
directly or indirectly the Bid made to any competitoror any other person engaged in such line of business.
Pursuant to §231.006(d), Texas Family Code, regarding child support, the Bidder certifies that the individual
or business entity named In this Bid is not ineligible to receive the specified payment and acknowledges that
the Contract may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is inaccurate. Furthermora,
any Bitder subject to §231.008, Gov't Code, shall include names and Social Security numbers of each person
with at least 25% ownership of the business entity submitting the Bid. This infermation shall be provided
prior to award. Enterthe Name & Social Security Numbers for each person below:

NA Social Security Number:
NA, Social Security Number;
NA Social Security Number:

As required by §2252.903, Gov't Code, Bidder agrees that any payments due under a Contract resulting from
this IFB shall be direclly applied towards eliminating any debt or delinquancy including, but not limited to,
delinquent taxes, delinguent student loan payments, and delinquent child support, until the debt is paid in full.
Bidder shall comply with rules adopted by TXDPS under §§403.065, 403.05661, 2262.903, Gov't Code and
other applicable taws and regulations regarding satistaction of debts or delinquencies to the State of Texas.

Under §2156.004, Gov't Code, the Bidder certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Bid or any
Contract resulting from this IFB is not ineligible to receive the specified Contract and acknowledges that the
Contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this cedification is Inaccurate. §2155.004 prohibit a
person or entity from receiving a state contract if they received compensation for participating In preparing the
IFB or specifications forthe Contract.

Pursuant to §660.003, Gov't Code, TXDPS may not enter into a Contract with a person who employs a current
or former executive head of any state agency until four years has passed since that person was the executive
head of the state agency. By submitting a Bid, the Bidder certifies that It doss not employ any parson who
was the executive head of any state agency In the past four years. If Bidder does employ a2 person who
was the executive head of a state agencﬁ,/{novide the following information:

Name of Former Executive:

Name of State Agercy: NA
Date of Separationfrom Stale Agercy: __NA
Position with Bidder: NA

12
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13.

14.

15,

Date of Employment with Bidder: NA

12.7 In accordance with §2165.4441, Govt Code, Bidder agrees that during the performance of a Contract for
sarvices it shall purchase products and materials produced in Texas when thay are available at a price and
time comparable to products and materials produced outside this state.

12.8  Bidder certifies that the bidding entity and its principals are eligible to participate in this transaction and
have notbeen subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibllity determinad by any federal, state or
local governmental entity and that Bidder s in compliance with the State of Texas statutes and rules
relating to procurement and that Bidder Is not listed on the federal government's lerrorism watch list as
describad in Executive Order 13224. Entities ineligible for federal procurement are listed at the following .
hitps://www. sam.goviportal/public/S A/

12.8  Sactions 2155.006 and 2261.083, Govt Code, prohibit state agencles from awarding contracts to any
person who, in the past five years, has been convicted of violating a federal law or assessed a penalty in
connection with a contract involving relief for Hurricane Rita, Huricane Katrina, or any other disaster, as
defined by §418.004, Gov't Code, occurring after September 24, 2005. Under §2155.006, Gov't Code, Bidder
certlfies that the individual or business entity named in its Bid is not ineligible to receive a Contract and
acknowledges that any contract rasulting from this IFB may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

12,10 Bidder represents and warrants that payment to the Blidder and the Bidder's recelpt of appropriated or other
funds under any Contract resulting from this IFB are not prohibited by §556.005 or §556.008, Gov't Code,
refating to the prohibition of using state funds for lobbying activities.

12.11 Bidder represents and warrants that it has no actual or potential conflicts of interest in praviding the requested
items to TXDPS under the IFB and any resulting Contract, if any, and that Bldder's provision of the
requested ltems under the IFB and any resulting Contract, If any, would not reasonably create an
appearance of impropristy.

PROTEST PROCEDURES:
Any actual or prospsctive Bidder who is aggrieved in connection with this IFB, evaluation, or award of any Contract
resulting fromthis IFB may formaily protest as provided in TXDPS' rules at 37 TAC Rule 1.231.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION;
The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260, Govt Code shall be used by the Coniractor to
attempt to resolve any dispute arising under any Conlract resulting from this IFB.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS FOR NEXT FiISCAL YEAR AND LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS:

A TXDPS is a State agency whose authority is subject to the actions of the Texas Legislature and the United
States Congrass. All obligations of TXDPS are subject to the availability of legistative appropriations or, If applicable, the
availabllity of federal funds applicable to this Contract. The Contractor acknowledges that the ability of TXDPS to make
payments under this Contract is contingent upon the availability of funds. The Contractor {urther acknowledges that funds
may not be specifically appropriated for this Contract and the Department’s continual ability to make payments under this
Contract Is contingent upon the funding levels appropriated to TXDPS.

B. If TXDPS and/or the subject matter of this Contract become subject to a legislative or regulatory change or the
ravocation of statutory or regulatory authority that would render the deliverables to be provided under this Contract
impossible, unnecessary, void, or substantially amended or that would terminate the appropriations for this Contract, the
Dapartment may Immediately terminate this Contract, In whole or in part, without penalty to, or any Hability whatsoever on
the pant of TXDPS, the State of Texas, and the United States. Termination under this section is immediate, so TXDPS is
not required to provide thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice.

C. TXDPS is a State agency recelving grant funding from State or Federal Grantor sourcaes. If the State or Federal
Grantor terminates or reduces the funding necessary for performance of this Contract, TXDPS may immediately terminate
this Contract, in whole or in par, without penaliy to, or any liabilily whatsoever on the part of TXDPS, the State of Texas,
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16.

17.

and the United States. Termination under this section is immediate, so TXDPS is not required to provide thirty {30)
calendar days' written notice.

D. if funding or appropriations for this Contract is reduced by law, the statutory amount of compensation authorized
for the Contractor is reduced by law, or the Legistative Budget Board requests TXDPS to reduce TXDPS budget by a
certain percentage, the Department may, upon thirty {30) calendar days' writien notice to the Contractor, reduce the
dsliverables in such manner and for such periods of time as TXDPS may elect.

TEXAS PUBLICINFORMATION ACT:

Notwithstanding any provisions of this IFB to the contrary, Contractor understands that TXDPS shail comply with the
Texas Public Information Act (Chapter 552, Gov't Code) as inferpreted by judicial opinions and opinions of the
Attorney General of the Stale of Texas. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with this iFB or
any resulting Contract may be subject to pubfic disclosure pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act. Within
three (3) days of receipt, Bidder shall refer to TXDPS any third party requests, received directly by Bidder, for
information to which Contractor has access as a result of or in the course of perfermance under any Contract
resulting from this IFB. Any part of the IFB response that is of a confidential or proprietary natute shall be
clearly and prominently marked as such by the Bidder.

TXDPS agrees to notify the Contractor in wilting within a reasonable time from receipt of a request for
information related 1o the Contractor's work under this Contract. The contractor shall cooperate with TXDPS in the
production of documents responsive to the request, The Department shall make a determination whether 1o submit a
Public Information Act request to the Attorney General. The Contractor shall notify TXDPS within twenty-four (24)
hours of receipt of any third pary requests for information that was provided by the State of Texas for use in
performing this Contract.

The Contractor is required to make any information created or exchanged with the state pursuant to this Contract, and not
otherwise accapted from disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessibie by
the public at no additional charge to the state.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

Under §2155.003, Gov't Code, 2 TXDPS employes may not have an interest in, or in any manner be connected with a
contract or Bid for a purchase of goods or services by an agency of the state; or In any manner, including by rebate
or gift, accept or receive from a person to whom a Contract may be awarded, directly or indirectly, anything of value
or a promise, obligation, or Contract for future reward or compensation. Any Individual who interacts with public
purchasers in any capacity is required to adhere to the guidelines established in Section 1.2 of the State of Texas
Procurement Manual, which outlines the ethical standards required of public purchasers, employees, and Bidders
who interact with public purchasers in the conduct of state business, and with any opinions of or rules adopted by
the Texas Ethics Commission. Entities who are interested in seeking business opporiunities with the State shal
be mindful of these restrictions when interaciing with public purchasers of TXDPS or purchasers of other state agencies.

By signing the Execution of Bid, the Bidder affirms that the exscution of an agreement between Bidder and the State
shall not create a confiict of interest or cause an appearance of a cenflict of interest. In its Bid, Bidder shail
disclose any existing or potential conflicts of interest or possible issues that might create appearances of impropriety
relative to Bidder's (and ils proposed subcontractors’) submission of a Bid and possible selection as vendor or its
petformance of the Contract.

If the clreumstances cedified by Bidder change or additional information is oblained subsequent to submigsion of Bid,
by submifting a response Bidder agrees that it is under a continuing duty to supplement its response under this
provision, and Bidder shali submit updated information as soon as reasonably possible upon learning of any change to
their affirmation,
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18. FORCE MAJEURE ;
Nelther Contractor nor TXDPS shall be llable to the other for any delay in, or failure of perormance, of any
requirernent included in any Contract resulting from this IFB caused by force majeure. The existence of such causes of i
delay or fallure shall extend the perlod of performance until after the causes of delay or faillure have been removad
provided the non-parforming party exercises all reasonable due diligence to perform. Force majeure is defined as acts
of God, war, fires, explosions, hurricanes, floods, failure of transportation, or other causes that are beyend the
reasonable contro! of elther party and that by exerclse of due forasight such party could not reasonably have been
expacted to avoid, and which, by the exercise of all reasonable due diligence, such parly is unable to overcome,
Each party shall inform the other in writing, with proof of receipt, within thrae (3) business days of the existence of
such force majeure, or otherwise waive this right as a defense.

19. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:
Contractor is and shall remain an independent contractor in relationship to the TXDPS, TXDPS shall not be
responsible for withholding taxes from paymenis made under any contract resulting from this IFB. Contractor
shall have no claim against TXDPS for vacatlon pay, sick leave, retirement benefils, social security, worker's
compensation, health or disability benefits, unemployment insurance benefits, or employee benefits of any kind.

20. INDEMNIFICATION:
Acts or Omissions

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hofd harmless the State of Texas and Customers, AND/OR THEIR
OFFICERS, AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, ASSIGNEES, AND/OR DESIGNEES
FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR SUITS, AND ALL RELATED COSTS,
ATTORNEY FEES, AND EXPENSES arising out of, or resulting from any acts or omissions of the Contractor or its
agents, employees, subgontractors, Order Fulfillers, or suppliers of subcontractors in the execution or
perfermance of this Contract and any Purchase Orders issued under this Contract. THE DEFENSE SHALL BE
COORDINATED BY CONTRACTOR WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL WHEN TEXAS STATE
AGENCIES ARE NAMELD DEFENDANTS IN ANY LAWSUIT AND CONTRACTOR MAY NOT AGREE TO ANY
SETTLEMENT WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE CONCURRENCE FROM THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. CONTRACTOR AND TXDPS AGREE TO FURNISH TIMELY WRITTEN NOTICE TO EACH OTHER OF
ANY SUCH CLAIM,

Infringement

a} Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of Texas, TXDPS, AND/OR THEIR
EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, ASSIGNEES, AND/OR DESIGNEES from any
“and all third party claims involving infringement of United States patents, copyrights, trade and service marks,
and any other intellectual or intangible property rights in connection with the PERFORMANCES OR ACTIONS
OF CONTRACTOR PURSUANT TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR AND TXDPS AGREE TO FURNISH TIMELY
WRITTEN NOTICE TO EACH OTHER OF ANY SUCH CLAIM. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE LIABLE TO PAY ALL
COSTS OF DEFENSE INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES. THE DEFENSE SHALL BE COORDINATED BY
CONTRACTOR WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL WHEN TEXAS STATE AGENCIES ARE
NAMED DEFENDANTS IN ANY LAWSUIT AND CONTRACTOR MAY NOT AGREE TO ANY SETTLEMENT
WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE CONCURRENCE FROM THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

b} Contractor shall have no liability under this section if the alleged infringement is caused in whole or in part
by: (i) use of the product or service for a purpese or in 2 manner for which the product or service was not
designed, (ii) any modification made to the product without Contractor's written approval, (iii) any
modifications made to the preduct by the Contractor pursuant to TXDPS specific instructions, (iv} any
intellectual property right owned by or licensed to TXDPS, or (v} any use of the product or service by TXDPS
that is not in conformity with the terms of any applicable license agreement.
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21,
22,

¢) If Contractor becomes aware of an actual or potential claim, or TXDPS provides Contractor with notice of an
actual or potential claim, Contractor may {or in the case of an injunction against TXDPS, shall), at Contractor's
sole option and expense; (i) procure for TXDPS the right to continue to use the affected portion of the product
or service, or (i) modify or replace the affected portion of the protiuct or service with functionally equivalent
or superior product or service so that TXDPS use is non-infringing.

Taxes/Woarkers' Compensation/Unemployment Insurance — Including indemnity

1) CONTRACTOR AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT DURING THE EXISTENCE OF THIS CONTRACT,
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE ENTIRELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LIABILITY AND PAYMENT OF CONTRACTOR'S
AND CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES' TAXES OF WHATEVER KIND, ARISING OUT OF THE PERFORMANCES IN
THIS CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO COMPLY WITH ALL STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS
APPLICABLE TO ANY SUCH PERSONS, INCLUDING LAWS REGARDING WAGES, TAXES, INSURANCE, AND
WORKERS' COMPENSATION, TXDPS AND/OR THE STATE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE CONTRACTOR,
ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, OR OTHERS FOR THE PAYMENT OF TAXES OR THE PROVISION OF
UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND/OR WORKERS' COMPENSATION OR ANY BENEFIT AVAILABLE TO A
STATE EMPLOYEE OR EMPLOYEE OF ANOTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY CUSTOMER.

2) CONTRACTOR AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS TXDPS, THE STATE OF TEXAS
AND/OR THEIR EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, AND/OR ASSIGNEES FROM
ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DEMANDS, OR SUITS, AND ALL RELATED COSTS,
ATTORNEYS’ FEES, AND EXPENSES, RELATING TO TAX LIABILITY, UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND/OR
WORKERS' COMPENSATION N ITS PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS CONTRACT. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
LIABLE TO PAY ALL COSTS OF DEFENSE INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES. THE DEFENSE SHALL BE
COORDINATED BY CONTRACTOR WITH THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL WHEN TEXAS STATE
AGENCIES ARE NAMED DEFENDANTS IN ANY LAWSUIT AND CONTRACTOR MAY NOT AGREE TO ANY
SETTLEMENT WITHOUT FIRST OBTAINING THE CONCURRENCE FROM THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL. CONTRACTOR AND TXDPS AGREE TO FURNISH TIMELY WRITTEN NOTICE TO EACH OTHER OF
ANY SUCH CLAIM.

RIGHT TO AUDIT:

In addition to and without limitation on the other audit provisions of this |FB, pursuant to §2262.003, Texas Government
Code, the State Auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of the Bidder or any other entity or person receiving funds
from the state directly under this Contract ar indirsctly through a subcontract under this Contract, The acceptance of funds
by the Coniractor or any other entity or person directly undar this Contract or indirectly through a subcontract under this
Contract acts as acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor, under the direction of the legislative Audit Committes, to
conduet an audit or investigation in connection with those funds. Undar the diraction of the lagisiative Audit Committes, the
Contractor or other entity thal is the subject of an audit or investigation by the State Auditor shail provide the State Auditor
with access to any information the State Auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit. This Contract may be
amended unliaterally by TXDPS to comply with any rules and procedures of the Stale Auditor in the Implementation and
enforcement of §2262.003, Texas Government Code. The Contractor shall ensure that this clause conceming the authority o
audit funds received Indirectly by subcontractors through the Contractor and the requirement to cooperale Is included in any
subcontract It awards. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSIONREVIEW:

The Texas Public Safety Commission or the Commission’s designee ("Commission”) shall receive notiication of the
following contracts awarded by the Texas Department of Public Safety (Department} since the last cormmission meating.

221 Contractvaiued at one million dollars and 00/100 ($1,000,000.00) or mors, including available renewal options.

222 Contract Amendments (other than exercise of available renewal options) valued at $100,000.00 or more that
increase the vaiue of the original contracts by 50% or more; and

22.3 Contract amendments (other than exercise of available renewal options) valued at $500,000 or more.
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23,

24,

25,

26,

27.

28.

Thé Assistant Director, Administration, shall submit these reports to the Commission,
The Commission shall raview contracts prior to or after award by TXOPS if required by applicable faw.

NEWS RELEASES, ADVERTISEMENTS ANDPUBLETTY:

Contractor shal not make any news releases, public announcements, or public disclosures, nor shall it have any
conversations with representatives of the news media, pertaining to this contract, without the express, prior written
approval of TXDPS, and then only in accordance with explicit written instructions from TXDPS, Contractor shall
not use the name of the State of Texas or TXDPS in any advertisement, promotion or otherwise for any purpose
regarding this Contract without the express prior written consent of TXDPS. TXDPS Is not authorized 1o provide
endorsements.

REDACTED DOCUMENTS:
Contractor shall be required to include electronically, a redacted copy of the Contractor's Bid with specified private
information removed, plus an overview of the nature of the information removed.

CRIMINALHISTORY BACKGROUND:

Contractor shall have its project personnel submit to a TXDPS fingemprint-based criminal history background
investigation, if required by TXDPS. To facilitate this criminal history background investigation, each person shall
be required to complete the TXDPS Conltractor Background Information form (HR-22), which shall be provided by
TXDPS. Coniractor is not responsible for any costs associated with obtaining any fingerprints for the criminal
history background investigation,

If TXDPS requires a fingerprint-based criminal history background investigation, Contractor shall not allow
personnel to work on the project who have not successfully completed a TXDPS fingerprint-based criminal history
background investigation and who do not otherwise maintain a TXDPS security clearance. In addition, TXDPS has
the right to prevent the Contractors personnel from gaining access to the TXDPS building(s) and computer systems if
TXDPS determines that such personnel do not pass the background check or fall to otherwise maintain a TXDPS
security clearance.

ACCESSIBILITY:

Effective September 1, 2006, State Agsncies and Institutions of Higher Education shall procure preducts which comply
with the State of Texas Accessibility requiremants for Electronic and information Resources specified in 1 TAC, Chapter
213 and 1 TAC, Chapter 206 when such products are avallable in the commercial markelplace or when such products
are devaloped in response to a procurament Solicitation.

STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS:

Pursuant to Government Code 322.020 state agencles shall report cértain major contracts and their contents to
the Legislative Budget Board (LBB). The LBB posts major contracts and their contents onto a public database.
Submission of contract materials, regardless of conlidentiality Indications in the contract materials, shall be
considered the Contractors recognition of the stated statute and the Contractors consent to the TXDPS
submission to LEB for publication.

ABANDONMENT OR DEFALULT:

If the Contractor defaults on this contract, TXDPS reserves the right to cancel this contract without notice and either
re-solicit or re-award this contract to the next best responsive and responsible Bidder. The defaulting Contractor shall
not be considered in the re-IFB and may not be considered in future iFBs for the same type of work, uniess the
specification or scope of work significantly changed. The period of suspension shall be determined by the agency
based on the sericusness of the default,
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29,

30.

31,

32

33.

ASSIGNMENT:
Without the prior written consent of TXDPS, Contractor may not assign this Contract, in whole or in par, and may not
asslgn any right or duty required under it.

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY:

The Contractor shall comply with the applicabte provisions of the Drug-Free Work Place Act of 1988 (Public Law 100-690,
Tile V, Subtile D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ET SEQ.) and maintain a drug-free work environment; and the final rule,
govarnment- wide requirements for drug-free work place (grants), lssued by the Office of Management and
Budget and the Depariment of Defense (32 CFR Part 280, Subpart F) to implement the provisions of the Drug-Free
Work Place Act of 1988 is incorporated by reference and the Contractor shall comply with the relevant provisions
thereof, including any amendments to the final rule that may hereafter be issued.

NOTICE:

Any written notices required under this Contract shall be  hand delivered, emailed or sent via cerdtified mail to the
Contractor's office address specified herein.  Notices to TXDPS/TDEM shall be hand delivered, emailed or sent
via gertified, return receipt requasted to: TXDPS/TDEM, 5805. N. Lamar Bivd., Austin, Texas 78752. Notice shall be
effective on receipt by the affected parly. Either parly may change the designated notice address in this Section by
written notification to the other party.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
Any Contractor terms and conditions attached to a bid response shall not be considered and may result in disgualification.

INSURANCE:

Awarded Bidder shall comply with State of Texas Workers Compensation Insurance- regulations and maintain

commercial general liability insurance until work covered in this contract is completed and accepted by TXDPS., Proot of

insurance shall be provided upon reguest by TXDPS. Prior {o the commencement of work under this contract, the

Contractor shall procure and maintain at its expense during the term of the Contract or any extensions thereof,

insurance as listed below. Insurance shall be written by companies acceptable to the Department and authorized

to do business in the State of Texas. Policies shall Include lerms and provisions indicated below. The

Contractor shall provide and make available, at no cost to TXDPS, coples of policy. declaration pages and policy

endorsements and furnish evidence of the following insurance:

331 Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability coverage with minimum policy limits for
employers’ liability of $1,000,000.00 bodily injury per accident, $1,000,000.00 bodily injury
disease policy limit and$1,000,000.00 per disease, per employee. Workers’ compensation
insurance coverage shall meet the statutory reguirements of Texas Labor Code, Section
401.011(46). Certitication in writing from contractor and subcontractors shall be provided to
TXDPS in accordance with Texas Labor Code, Section 406.096,

33.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance including, but not fimited to:

a) Premises/Operations, Personal inmjury & Adverising LUabilty, Products/Completed Operations,
Independent Contractors and Contractusal Liability with minlmum combined bodily injury (including
death) and propery damage firmits of one milfion and 00/100 dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence,

b)  One million and 00/100 dollars ($1,000,000.00) praducts/completed operations aggregate and

¢)  Two million and 00/100 ($2,000,000.00) general aggregate.

d) Medical Expense each person: $5,000

e) Damage to premises rented to you: $50,000

33.3 The policy shail contain the foliowing provisions:
a) Blanket contractual liability coverage for liability assumed under this contract;
b) Independentcontractors’ coverage;
c) State of Texas, TXDPS, its officials, directors, employess, representatives and volunteers shall be listed as
Additionatinsured'’s;
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d) Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation in favor of TXDPS; and
e) Waiver of Transter Right of Recovery agalnst Others in favor of TXDPS,

33.4 Business Automobile Liability Insurance for alf owned, non-ownad and hired vehicles with a minimum
combined single limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage.

33.5 Alternate acceptable limits are $250,000.00 badily injury per petsen, $600,000.00 bodily injury per
occurrence and at feast $100,000.00 property damage liability per accident.

33.6 If this Insurance s written on a claims-made form, coverage shall be continuous (by renewal or extended
reporting period) for not less than sixty (60) months following completion of this Contract and
acceptance by TXDPS.

337 Coverage, including any renewals, shail have the same retroactive dale as the orlginal policy applicable
to this Contract. Civil Rights Liability shall be provided with the same fability limits. {t may be included
within the General Liabllity policy or writien on a separate policy,

33.8 LiabHity coverage shall include coverage for damage to property and injury to persons caused by boiler and
other equipment malfunction. The policy shall contain an endorsement to include coverage for the property
of third partles.

TXDPS shaltbe named as an additional insured by using endorserment CG2026 or broader.

If insurance policies are not written for amounts specified above, the Contractor shall carry Umbrella or Excess
Liability Insurance for any differences in amounts specified, If Excess Liability insurance is provided, it shall follow
the form of the primary coverage.

Each pollcy of required insurance shail provide for thity (30) days written notice of cancellation to TXDPS and
include the following provisions. “It is a condition of this policy that the Company shall furnish written notice to TXDPS,
Contract Administrator, Procurement and Contract Services Bureau, 5805 North Lamar Blvd, Austin, TX 78752 thirty
{30) days in advance of any reductionin, or cancellation of this policy”.

insurance shali be effective and evidence of acceptable insurance fumished to TXDPS, prior to commencing any
operations under this Contract,

Required Provisions: The Contractor agrees that with respect fo the above required insurance, alf insurance

contracts and certificate(s) of insurance shall contain and state, in writing, the following required provisions:

33.9 Name TXDPS and its commissioners, officers, and employees as additional insured to all appilcable
policies.

33.10  Waive subrogation against TXDPS, its commissionars, officers and employees, for bodily injury
{Including death}, property damage or any otherloss,

33.11 Provide that the Contractor's insurance Is the primary insurance in regards to the Department, its
commissioners, officers, and employees

33,12 Provide that all provisions of this Contract concerning liability, duty and standard of care, together with
the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability coverage sufficient to include such
obligations within applicable policies.

33.13  Ensure that all centificates of insurance identity the service or product being provided and the name of
responsible party.

3314  The Contractor through an insurance agent licensed by the State of Texas shall obtain all insurance
coverage and an insurance company licensed to issue such coverage in this State shall provide such
coverage. No "self-insurance” coverage shall be acceptable. Local governmental entities, such as
municipalities or counties, may submit proof of financial responsibiiity acceptable to TXDPS in lieu of
commarcial insurance policles.

3315  All Insurance coverage obtained by the Coniractor shali continue in full force and effect during the term of
this Contract... No Contract shall be entered into between the Conlractor and TXDPS unless insurance
coverage binders are received by the date scheduted for the execution of the Contract. Proof of insurance
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34,

33.16

3317

33.18

policies shall be delivered prior 1o the date on which the services of the Contractor shall commence.

All insurance coverage shall be provided by insurance camier duly licensed, admitied and authorized to do
business in Texas. All insurance carriers shall be, at a minimum, rated "A" or better by A.M. Best or equivalent
rating by a similar insurance rating service. The Contractor may choose the amount of deductible for any other
insurange coverage required (above) to be obtained by the Contractor, but In no event shall such deductible
for sach occurrence exceed five (5) percent of the required yearly aggregate limit of coverage.

The Contractor is responsible for the first dollar defense coverage. All general liability and professional
liability policles shall provide defense In addition to the policy limits.

The limits required herein are minimum acceptable. However, these limits are not 1o be construed as being
the maximum any prospective Contractormay wish to purchase for their own benefit.

TERMINATION:

341

34.2

34.3
34.4
34.5

34.6

34.7

Thiscontract may be terminated or cancelied In any of the following circumstances:

TERMINATION BY DEFAULT: In the event that Contractor falls to carry out or comply with any of the
requirements of this Contract (including but not limited to any statement, representation or warranty In this
Contract that is false, misleading, or ermoneous in any matsrial respect) with TXDP S, TXDPS may
notify Contractor of such fatlure or default in writing and demand that the fallure or default be remedied
within ten (10} calendar days. in the event that Contractor fails to remedy such fallure or default within
the ten {10} calendars day period, TXDPS shall have the right to cancel this Contract upon ten (10) days’
written notice.

TERMINATION FOR UNAVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This Contract may be terminated as provided in the

section herein entitled *Availability of Funds; Legislative Action." The Parties understand and agree that
the obligations of TXDPS under this Contract are contingent upon. the availability of funds to meet TXLGPS

kabiities hereunder. |f these funds become unavallable to TXDPS, TXDPS may immediately terminate

this Contract without penalty to or any ilablity whatsoever on the part of TXDPS, the State of Texas, and the
United States.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENGE: This Contract may be terminated, without Penalty, by TXDPS, without
cause by giving thirly (30} calendar days written nofice of such termination to Contractor.

TERMINATION BY MUTUAL AGREEMENT: This Contractmay be terminated upon muiual writien agreement.

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: This Contract may be terminated by TXDPS it Contractor fails to perform as

agreed or is otherwise in default, withoul the necessity of complying with the requirements in the section

herein entitled "Termination by Default.” TXDPS shall provide Contractor with written notice to terminate
this Contract, which terminationshall become effectiveimmediately upon Contractors raceiptof the notice,

TERMINATION FOR LISTING ON FEDERAL EXCLUDED PARTY LIST, THE TERRORISM LIST

{EXECUTIVE ORDER 13224) OR ON THE STATE OF TEXAS DEBARRED CONTRACTOR LIST: TXDPS

shall have the absolute right to terminate this Coniract without recourse as follows:

1) If Contractor becomes listed on the prohibited Contractors list authorized by Executive Order #13224
“Blocking Property and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who Commit, Threalen to Commit,
or Support Terrerism,” published by the United States Depaitment of Treasury, Office of Foreign Assels
Control; or

2) If Cortractor becomes suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal government as
listed in the Systems for Award Management List {SAM} maintained by the General Services
Administration; or

3) If Contractor becomes listed on the State of Texas Debarred Contractor List TXDPS shall provide
Contractor with written notice to terminate this Contract, which termination shall become effective
immediately upon Contractor’s receiptof the notice.

GENERAL TERMINATION PROVISONS:
1) The termination of this Contract, under any circumstances whatsoever, shall not affect or
relieve Confractor from any obligation or liabilty that may have been incurred pursuant to

20




405-EMD-15-B50116

STANDARDTERMS AND CONDITIONS
Revised 8132014

ITEMS BELOW APPLY TO AND BECOME PART OF BID. ANY EXCEPTIONS THERETO MUST BEIN WRITING

35,

2}
3}

4)

5)

8)

7

8)

this Contract, and such cancellation by TXDPS shall not limit any ather right or remedy available to
TXDPS at law or In equity.

This Contract does not grant Contractor a franchise or any ather vested property right.

in the avent of termination hereunder, TXDPS shall not be considered in default or breach of
this Contract, nor shall it give rise to any liability whatsoever on the part of TXDPS whether such
ciaims of Contractor are for compensation of anticipated profits, unabsorbed overhead, interest on
borrowing, or for any other reason.

Contractor shall, unless mutually agreed upon in wiiting, cease all work immediately upon the
effeclive date of termination. TXDPS shall be fiable for payments limited only to the portion of
the work TXDPS authorized in wriling and which Contractor has completed, delivered to TXDPS,
and which has been accepted by TXDPS, All such work shall have been completed, per this
Contract's requiremants, prior to the effective date of termination.

TXDPS reserves the right to recover reasonable costs, fees, expenses, and other amounis or
damages available to TXDPS under this Contract or under applicable law, including, but not limited
to, aftorneys' fees and court costs, if termination is at Coniractor's request or if termination is for
cause. This right Is in addition to any other remedies available to TXDPS under this Contract or
applicable law. TXDPS reserves the right to pursue any and all applicable rights and remedies if this
Contract is terminated for any reason and TXDPS exprassly walves no such rights or remedies.

If this Contract is terminated for cause or default, TXDPS reserves the right to re-solicit or re-award
this Contract to the next best responsive and responsible Bidder. TXDPS shafl not consider the
defaulling Contractor in the re-IFB and TXDPS may not consider the defaulting Contractor in future
IFBs for the same typs of work, unless the specification or scope of work significantly changes

If this Contract is terminated for any reason, TXDPS and the State of Texas shall not be Rable to
Contractor for any damages, claims, losses, or any other amounts arising from or related to any such
termination.
Howevar, Contractor may be entitled to the remedies provided in Texas Government Code, Chapter 2260.

HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS:
This Subsection applies i TXDPS determined that sub-contracting opportunities were probable for procurements/
contracts with an estimated value of $100,000 and over.

351 Definitions.
Forpurposes of this Section:

1

2)
3)

“Historically Underytilized Businass” or “BUB" means an entity where its principle place of
business Is In Texas and 51% or more is owned and operated by one or more economically
disadvantaged persons as defined by Texas Government Code, §2161.001, and, Texas Administrative
Code, Title 34, §20.12,

*HSP" means a HUB Subcontracting Plan.

“HUB requirements” means this section is governed as defined by Texas Government Code,
§2161.252(h) - §2161.253, and, Texas Administrative Code Title 34, §20.14.

352  HUBRequirements.

1)
2)

3)

Contractorshal submit an HSP for TXDPS's approval within its Bid response.

Contractor shall submit a report to TXDPS's contract manager and the TXDPS HUB Program
Office monthly, In the format required by the TXOPS HUB Program Office, of its use of
subcontractors (L.e., HUBs and Non-HUBs) to fulfill the subcontracting opportunities identified in the
HSP.

If the Parties amend the Agreement to include a change to the scope of work, should the TXDPS
HUB Program Office determine a probability for addilional subcontracting opportunities, the
Comtractor shall submit & HSP Change Request Form and, if applicable, a revised HSP to the
TXOPS HUB Program Office. All proposad changes to the HSP shall comply with the requirements of
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36.

37.

38,

Section 33(b), (4).

4) Contractor shall obtain prior written approval from the TXDPS HUB Program Office before making
any changes to the HSP. The proposed changes shall comply with TXDPSs HUB Program
Oftice good faith effort requirements relating to the development and submission of a HSP.

5) TXDPS's HUB Program Office shall determina if the Coniractor made a good faith eHort to
utilize HUBs for subcontracting opportunities identified in the procurement/contract as it relates to
Section 33(b), (1), (3), and (4), and, the HUB subcontracting provisions specified in the Contractor's
HSP,

6) During the term of this Contract, if the TXDPS HUB Program Office determines that the
Contractor's subcontracting activity does not demonstrate a good faith effort, the Contractor may be
subject to provisions in the Contractor Performance and Debarment Program (34 T.A.C., Part 1,
Chapter 20, SubchapterC, Rule §20.105), and subject to remedies for Breach of contract.

CERTAIN BIDS AND CONTRACTS PROHIBITED (Sec. 2155.004):

This Contract may be terminated, without penalty, by TXDPS, without cause by giving thirty (30) calendar days

written notice of such terminationto Contractor.

36.1 A state agency may not accept a Bid or award a contract that includes proposed financial participation
by a person who received compensation from the agency to participate in preparing the specifications or
requast for bids on which the Bid or contract is based.

36.2 A Bid or award subjectto the requiremants of this section shall include the following statement:

Under Section 2155.04, Government Cods, the contractor cerlifies that the Individual or business entity
named in this Bid or contract is not ineligible to recelve the specified contract and acknowledges that this
contract may be terminated and payment withheld if this certificationis inaccurate.

36.3 If a state agency determines that an individual or business entity holding a state contract was ineligible to
have this contract accepled or awarded under Subsection 37.1, the state agency may immadiately
ferminate this contract withoutturther ebligation to the contractor,

36.4 This section does not create a cause of action to contact a Bid or award of state contract. This section
does not prohibit a Bidder or contract participant from providing free technical assistance to a state agency.

APPLICABLE LAW VENUES:
This Contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The venue of any
suite arlsing under this Contract is fixed In any court of competent jurisdiction of Travis County, Texas.

OWNERSHIPANTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, INCLUDING RIGHTS TOQ DATA, DOCUMENTS AND
COMPUTER SOFTWARE:

For the purposes of this Contract, the term *Work™ is defined as aft reports, statistical analyses, work papers,
work products, materials, approaches, designs, specifications, systems, documentation, methodologies, concepts,
research, materlals, intellectual property or other propeny devsloped, produced, or generated in connection with this
Contract. All work performed pursuant to this Contract is made the exclusive property of TXDPS. All right, title and
interest in and fo said property shali vest in TXDPS upon creation and shalii be deemed to be a work for hire and
made in the course of the services rendered pursuant to this Contract. To the extent that fitie to any such work may not,
by operation of law, vest in TXDPS, or such work may not be considered a work made for hire, all rights, title and
interast therein are hereby irevocably assigned to TXDPS. TXDPS shall have the right to obtain and to hold in
its name any and alf patents, copyrights, registrations or such other protection as may be appropriate to the subject
matter, and any extenslons and renewals thereof. Contractor shall give TXDPS and/or the State of Texas, as well
as any person designated by TXDPS and/or the State of Texas, all assistance roquired to perlect the rights
defined herein without any charge or expense beyond those amounts payabie to Contractor for the services rendered
underthis Contract.

Contractor shall maintain and retaln supporting fiscal and any other documents relevant to showing that any
payments under this Contract funds were expended in accordance with the laws and regulations of the State of
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Texas, including but not limited to, requirements of the Comptroller of the State of Texas and the State Auditor.
Contractor shall maintain all such documents and other records relating to this Contract and the State’s property for
a period of four (4) years after the date of submission of the final Invoices or untll a resolution of all billing questions,
whichaver Is later. Contractor shali make available at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, and for
reasonable periods, all documents and other information related to the "Work". Contractor and the subconiractors
shall provide the State Auditor with any information that the State Auditor deems relevant to investigation or
audit. Contractor shall retain all work and other supporting documents pertalning to this Contract, for purposes of
inspecting, monitoring, auditing, or evaluating by TXDPS and any authorized agency of the State of Texas, including
an investigation or audit by the State Auditor,

Contractor shall cooperate with any authorized agents of the State of Texas and shall provide them with prompt
access lo all of such State’s work as requested. Contractor's fallure to comply with this Section shall consiitute a
material breach of this Contract and shali authorize the TXDPE and the State of Texas to immediaiely assess
appropriate damages for such failure. Pursuant to Government Code, §2262.003 the acceptance of funds by
Contractor or any other entity or person directly under this Contract, or indirectly through a suboontract under this
Contract, shall constitute acceptance of the authority of the State Auditor to conduct an audit or investigation in
sonnection with those funds. Contractor acknowledges and understands that the acceptance of funds under this
Contract shall constitute consent to an audit by the State Auditor, Comptroller or other agency of the State of Texas.
Contractor shall ensure that this paragraph concerning the State’s authority to audit funds received indirectly by
subconiractors through Contractor and the requirement to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards.
Furthermore, under the direction of the legislative audit committes, an entity that is the subject of an audit or
investigation by the State Auditor shall provide the State Auditor with access to any information the State Auditor
considers relavant to the Investigation or audit.

39. TAXES:
Purchases made for stale uses are exempt from Texas State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax. An Excise Tax
Exemption Cerificate shall be furnished upon written request.

40. SUBSTITUTIONS:
Substitutions are not permitted without written approval of the Texas Department of Public Safety,
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VENDOR MANAGED INVENTORY OF EMERGENCY MEALS

INTRODUCTION

The Texas Department of Public Safety (TXDPS), Division of Emergency Management {TDEM) is soliciting
Bids in response to this IF8 for Vendor Managed inventory of Emergency Meals {(VMIEM) to suppiy,
warehouse, and ship pre-packed, shelf-stable meals.

BACKGROUND

The federal government’s records for disaster declarations date back to 1953. Since that time, there have
been more disaster declarations for Texas than any other state or protected territory. Compounding the
frequency with which natural disasters or other hazard events impact the state are the size of the state
and the number of residents. Texas is the second-largest state in the US, both in population, with over
twenty-six million {26,000,000) residents, and in size, covering two hundred sixty-eight thousand five
hundred eighty-one (268,581) square miles, making the state larger than 4/5ths of the countries in the
werid. Due to the population, size, frequency of disasters and other emergencies known to occur within
the State of Texas the Texas Department of Public Safety TXDPS/Texas Division of Emergency
Management (TDEM} shall effectively prepare for and respond to ali-hazard events.

TOEM, a division of the TXDPS, coordinates the state’s emergency management program, which is
intended to ensure the state and its local governments respond to and recover from emergencies and
disasters and to implement plans and programs to help prevent or lessen the impact of emergencies and
disasters.

SCOPE

The purpose of this IFB is to provide sustenance to persons within the state of Texas affected by disasters
or other events. The meals shall be nutritionally sound, safe, palatable, and shelf-stable, offer variety, and
contain self-heating capabilities. These meals are intended for short term use only; they are not meant to
provide a long-term solution for persons unable to obtain or prepare meals.

TXDPS/TDEM intends to purchase a minimum of seven hundred fifty thousand {750,000} up to three
miltion {3,000,000} self-heating emergency meals. The cost of each meal shall include storage of all meals
and ancillary services by the awarded Contractor.

Payment for the meals shall be made upon proper notification that the order has been filled and invoicing
pursuant to the Texas Government Code; however, TXDPS/TDEM shall not take physical possession of the
meals until they are delivered to a location specified by TXDPS/TDEM. Until TXDPS/TDEM requests
delivery of the meals, the Contractor shall be responsible for the proper storage of the meals purchased
under this IFB. Contractor shall arrange and provide all transportation and shipping of meals issued at
TXDPS/TDEM's instruction at TXDPS/TDEM’s expense,

CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS

The Contractor shall meet the following qualifications to be considered under this IFB:

4.1  Length of Time in the VMIEM Business
Contractor shall have at least ten {10) years cof experience in providing Vendor Managed Inventory
(VMI) services for the provision of emergency meals.
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4.6
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Supgort of State and Federal Disasters

Contractor shall have provided emergency meals to a minimum of five (5) state and/or federal level
disasters.

Level of Support

Contractor shall have provided a minimum of five hundred thousand (500,000} meals, for a single
event, to federal, state, or |local entities under a VM| program.

Performance Evaluation

Contractor shall have performed the requirements noted in 4.2 and 4.3 to the satisfaction of the
supported entities. TXDPS procurement office shall verlfy these requirements by checking the
information that Contractors submit on the Verification of Experience form found under
Attachment G of the Bid package.

Delivery Abilities

Contractor shall have the ability to deliver one hundred thousand (100,000} meals anywhere in
Texas within thirty-six {36) hours of official notification from TXDPS/TDEM.

Verification of Experience

Contractor shall complete Attachment G “Verification of Experfence Form” detailing its previous
experience meeting the above qualification requirements 4.1 through 4.3 and provide information
explaining how it has met or shall be able to meet qualification requirement number 4.5.

SPECIFICATIONS OR REQUHREMENTS

5.1

5.2

53

Meals

5.1.1  All meals shall meet applicable USDA and US Department of Health and Human Services
acceptable nutritional and packaging standards.

5.1.2  Each meal shall provide a minimum of one thousand {1,000} calories.

5.1.3  Each meal shall have a minimum shelf fife of five (5) years.

5.1.4  All emirées shall include a self-heating mechanism.

Packaging

5.2.1 The packaging for each meal shall contain the required federal nutrition labeling.

5.2.2  Meals shall be packed with a minimum of four (4} varieties per case.

5.2.3  Varieties shall be evenly distributed within the case.

5.2.4  Cases shall be of sizes that are easily handled manually and able to fit in the cabin or trunk
of a standard-size automobile.

Meal Storage/Inventory Services

5.3.1  Contractor shall store all meals purchased by TXDPS/TREM in a manner that maintains
maximum shelf life, palatability, appearance, safaty, and viability of the meals.

5.3.2  Contractor shall perform all necessary warehousing and inventory services 10 effectively
manage TXDPS/TDEM's stock of meals.

5.3.3 Contractor shall provide storage and inventory services for the term of this contract that
shall Include any meal that has not reached the expiration date stamped on the product.

5.3.4  All costs for warehousing meals shall be included in the purchase cost of each meal.
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Stock Issues
If TDEM requests product for shipment or allows the Contractor to release product, the awarded
Contractor shall rotate oldest stock first using the first in first out (FIFQ) rule for dates of
expiration.

Shipping/Transportation

5.5.1 The Contractor shall handle all shipping/transportation arrangements for meals issued at
TXDPS/TDEM’s instruction and at TXDPS/TDEM's expense.

5.5.2 Contractor shall provide TDEM an estimated shipping cost at the time of TXDPS/TDEM's
instruction to ship meals.

5.5.3 Based upon the current climate conditions in the area of need within the State of Texas,
TXDPS/TDEM may reqguest that meals issued at TDEM's request shall be shipped in
refrigerated trailers. TXDPS/TDEM may request that refrigerated/non-refrigerated trailers
he left on site for storage purposes. if refrigeration is required, notification shall be made
on the order instructions.

5.5.4  Meals shall be palletized on standard forty-eight inch by forty inch (48" x 40"} wooden or
plastic pallets and wrapped in shrink wrap, to include the top of the pallet.

5.5.5 Issuance of up to one hundred thousand (100,000) meals shall be delivered to designated
site{s) within thirty-six {36) hours of official instruction. For issuances greater than one
hundred thousand (100,000} meals, the first one hundred thousand {100,000} shall meat
the thirty-six (36} hour deadline, with the remaining meals being delivered to designatéd
site(s) within time periods noted on issue instructions.

5.5.6 Starting at official notification for issuance of meals, the Contractor shali provide
tracking/status updates via e-mail to SOC@dps.texas.gov a minimum of every six (6)
hours. If given prior approval by TXDPS/TDEM, Contractor may provide alternative
tracking/status update mechanism(s).

Invoicing for Shipping/Transportation

Payment for shipping/transportation shall not be made by TXDPS/TDEM until receipt of
reimbursement funding is received from federal or state funding sources and all other invoicing
requirements are met. The awarded Contractor shall invoice TXDPS/TDEM for all shipping and
transportation costs at the conclusion of the event for which the meals are shipped. The
Contractor shall provide a Manifest and 2 Government Bill of Lading reflecting actual shipping and
transportation costs. This Contractor shall be reimbursed for actual incurred shipping and
transportation costs. TXDPS/TDEM shall provide to the Contractor an official notification of the
event conclusion and an estimated date that TDEM expects to be reimbursed for the
transportation ¢osts.

Restocking
5.7.1  The Contractor shall rotate and restock any issued but unused stock that is still viable at no
additional cost to TXDPS/TDEM.
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5.7.2 Provided TXDPS/TDEM approves the specifics of the Contractor’s restocking and
associated costs in advance in writing, Contractor shall restock in accordance with the
written instructions of TXDPS/TDEM and TXDPS/TDEM shall reimburse Contractor for
approved shipping and transportation costs to return designated meals to the Contractor
storage facility for restocking.

Stock Rotation and Replenishment

5.8.1  With prior approval of TDEM, Contractor may transfer an agreed amount of TDEM's stock
1o another entity.

5.8.2 Contractor shall rotate oldest stock first using the first in first out (FIFO) rule for dates of
expiration.

5.8.3 Contractor shall replenish TDEM's transferred or rotated stock with stock of same type
and quality. Replenished stock shall be new meals with a five (5) year shelf {ife.

5.8.4 Contractor shall repienish all transferred or rotated stock within six (6} weeks of rotation.

Inventory Reports

5.9.1 Upon order completion, this Contractor shall provide TXDPS/TDEM with an inventory
report which includes number of meals, meal variety, and expiration dates of the meals.
This inventory report shall signify the completion of the order and is therefore part of the
documentation required for payment 1o the Contractor.,

5.9.2  Contractor shall provide TXDPS/TDEM with an annual inventory report to be delivered to
the TDEM named point of contact by March 31 of each year. This report shali include the
number of remaining meals, meal variety, and expiration dates.

5.9.3 Contractor shall provide TXDPS/TDEM with an inventory report, to include number of
remaining meals, meal variety, and expiration dates any time there is a change to
TXDPS/TDEM’s stock of meals (stock issue, rotation, and/or replenishment).

5.9.4  Allinventory reports are to be deliverad via e-mail to soc@dps.texas.gov

Meal Expiration Notice
Contractor shalt provide TXDPS/TDEM with one hundred eighty (180} days’ notice of the expiration
of meal shelf-life.

Disposal of Expired Stock
If requested by TXDPS/TDEM, the Contractor shall dispose of any expired meals at no cost to
TXDPS/TDEM.

Product Recalls
Contractor shall bear all costs associated with any recalls of Contractor’s products.

On-Site Inspections

TXDPS/TDEM reserves the right to enter Contractor’s storage facility for inspection of facility and
TXDPS/TDEM stock.
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PRICING
With the exception of shipping/transportation charges, the cost of the meals shall be inclusive of the
requirements and services noted above.

CONTRACT TERM, CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Once awarded, the service period shall run frem the date of award through five (5) years, with the option
to renew for an additional five (5) year term.

If requested by TXDPS/TDEM, upon conclusion of this Contract, the Contractor shall dispose of any meals
remaining in inventory at no cost to TXDPS/TDEM.

Audited Financial Statements
Each prospective Contractor submitfing a Bid for this IFB shall include the following:

Full Dun and Bradstreet Business Information Report submitted by the Bidder, to include rating (shall be
the current report within a year).

The Bidder shall submit a copy of its two (2) most recent audited financial statements, Including financial
statements with all sub-schedules and footnotes, to inciude balance sheet, profit and loss statement,
income statement, statement of cash flows, and management letters, with findings and responses to
findings.  Failure to submit copies of the required audited financial statements may result in
disqualification.

immediately prior to execution of this Contract, and again no later than one hundred and twenty {120}
calendar days prior to any renewal Option Period under this Contract, the successful Bidder shall provide
the Department with the following:

A, At least one rating from organizations such as Dun & Bradstreet and Fitch Ratings;
B. The following information:
1. Gross Revenues
2. Net iIncome
3. Current Ratio
4, Contingent liabilities to the extent that they would materially affect gross revenues,

materially affect net income, or reduce the current ratio below 1.0.
DISQUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR’S BID RESPONSE

This IFB cannot be negotiated, No exceptions may be taken to the Texas Department of Public Safety’s
Terms and Conditions.
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ATTACHMENT B

TEXAS APPLICATION FOR PAYEE
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
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Attachment B
?...5": xsiﬁm a Por Coinptrolier's use only
Application for Texas Identification Number
« See inslructions on hack I I
1. Isthis a new nceount? ] YES  Mail Code 000 [ NO ErtermallCode o a1 Agencynumber oo
Complete Sections -5 Complete Sections 1,28 5
2. Texas identifivation Number (TIN) - Indicate the type of numbaey you are providing lo be used for your TIN
- 1 - Employer idantification Number (EIN)
c [J 2- Soclal Security number (SSN) Enter the numberindicated | 13 ,5,2,1.1,0,1.,38 [ ]
8 [.1 3 - comptroliers assignad number (FOR STATE AGENCY USE ONLY)
@ 3. Ars yau curently reporting any Texas tax to the Gomptrolier's office such as sales tax or franchise tax?
DOOvyes [Cno If*YES," enter Texas Taxpayar Number | 1. 4 2. & .1 4. b1 4. 4
Payee Information {Pleage type or print)
4. Mama of payee {indhvidual or business 1o be poid)
. Ameriquat Group LLC ,
8, Majiing address where you want to receive payments
,_____Fifth Third Bank :
| & O bo Box 633031
E [ J
§ 7. (Optonen
3 L 1
8. (Optional}
[} (]
5. City State 2P Code
. GCincinnati v O 454286, 30— 0 4
10, Payne lelephone number SIC Sacurity Zona
{Ares code ant numbar) ( 8- 11 2) L 81 6-7- 1T -1 14l 41 41 code 1 ____|typecoder_(90,1,2)jcode 0 1 1
11. Qumership Codes - Check only one code by the appropriale ownarship type that applies to you or your business,
{1 1 - individual Recipient (not ewning & business) [ L. Texas Limited Parinership:
If checkad, anter the
Texas File Number [ T S T VO TONOT T ST S W
[0 5- Sole Ownership (Individus! owning a business): i checked, [ - Texas Corporation:
enter the owner's name and Soclal Security number (SSN) IF checked, anter tha
Texas Fila Number ST Y S TR SR SN S S S T
Owner's name
[ a- Profassional Association:
58N m [ N P L it I_—i IF checked, enter the
. Taxas Flle Nurrber [’ Lk 1 Y TN T TR S SR |
-]
-% [] P- Parnership: tf checked, enter two partner's names and O - Professional Corporation:
3 Social Sacurity rumbers (SSN), ITa-partner is a corporation, if chacked, enter the
use the corporation's Employer Identification Number Texas Flle Number oo 00 0 0 0 0 gy
EEN).
&N ] 0- out-orState Corporetion
Nama m i__] [ %- Govemmentat Entity
SSN/EIN F IR SO WA WK T N T 1 D U- State agancy f University
Name C] F- Financlat institution
BEN/EIN [_1 PR SR R R W) r—l [ &- Foreign {out of U.8.A)
LLC - Indiana filing as a Partnership
(A N- Other: i checked, axplain,
=+ | 12. Paymant Assignment? [ | YES B no Note: A copy of ihe assignmen! agreement betwean payees must be atached,
[
'g, . Assignee name
@ Assignea TIN | ST SO WUVARD TR VHE T MU U SO TURI T | Assignment date Low Lo 3
w f13_Comments
£ slgn Auihorizsd signature (Apgcant or sthorited ageny Thio
g 4. hers
» Ageney nama Prépared by Fhan (Arsa cods and number)
15,
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Attachment B

5 U § AN

Application for Texas Identification Number
C OMB §

TExAs COMPTROLLER o¢f PusLIC ACCOUNTS

#iscal Managemant
Austin, TX 78774-0100

Wheo Must Submit This Application - :
This appiication must be submliied iy every parson (sole ownar, individual reciplent, parnasehip, coporation of alher organization)
wha Intends o il agencies of the state govemiment for goods, sarvices provided; fefunds, public assistance, etc. The Texas :
identification Mumbar {TIM) will be required on &l maintsnance submites by sinte agencies. The use'of this numbar on all bilings
will cadiune the e roquired to process hilings 1o the State of Texas. v

Hato: Ta eupatite procsssing of this spplication, please retum the completed sppiication o the state agency with which
you pre cenduciing husiness, N is not nacessary for the payea (o sign or compleie ipIs form. Thia atite agency
reprosartove mey compiote the fenm for the gayoe, e : :

For Asgistance - R L
For azsislanos in complating this soplication, plesse call the Texas Compirallers office &l (B00) 531-5449, éxt. B-8138. The Austin
ounbar is {512) 0389138, .

Heting (0 Sefe Agencles -
When ihis form is used (o set up adrifional med codes, Sectiens 1, 2 and 5 musi be completed. Stle Hgenwies may refer fo the
Texas identification Mumber Systam (TINS] Guide ol hiips/Amx.cpa. stale b, usAinxdpubstinsinsguids for addibonal Information,

Gonerat nsiructions -
* Do not usa dashes when entering Social Securty, Employer identification or Compinsllers assigned numbers.
v Disclosure of your Social Security sumber is requires, This disclosurs requirement has baen edopiad under the Federal Prvacy
Act of 1974 (8 LB CA. sec. S52u(notol{West 1877}, the Tax Reform Act of 1876 (42 LS C A sec, 105(cH2)(C) (Wast 1992), TEX
GOVT. CODE ANN, sz¢. 403,065 (Vemon 2005) and TEX. GOV'T. CODE ANN. sog 403 056 {Vemaon 2005). Your Sogisl Sacurity
rumber will bo used 10 hefp the Taas Comptrofiar of Public Acoounis adsnister the siale’s tasx iaws and for olher purposes
Bae Op Tex. Ally Gon, Mo, H-1258 (1978). -

%g@@g%ﬁgsmﬁ’mﬁms -

n % - Toxas identifiestion Humber

Bt For sl ownership codes other than Individust Recipient isted In Section 3, anter a 8-tigh Employer ldentification Number
(B3} issued by the Infema) Revenus Senvios,

BEM; For indhviduat Redpiant or Sele Quser withowt an EIN, enter your 8-digil Social Security number (SSN) issued by the
Saci Securily Atminisiration, )

Compireliar Assigned Number: FOR STATE AGENCY USE GRNLY. A Camptrotler Assignad Number is en 1D number that is given
to o state agency that needs to pay either a foreign enlity or a fongign Individusl who does not have an BV or SSN.

Are you currently reposting any Texas tax (o ihe Comptrolier's office such a5 szles tax of franchise tax? If "YES,” ener Texas
Taxpaysr Murnbar, :

Sactlon 2 - Payee Information
tems 4 through 8 - Enter the complete name and mailing addiess where you want paymants (0 be received. Names of
ingividuals must be entered first Rame firg, Each line connot axceed 50 characiens Including spacas. If the nams is more
than 50 charseiers, confinue the neme in llem § and begin the address in ltlem §,
ftom @ - Enter the oity, state and ZIP Code.
am 10 - Eatar payee tetephons Rumber,
BIC code, Becwity type code and Zone code: FOR STATE AGENCY USE ONLY,

Sestion 3 - Ownership Codes
ltem 11 - Chack iha box next to the appropriate cwnership code and enter additional infermation 22 requeste. Pleass check anly
ona box in this saction. The Seoreary of Stata's office may be contacied ol (512) 463-5553 for information regending Toxas
file AumBars.

Bection 4 - Poyment Assighmeant
fienm 12 - Use when ona payee is assigning payment (o anviher payes. When selling up an assgamsnt payment, il out ihis secion
compigtely nd include a capy of the assignment agreement batween the ass_igneej_f and the assignor. : :

Sactlon § - Commonts ond idemificstion . _ R T
lern 93 - Enter any additional informetion that may be hetpful in grocessing this appiicatiion. Roms 14 and 15 are for identification

purgtoses. Absays coniplete the identification saction, including comments and authorized signature.

Urettar Ch. 588, Govermenent Cada, Wmmmm m@uwmwminmﬁmwhmmﬁééémﬂm. with limited exceptions
1 groaroanes wilh Ch, $52, Govemmont Code, T0 raquest ifomnation far raview or (0 reques? émor comeetion, contact s & e address
or plaie sumibars lsted on s fom

FarmmAR-182 Mocp e 413714}
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ATTACHMENT C

REQUEST FOR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
AND CERTIFICATION
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Qive Form to the

— L Request for Taxpayer Sequesiar. BO ot
e ot o sy identification Number and Certification send to the IRS.

Intamal Revenuae Servica

Name (a3 shown on your incoma tax seturn}

Ameriqual Group LLC

Busingss name/disregarded entity nama, if diferent from above

Check appropriate box for faderal Yax ciasalfication:
[incividuatisota propristor [ © Comoratien (7] & Gomoration

[_] Cihes tsee inutictians) b

[’fl Lirnited Rabily company. Enter the tax classification {C=G comparation, S-S corpotation, P=paitnarshipi P

Exemplions (sea instructiona):
[ Pannarsip [} trust/estale
Exsmipt payas coda {f any)

Exemption trom FATCA reporting
coda (f any)

Adreas {numbar, street, and apl, or siulte no.)
18200 HWY 41 N

Requastar's name and address (opticnal)

City, state, and 2P code
Evansville, IN 47725

Print or iype
Ses Specific instructions on paga 2.

List acoount numbers) hare [opbonal)

Tanpayer Identitication Number (TIN)

TiN on page 3.

MNots. if the account is In more than one nams, seéa the chart on page 4 for guidalines on whosa

number to enter,

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TiN provided must match the name given on the “Name” tina
to avoid backep withholding, For Individuals, this ts your social sacurity number {(SSN). However, fora

res(dent afien, sole proprietor, or disregardad entity, sea the Part | instructions on page 3. For other - - _J
antitias, It is your employer identification number {EIN). If you do not have a number, sea How fo get a

Socinl sacurity number

Certification

Under penaltias of perjury, | certdy that:

1. The number shown on this form [s my comeact taxpayer identification numbar (or [ am walting for a number to be issuad to ma}, and

2. 1am nat subject to backup withholding because: (a) § am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) 1 have not been notified by the temal Revenue
Sarvice {IRS) that | am subject to backup withhoiding &s a result of a fallure to report afl interest or dividends, or (c} the IRS has notified rme that | am

no jonger subject to backup withholding, and
3. Lam a LS. citizen or ather U.S. person {defined balow), and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form §f any) indicating that § am exempt from FATCA reporting Is comact.

Certification instructians. You must cruss out item 2 above if you have been natifisd by the IRS that you are cumrently subject to backup withholding
hacause you have faited to report all intarest and dividends on your tax retum, For reat estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For morigage
Intarest pald, ecquieition or abandenment of secured property, cancetiation of debt, contributions 1o an individual retiremant amangement (iIBA), and
generally, paymants other than Interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your corract TIN. See the

Instructions on page 3.

Sign Signeture of

Hefe | U5 permont botes  0/19/14

General Instructions withholding tax on loreign pariners’ shar of eftestively connscted income, ang

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwlse noted.

Future devalopments. The IS has created a paga on IRS.gov for Information
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/wd, Information about any futura developments
aﬁs'gling Form W-8 (such as fegisialion endoted after wa retesse i) wiit ba posted
on that page.

Purpose of Form

A persan wha Is required Lo file an information rtum with the IRS must obtain your
corract 1axpayer [dantitication nunber (TIN} to repont, for exampla, Income pald o
you, paymans mads to you in setllament of paymant card and third party ratwork
transactions, real estate rensactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abanc{gTem of secured property, canceliation of debt, e contributions you imade
toan

Use Formn W-8 anly if you are a LS. person fndluding a rasident alien), to
provide your correct TIN to tha person requesting 1t {ihe requaster} and, when
applicabla, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving Is corract {or you are walting far a number
to be |ssued),

2. Certify that you are not subject 1o heckup withheiding, or

3. Claim exemption fram backup withhoiding I you ara a LS, axempi payee, If

epplicable, you are also centifying that ag a U).8. person, your allocebta shara of
any partnership Income from & U.S. trade or busingss is not sublect to the

4. Certify ihat FATCA cade(s) entered on this form (if any) indigating that you are
exempt from tha FATCA reporting, Is correct.

Nate, If you are g U.S, parson and 4 requester gives you a lom other than Form
W-8 lo request your TIN, you must use tha requestes's form If it is substantially
similar 10 (WS Form W-9,

Definition of a U.S. parson. For fedara) tax purposen, you ara considered a ULS.
persan if you an;
» Anindividual whois a U.S. citizer or U.S. regident alien,

* A parinierehip, corporation, company, or assoctation craated or organizad in the
United States or under the laws of the United Statas,

* An aatate (other than a forelgn estate), or
+ A domastic trust {as defined in Hegutations saction 301.77201-7}.

Spaclal rules for partnerships, Partnerships that conduct a rade or busingss in
the United States are generally required to pay a withtholding tax under goction
1446 on any loreign pariniers' shere of effactively connected taxable Incoms from
such business, Further, 'n certain cases wheve a Form W-8 has not been recesved,
tha rules uder section 1446 reguite & partniership (o prasuma that a partner is a
foreign person, and pay the saction 1446 withholding tax. Thorotore, i you ara a
U.B. person that is a partner in a parinership conducting a trade or business In the
Uinited States, provide Form W-8 to the partrership 1o establish your U.S. stats
and avoid section 1446 withhalding on your share of partrersh income.

Cat. No. 10231

Form W-8 Rev, 8-2013)

35




Form W-9 [Rev. B-2013}

4(35-EMD-15-B50116

Pago 2

In the cases below, the lofiowing person must give Form W-8 to the
for purposes of estab¥ishing Its U.S. status and avolding withholding on its
ailocabie share of net incoms from the partnership conducting a trade or business
In the United States:

= Inthe case of a disragarded entity with a 1.5. ownar, the U,S. ownar of tha
disregardesl antity and not the enlity,

= In the case of a granior frust with a U.S, grantor or other U.S. owner, generally,
the LL8. granier or other U.B. ownor of the grantor trust antd nat the tust, and

* |n the case of a U.S. trust {other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust {other thana
graniar trustj and nat the beneficlarias of tha st

Forelgn parson. if you re a forelgn parsan or tha t4.6. branch of a tareign benk
that has elscied to ba ireated as a U.E. pason, do not use Form W-9. ingtead, use
the appeopriate Form W-8 ar Form 8233 (saa Publication 515, Withholding of Tax
on Nenresident Allens and Forgign Entities).

Nonresident alien who bocomas a resident aen., Genarally, oy a nonresident
allen Individua) may use the tarms of & tax treatly to retice o eEminata U.S. taxan
cartair typos of income. However, mast Lix fraaties contaln a provision known as
a “saving clause.” Exceplions spedified in the saving clavss may permilt an
axemption from Lax to continue for certain typas of ncoma even after tha payes
has otherwise becoms a U.S. residant allen for tax purposes.

ff you ara a U.5. resldent alien who I8 relying on an excepton contained in the
saving clausa of a tax trealy 1o claim an axamprion from U.S. tax on centaln typeg
gf inGoMe, you must attach a alatemant to Form W-8 that spacifies the follawing
ve items;

1. Ths treaty country. Genarally, this must ba the same traaty under which you
claimed exemption from tax a5 a nonresidant allen,

2. Tha ireaty article addressing the incoma,

3, The article nuprber {or fecation) in the tax frealy that contains the saving
clauge and It excaptiona.

4. The type and amount of Income that qualifles for the axemption from tax.

8. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption trom tax undor the temms of the teaty
arlicia,

Exampla. Arlicte 20 of iha U.S.-China income Lax treaty atfows an exemption
friom tax for schetarship income recelved by a Chinese student temporarily present
In the United States. Under U8, iaw, thig student will become a resident allen for
tax purposas if his or her slay in the United States exceatls 5 celondar yesrs.
However, paragraph 2 of tha firat Protocod to the U.S.-China treaty (datad Apri 30,
1884) allows the provisions of Articls 20 \o continue to apply evan afier the
Chiness student becomes a resident allen of the United Stales, A Chinsse studam
who qualifies for (s exception mder paragraph 2 of the first protocol) end Is
reiying on this axception te clalm an exernption from tax an his or har scholarship
or fefiowship incoma woud attach to Form W-2 a statement that Includes the
Informatign descrbed above 10 support thal exemptlon,

H you ora & nonrastdant allen of a forelgn entlty, give the requestar the
apfropriate complated Form W-B or Foimm 8233,

What s backup withholding? Persans making certzin payments (o you rmust
undar certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS a parcentags of such
paymanis, This |5 called “backup withholding.” Paymants that may ba subject to
backup withholding include interast, tax-exsmp Intarest, dividends, broker ang
barter exchange transactions, rents, royaltias, nonemployas pay, payments made
In satiiement of payment card and third party network trangactions, and cestain
payments fram fishing boat operators. Real ostate transacdong are not subjact to
backup withiholding.

You wilf not ba subject 1o backup withholding an payments you receive If you

five the requester your comect TiN, male the proper certifications, and report all
your taxahia interest and dividends on your tax raturn,

Paymenis you receive will bs subject to backup
withholding if:

. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2 You do not aeriify your TiN whan required (sen tha Part Il Instructions on page
3 far details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you fumighed an ingoract TIN,

4, The IRS tells you that you are subiect to backup withhalding becatiss you did
not renort all your Interast and dividends on your tax retum {lor veportable intarast
and dividends only), or

5. You do nol cenlfy to the requester $hat you are not subject to backup
withtoiding under 4 abova (lor reportatde interast and dividend accounts opered
alter 1983 onlyl.

Cengln payses and payments ere exempt frem backup withhalding, See Exempt
payse cede on page 3 and the separata Instructions for the Requester of Form
W-8 for more information.

Also seo Speclal ules for partnarships on page 1.
¥hat in FATCA reporling? The Forelgn Accaunt Tax Compliance Act {FATCA)
retjuiras a participating foreign financial institution to repon ai United States
actount hotders that are specified United Stales pergons. Cartaln payaes ara
axampt from FATCA raporting. See Exemption from FATCA meporting code on
page 3 and tha Instructions for ihe Requester of Fonm W-P far mora information.

Updating Your information

You must provida updated information o any person a3 whom you claimad to be
an exempl payee If you are 1o longer an exemnt payee and anticipate receiving
reportabie payments in th fulure from this person. For exampls, you may need 1o
provide updated Infonmation if you are a C corporation that dlecls tobe an 8
corporation, of if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must fumish a new
Farmt W-8 if tha name or TIN changes for tha account, for axample, (I the grntor
of a grantor trust digs.

Penalties

Fallure to fumish TIN. i you falf to fumish your carract TIN to a requester, you are
subject 1o a penalty of $50 for each such failure unlass your faliure is due to
msasonatsle cause and not 4o wilii naglost,

Civil penalty for false information with raspoct to withholding. i you maks a
falsa statemant with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding,
yau are subject 10 4 $500 penaity.

Criminal penaily for falslylng information, Willlully falsifying certificailons or
affirmations may subjact you to criminal penaltlies including Yines and/or
imprisonment.

Mitsusa of TiNs. If the requester disclosat or uses TINS in violation of tataral law,
the requestar may be subject to civil and criminal penalties,

Specific Instructioens

Name

If you are an Individual, you must gensratly enter the name shown on your Incoma
tax return. However, H you have changad your last name, for instance, due 1o
maniage without informing tha Soclal Secunty Administration of tha name change,
enter your first name, the (ast name shown on your secial aacurity card, and your
new last nama.

i the account is in Jeint names, fist first, and then circle, the name of the persan
or enthy whoga number you entsred in Part | of the form.

Sola propriator, Entar your individus! nama as shown of your income 1ax ratum
on tha “Nams" line. You may entsr your business, Irade, or *duing business es
{DBA)" name on the “Business name/disregarded anlity nama” line.

Partnerghip, C Comporation, or S Corporation. Enter #he entity's name on the
"Name" line and any buginess, trada, or *dalng business as (DBA} name” on the
“Business nama/disregarded sntity name” lina.

Disregarded ontity, For LLS. federal tax pupasses, an entity thal 1s disregarded as
an anlity aeparate from its owner i treatad as a “disregarded entity.”. See
Ragulation seotion 301.7701-2{cH2)H). Enter the ownér's name on the *Nams"
lina, Tha nama of the entity entersd an tha *Name® ine showdd never be a
digregerded enfity, The name on the “Nams" ine must be the name shown an the
income tax ratum on wiich the invome shoutd ba reparted, For examplo, if 3
foreign LLC that Is traated an a disregarded entity for U.5. foderal tax purposes
hag a eing'a owner that is a U.S, person, the U.S, owner's name Is required 1o e
provided on the “Name” Hne, i the ditact owner of the entity Is also & disragarded
entity, enter tha first owner that Is not disregarted for fedaral tax purposss. Enter
the disregardaed entity's nama on the “Business name/disregarded entity nams"
ling. {f the owner of tha disregarded entity & a lorslgn persen, tha owner must
complsta an appropriate Form W-B instead of 8 Form W-8. Thin Is the cass even if
1hin forefgn person has g U.S. TIN.

Hota, Chack the appropriate box for the U.S. federal tax clasalfication of the
paron whaee nama is entered on the “Nams” fing {individual/sols propristor,
Pannership, C Carporation, § Corporation, Trust/astata).

Kimitecl Labliity Company {LLC). IF the parson identified on the “Nama” [inais an
LLG, check the “Limited lixbiity company” box only and enter the appropsate
cote for the U.S, federal tax classification in the space provided. If you ara an LLC
that is traated 88 a partriarehip for U.B. federal tax purposes, enter *B* for
partrrership, If you are an LLC ihat has fled a Form 8832 or a Form 2653 to be
laxed a5 & corporation, enter “C* for G comoration or “S™ for § cerparation, &8
approprate. It you are an LLC that s disregarded ag an entity separate fom its
ownar under Regulalion section 301,7701-3 {exvent for employment and exclse
tax}, do ot check the LLC baox unless the owner of the LLE (required to be
igantifed an the "Name™ kne) i3 another L1.C that s not dissegarded for U.S,
federal tax putposas. If the LLC is disreganded as an entity separate from ita
oh\?nar. Etli“nﬂ ihe appropriate tax classification of the owner igentifisd on the
“Narmne” tine.

Qther antitios, Entar your business nama s shown on required U.S, faderal tax
docurments on the “Name” line, This name should match the name shown on the
charter or other lagal docurtent creating the entity, You may enter any businass,
trade, or DBA name on the "Businase name/disregarded entity name” 'ne.

Exempiions

It you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the
Examptions box, any code{s) that may apply to you, Sea Exempt payee coda and
Examption from FATCA reporting cota on page 3.
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Page 3

Exemyt payoo code. Goneeally, individuats (including sofe proprstors} are nst
arempt from backup withholding. Corporstions are srempt from beckup
withhalding for ceriain payrments, tuth as interest and dividends, Corpocalions are
not axempt irom baskup withholding for paymanls made In setilemant of payment
card or ¥hird party network transactions.

Note. |f you are axampt from backup withholding. you should il complete this
tonm 10 avold possibla erronacus hackup withholding,

The fofowing codes dantily payess thal ara exempt fram backup withhelding;

1-—An arganization exempt from tax undar saction 501(a), any IRA, ora
custodial secount unter section 403{b){7}  the account sallsfies the requiremenis
of gection 401{1H2)

2—The United States tr any of Its agencles orinstrurmentaiities

3--A atats, the Distrivt of Columbia, & possession of the United States, or any of
their paliticat subdivisions or Instrumentallliss

4-—A forelgn govemment or any of Its pofiticat subdivisions, agencles, or
nstumentalities

5~ A corporation
B—A dealer in securllies er commaditiss required 10 register In the Linited
Statas, the Disyrict of Columbla, or # possession of the Unfted States

7—A futures commission merchant registered with the Gomtmodity Futures
Teading Comerigsion

B—A ron) ostats invesiment trugt

89— An anlity registered at ali thmes dudry the 1ax yaar undar the Investment
Gompany Act of 1040

10—A gommon trust fund operatad by a bank under section 584(a)
11~A financial nstitution

12— A middieman known [n the Investment community as a remines or
custodian

13— A trust axempt from tax under section 664 or describad in section 4947

Tha following chart shows types of payments that may be axempt from backup
withholding. The chart applias (o the exempt payses lsted above, 1 through 13,

4 the paymantisfor ... THER the payment is axempt for .. .

Interast and dividurad payments .:.Il ?mt payass except
or

Broker fransactions Exsmpt payees 1 through 4 and 6
thraugh 11 and afl G comorations, 5
corporetions nust ROt anter an exempt
payes code bacausa thay are exempt
onty for sales of noncoverad sacurities
acqulved prior to 2012,

Baster michange \rensagtions and Exempt payaes 1 through 4

parenaga dividends

Paymssts over $600 required to bo Qenerally, axempt payaes

reportsd and direct eales over 85.000° | 1 through 57

Payments made in settternent of
paymant caxg or third party natwork
liansactions

Exempl payasg 1 thrgugh 4

' See Form 1088-MISC, Miscellansous Income, and Its Ingtructions,

*However, the faiowing paymerts made to 4 sotporation and reportable on Form
1088-MISC ara not exompt from backup withholding: madieal and health care
paytnants, atlomays’ fees, gross proceeds pald to an attomey, and payments for
services pald by a fadaral executive agency.

Examption from FATGA reporitng code. Tho following codas identify payees

that are axemypt from raporting unda FATCA. Thase codes apply lo parsons

submitiing fhis fom for acesunts malntained outside of the Unitad States by
certaln torgign inancial institutions. Therefore, i you are only gubmitling this form
far an acceunl you hold In the United States, you may leave this Beld Hank,

Caongult withy 1ha person requasting this form if you are uncertain If the financha!

nstitution Is subject to thess requiremants.

A-~An argantzation exsmpt from tax under saction 501{a) or any Individual

retirament plan as defined in section 7701{a)}a?)

B—Tha Unitad States ar ety of its agencies or Instrumentaties
G- state, the District of Colutnbia, a possession of the United $tates, or any
of thefr pofitical subdivislong or stumantaliies

D—A cerporation the stock of wiich [s regutarly traded on ong or mora
establighed securities markels, as descdoed in Reg. section 1.1472-1(cHI))

E—A corporation that ts & mamber of the same expanded affillated group as a
coeporation described in Reg. section 1,1472-1(eH1}{}

F—A dealer in sacuritles, commedities, or darivative financial Instrunents
{ineluding notional princip contracts, kutures, forwards, and options) that is
registered ag such under the laws of the United States or any stata

G—Aresl astale Investment trust

H—A regulatad invagiment company a defined in section 854 or an enlity
registened at all times during the 1ax year under the (nvestment Company Act of
1840

l-A common trust fund as defined In section 584{a)

J=—A bank as defined in section 589

K=-A broker

LA trust axempt from tax under Section 664 or described In section 494 7K1
M--A tax exempt Irust under a saction £03(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Part . Texpayer identification Number (TN}

Enter your TIN in the appropriste box, i you are a resident alian and you do niot
have and are not oligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS Individual taxpayer
identification numbar {ITIN). Enter [t In tha soclal security number box. If you do not
have an 1TiN, sga How to gat & TIN bhelow.

If yau are a scle praprigtor and you have an EIN, you may anter either your S6N
ar EiN, Howevar, the IRS prafers that yau use your SSN.

¥ you are a single-member LLG that is disregarded as an entity ssparata from ite
owner (sea Limfed Lishitly Company (LG} on page 2}, antes tha owrer's SSN (or
EIN, if tha pwrier has one}. 0o no! enter the disragarded entity's EIN, If tha LLG is
classified a8 a corporaticn or parinarship, enter the entity's EIN.

Nota. Sea the chart on pege 4 for further elerification of nama and TIN
combinations.

How ko gat a TiM, If you do not have a TIN, apply for one Immediately. To apply
for an 88N, get Form 55-5, Application for a Bocial Seturity Card, from your lacal
Eaclal Security Administrakion office or get this farm online at wiww.ssa.gov. You
may also gal s form by caling 1-800-772-1213. Uss Form W=7, Application for
IRE individuat Taxpayer dentification Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form 554,
Appiication far Employer identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply
for an EIN onlina by accessing the RS wabsite at www.ira.gov/businesses and
clicking an Employer Identification Nurmber (EIN) under Starting a Business. You
can get Forms W-7 and 55-4 from the RS by vighing IRS.gov ar by calling 1-800-
TAX-FORM (1-BUD-829-3876).

It you are asked to complete Form W-8 bul do not have a TN, apply far a TIN
and write “Appited For” in the apace for the TIN, ign and date the fam, and give it
to the requester. For Intarest and dividend payments, and certain payments made
with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get
2TIN and give il to the mgquester before you ara subject to Backup withhoiding on
paymants. The 80-cfay sule does rot apply ta other types of paymants. You will e
s'l‘mieci le backug withholding on all such payrmants unth you provide your TiN to
1he requestar.

Note. Eptaring “Applied For* means that you have already applied for a TiN or that
youintsnd to apply for one soon,

Cautton: A disreg 118, aritlly that has a foreign ewner must use the
sppropriate Form W-5,

Part Il. Certification

Ta establish 1o tha withholding agent that you ara a U.S. parson, or resident atien,
sign Form W-9, You may ba raquested to slgn by the withholding agent even If
therwise,

itetis 1, 4, or 5 helow Indicats o

Fuar a joint account, only tha persen whose TIN is shown in Pert | shouid Blgn
{when reguirad), i tha case of a disregarded entity, the person identifled on the
“Nama” Tine must sign. Exempt payees, sea Exemp! payves code enrfler,
Sigrature requiremants. Complate the certification as Indicated in items 1
throtigh 5 balow,

1. Intarest, dividend, and barter axchange nccounts opened before 1884
and broker actaumits considored active diting 1883, You must give your
comect TIN, but yau do not have 1o sign the certificatian.

2. Interast, dividend, brokar, and berter axchange sccounts openad after
1583 and broker acoounis cunsidered inactive during $883. Yau must sign the
cartification or backup withhatding wil! apply, H you are subject to backup
withholding and you ara mersly providing your commcl TIN to the ragugstor, you
must cross out ltem 2 in the cartification batare signing the form,

. Real astate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out
itern 2 ot the certification,

4. Othar paymants, You rmust give your comact TIN, but you do not have to sign
the cerlifization urless you have been notifled that you tave previously gives an
incorrect TIN, "Qthar payments™ inciuda paymants made n the course of the
requaster’s frade or businass for rents, royalties, goods {other than billg for
merchandise), madical and health cars sarvices (inciuding payments to
cofporetions), payments to & nonemployes for services, paymants made in
sattlement of payment card and third party natwork transactions, payments to
certain fistung boat crew members and flsharmen, and gross proceads pald 1o
attemeys dncluding payments to carporations),

5. Mortgage intorect pald by you, acquisikion or shandonmant of secured
property, cancallation of dabt, quallfied tuitlon program payments (undar
saction 523}, IRA, Coverdall ESA, Archier MSA or HSA contributions or
distributions, and penglon distributions, You muat give your comect TIN, bul you
do not hava to sign the certification,
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Paga 4

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

Note, f no nurne s elrclad when more than one nama is ksted, tha numbar witl be
considered 1o ba that of 1ha 5Srst name listed.

For this typa of account: Bive ngrmo and SEN of:
1 Indrerduel The indidua) Secwre Your Tex Records from identity Yheft
2, Two or more Individuals jolnt The aciual owner of the accalint or, Identity thaft occurs whan someona usas your perganal information such as your
acgount) it combined funds, the first name, Social secuiity numbor (SSN), or other identifying intormation, without your
individual on the account ' permission, to commit fraud or other crimes, An identity thief may use your SSN to
got a job or may #le a tax retum vsing your S$N o recaive a rafund,
3. Gustodlan account of a minor The minor’ Ta red isk:
fUnifarm Gift to Minors Act) @ reduce your s
4. a. The usual ravocable gavings ‘he grantor-truates * * Protect your S5N,
trust (gm{nor 15 also trutstee) *® Engure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
b. So-called trust accoun that (s ¢ -
ot & logal or valld st undar The actual owner = Be careful when choosing a tax preparer,
stale law m;'ufaos"r oo :md 1 %?fwaaﬂal‘gﬁabm a%lgggni:‘guwgar ‘me: 'I;:ﬁlﬁ: :r;g!
5. So{ﬁy pmnda%%mhlp ar dlsm%amad The ownar * notice g'f'm,w, 9 Y moer pr
entity ownad by an individu
H your tax recerds ara nat cumently atfected by identity theit bt you think you
6. ‘ES".J%%?.E:E"JSSSL?‘EL’EQ” he grantor* are a;&lak due 1o & [ost of stolen pusss or wallat, quastionabie creoi card acinity
Regulation section 1.671-2{bHZHAN g‘r’f?“ ; ‘:égam conhtact tha IRS ldentity Theft Holking at 1-800.008-4480 or submit
For this type of account: Give nams and EIN of: Far more infarmation, sse Publication 4535, Identity Thekt Prevention and Victim
7. Dismpganded antity not owned by an | Tho owner Assistance,
individual Victims of identity thelt who are expariencing econamis hiarm or a sysiem
£&. A valld lrust, estate, or pension trust | Legal entily * probiem, or are sasking help In br:ag;img lfax ?_rnblams that have "3.5&'?”” r;:%ulvad
through nomel channals, may bie for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS)
e g oy | T Coporation BESISNENGA. You can reach TAS by caling the TAS tofl-Iee case Intake line at
Farm 2563 1-877-777-4776 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4058,
, Protect yourself from suaplcious omalls or phishing schemes. Phishing Is the
1o &ﬁ‘mﬁ"ﬁ&ﬂg@%mﬂr The organization craation and use of emall and websites designed fo mindc legitimata business
tax-axampt organizatlon amalls and websites. Tha most common act is sending an emal lo a user falsely
clalming to be an estabiished legiimate snterprise in an attempt to scam the user
1. Partngrship or muitl-mamber LIC | The partnership Inte surmndering private infarmation that wil bo used lor Identity that.
12 A broker of registered nominea Tha broker or nurinice The IRS does not Initiate coptacts with taxpayars via emalts. Afso, the RS doss
13. Account with the Departrment of The prblic entity not request persanal detaited information through email or ask taxpayers for the
Agricultura in the name of a public PIN numbers, passwords, or simitar secret ascers information for thalr credit card,
entity (such as a state or loeal bank, or other Ananclal accounts,
govemment, schaol district, or If you receive an unsollcited emzi claiming to b from the IRS, forward this
prison) that receives agrisutiural message to phishingirs.gov. You may also report misusa of the IRS name, fogo,
program payments or other IRS propsny to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration at
14. Grantor trust filing undar tha Form | The trust 1-B00-366-4484, You can forward suspicious smalls to the Federal Trade
1041 Fliing Method or tha Optionat Comimisslan at: spam@uce.gov o sontast them at www.fc.gov/idihef or 1-877-
Form 1084 Filing Method 2 {ses IDTHEFT (1-B77-438-4338),
Regulation gection 1.671-4(I{2}HB}) Vislt IRS.gov 1o feam more about Idantiy theft and how 1o reduce your risk.

!Iiutwmdchbthunwneofhmunwhmamnnf

{oint account haa an BEN, Mt pamson's numbar must ba fum
? Glrcia e iminos*a naime and Runish the mbro's 85X,

you fumnish. i onlfy ona parscnon a4
Iahad,

*You must show yeur ndividual nete and you may afso entor your buskss or “DBA® nzne on
the *Business name/diregardad erlity” name fne. You may use &lthar your SEN or EIN (i your
hava ona), but the IRS encoumgss you bg use your SSN.

‘Lmtlmlmdoknhﬂmmmnotmawﬂ.mdn.wpembnm.u)ommmﬁuﬂNdﬂw
parsonat reproseniative or irustee unfacs the legal anthy iselt is not designated intha Reeount
1itfe.} Also tee Speihl siles for partitarships on pagy 1,

*Noto. Grentor also must provida & Form W-9 to ttustes of frust,

Privacy Act Motice

Sectlon 6108 of the internal Revenus Code requisaa you to provide your comect TIN to persons (Including fedaral agencies) who are required to flle infarmation ratums with
ihe IRS to report interant, dividends, or certain othar Incoma pald to you; morigage inferes! you pald; the acquisition or abandonmant ol secured proparty; the cancellation
of dhaby; ar contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The parson gallecting this form uses Ihe information on the form 15 Blg nformation retums with the IRS,
reporting the shova infarmation. Foutine uses of this inforsation Include giving # to ths Departmen: of Justice for civil ang criminaf {itigation and to cities, states, the District
oi Columbia, and U.8. cormmonwealths and posseassions for use In adminigtering their kaws. The infermation also may ba disciosed to other couniries under a treaty, to
factared and state agencles to entorce vl and criminal lawa, or to federal law enforcement and intalligance agentcles 10 combat temosim. You must pravide your TEN
whether or not you are required to Rl a tax seturn, Under section 3406, payars must generaliy withhotd a pefcanlaﬁa of taxable inteneat, dividend, and certaln other
paymants {0 a payea whao doss not give & TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may aiso apply for providing fatse or fradulent informanion,
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e {Revd14116)

Diract Deposit Authorization
This form may be used by vendors, individual recipients or state employses fo recelve payments

from the state of Texas by direct deposit or fo change/cancel existing direct deposit information.

Transaction Type

405-EMD-15-B50116

For Gomplrofier's Use Only

|

SECTION 1

(R New selup (Sechions 2, 3, 53nd 6)
-] Change financial institulion (Sections 2, 3, 4, 5and &)
[} Change zecount number (Sections 2, 3, 4, 5and 6)

[} Change account type (Sections 2, 3, 4 Sand 6)
(7] Cancellation {Sections 2 and & - Sections 7 and 8 for state agsncy use)

Payee Identification

If "YES," also complefe the ACH (Direct Deposit) Payment Destination Confirmafiop (Form ?4—22?’}

Payee lype [] Texas Identification Number (TIN} L] individual Taxpayer identification Number (TN | Mall code (If nat kngwn,
~ ] ﬁta{e employee [ Employer [dentification Number (EIN) 25.21 10123 8 ieave biaic)
z & vender of ofher recipient [ Soctal Secunty Number (SSN)* (38 - PSS C
F'.. Payaaname Phone number
% Ameriqual Group LLC dba Ameriqual Packaging 812-867-1444 ot 245
KMaihing address. Caty . Stale ZIP cada
18200 HWY 41 N Evansvilie 47725
New Account Information {Setups and Changes) {Complefion by financial instittion is recommended.)
Finsncialinsiulion mamse Hy . Hale
Fifth Third Bank Evansville IN
¢ | Rouling transi number {9 digils) Customes aceournl number (mavimum 17 charsclers) Type of accaunt
- -1 g 8 90 73 § . .
é : |B|6|31 1 0 04| |i| 19191 bl |_111 AR U N M S R W S (AlChecking [ Savings
3 | Financial representalive nurma ruptma{} Tillo fopional} . .
@ 1ason Fisher Vtce’%resmant - Commercial
Financiat mpresenialive signatum (opfonaf) Phene number fopdonal Dae {oplianai}
812-456-3153 ext.
Existing Atcount information (Changes Only)
5 Routing fransit rumber (@ digis) Customer accound number (imaximum 17 characlers) ‘Type of account
-8 TN PN A S TURE N WU TR TR TN T N YOO SR TN SO SHUNL TN SRS SUNT N W N NS S O | [JChecking ] Savings
international Payments Verification (rsquired)
8 Will ihese payments be forwarded to a finandial institution outside the United States?.......ocmecmereinssins e 7] YES Fino
Ll
@

Authorization for Setup, Changes or Canceliation (required)

SECTION G

1 authorize this Texas Complroller of Public Accounts to deposil my payments from the state of Texas te my financial institution electronically.
{ understand ihat the Texas Gomptrolier of Public Accounts will reverse any paymenis made to my account i error,
| further undersiand that the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts will comply at all times with the National Autemated Clearing House Association’s
rules. {For fudher informaation on these ndes, please contact your financial instifution.)

sign
here

Authonzed sigratitre

Panled namo

Drali=

Canceliation by Agency (for state agency use)

SECT

Ressen

bate

Ay

tharizeq//ﬁgnatuﬁe (for state agency usa)

SECTION 8

80 L5 s M ey 31 )14
Wg&*m-ww ox 245

Please refurn your completed form fo:
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Form 74-178 (Back){Rev.4-14/18)

Instructions for Direct Deposit Authorization

You have certain rights under Chaplers 552 and 559, Govemment Code, {o review, request and correct information we have on
file about you. To request information for review or to request error correction, use the contact information on this form.

Section 1: Transaction Type

Select the appropriate transaction type(s).

Section 2: Payee Identification

Select payee type, provide the Texas Identification Number (TIN), Employer Identification Number (EIN)
Social Security Number (SSN)* or Individua! Taxpayer [dentification Number (ITIN) and enter payee
contact information.

*Eederal Privacy Act Statement

Disciosure of your Social Secunly number is required and authorized under faw, for the purpose of tax administration and identifica-
tion of any indiwdual affected by applicable faw, 42 U.S.C. sec. 405(c}{2HC)D; Texas Govl, Code Sections 403.011, 403,056, and
403.078. Release of information on this form in response to a public information request will be govemed by the Public Information
Act, Chapter 552, Government Code, and applicable federal law.

Section 3: New Account Information (Needed for setups and changes)

Completion by financial institution is recommended.

Important: Your direct deposit account information may be different from the account information printed
on your checks. It is recommendad that you contact your financial institution to confirm your direct deposit
account information.

Prenote Test

A prenote test will be sent to your financial institution for the account information provided. The prenote
test is for a period of six banking days, and it is sent to your financial institution to verify your account
information. If no further action is required by your financial institution, your direct deposit instructions will
become effective when the six banking day prenote time frame has expired.

Section 4: Existing Account Information (Needed for changes to existing account information)

When requesting a change to your existing direct deposit account information, you must complete Section
4 with the existing account information for verification purposes. This measure will help the paying state
agency verify accuracy of the requested change.

Any change to banking infermation begins a prenote test period. See explanation in Section 3, above.

Section 5: International Payments Verification

Check "YES" or "NQ" to indicate if direct deposit payments to the account information designated in
Section 3 of this form will be forwarded to a financial institution outside the United States. If "YES " also
complete the ACH (Direct Deposit} Payment Destination Confirmation (Form 74-227).

Section 6: Authorization for Setup, Changes or Canceliation

Must be completed in its entirety, and no alterations to the authorization language will be accepted.

For State Agency Use

Section 7: Cancellation by Agency

Provide reason for cancellation request

Sectlon 8: Authorized Signature

For state agency use only.
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ATTACHMENT E

DRAWINGS

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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ATTACHMENT F

WAGE RATES

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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ATTACHMENT G

VERIFICATION OF EXPERIENCE FORM
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ATTACHMENT H

HUB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN
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HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB) PARTICIPATION

in accordance with Texas Government Code §2161.252, a proposal that does not
contain a HUB Subconiracting Plan (HSP) is non-responsive and will be rejected
without further evaluation. In addition, if the Department determines that the HSP
was not developed in good faith, it will reject the proposal for failing to comply
with material IFB specifications.

1 introduction

The Department is committed to promoting full and equal business opportunities for
businesses in state contracting in accordance with the goals specified in the State of
Texas Disparity Study. The Department encourages the use of Historically Underutilized
Businesses (HUBs) through race, ethnic and gender-neutral means.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code §2161.181 and §2161.182, and the Department’s
HUB policy and rules, the Department is required to make a good faith effort to increase
HUB participation in its contracts. The Department may accomplish the goal of
increased HUB participation by contracting directly with HUBs or indirectly through
subcontracting opportunities.

2 Department’s Administrative Rules

The Department has adopted the CPA's HUB rules as its own. The Department's HUB
rules are located in Title 37, Part 1, Chapter 1, Subchapter U, Rule §1.261 of the Texas
Administrative Code, and the CPA rules are located in Title 34, Part 1, Chapler 20,
Subchapter B. If there are any discrepancies between the Department’s administrative
rules and this IFB, the rules shall take priority.

3 HUB Participation Goal

The CPA has established statewide HUB participation goals for different categories of
contracts in 34 T.A.C. §20.13. In order to meet or exceed the HUB participation goals,
the Department encourages outreach to certified HUBs. Contractors shall make a good
faith effort to include certified HUBs in the procurement process.

This contract is classified as, All Other Services contract under the CPA rule, and
therefore has a HUB Annual Procurement Utilization Goal of 24.6% per fiscal year.

4 Required HUB Subcontracting Plan

In accordance with Government Code, Chapter 2161, Subchapter F, each state agency
that considers entering into a contract with an expected value of $100,000 or more over
the life of the contract (including any renewals) shall, before the agency solicits bids,
proposals, offers, or other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether
subcontracting opportunities are probable under the contract.

In accordance with 34 T.A.C. §20.14(a}.(1}.(C) of the HUB Rules. State agencies may
determine that subcontracting is probable for only a subset of the work expected to be
performed or the funds to be expended under the contract. If an agency determines that
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subcontracting is probable on only a portion of a contract, it shall document its reasons
in writing for the procurement file.

The Department has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable for this
IFB. As a result, the respondent must submit an HSP with its proposal. The HSP is
required whether a respondent intends to subcontract or not.

In the HSP, a respondent must indicate whether it is a Texas certified HUB. Being a
certified HUB does not exempt a respondent from completing the HSP requirement.

The Department shall review the documentation submitted by the respondent to
determine if a good faith effort has been made, in accordance with solicitation and HSP
requirements. During the good faith effort evaluation, The Depariment may, at iis
discretion, allow clarifications or enhancements to information submitted with the HSP.

If the Department determines that the respondent's HSP was not developed in good
faith, the HSP will be considered non-responsive and will be rejected as a material
failure to comply with the advertised specifications. The reasons for rejection shall be
recorded in the procurement file.

5 CPA Centralized Master Bidder’s List

Respondents may search for HUB subcontractors in the CPA’s Ceniralized Master
Bidders List (CMBL) HUB Directory, which is located on the CPA’s website at
hitpJ//wwwe.cpa.state.tx. us/cmbl/ecmblhub.htmi.  For this procurement, the Department
has identified the following class and item codes for potential subcontracting
opportunities:

NEGP Class/Tiem Code: 805-16

Respondents are not required to use, nor limited to using, the class and item codes
identified above, and may identify other areas for subcontracting.

- The Department does not endorse, recommend nor attest to the capabilities of any
company or individual listed on the CPA’'s CMBL. The list of certified HUBs is subject to
change, so respondents are encouraged to refer to the CMBL often to find the most
current listing of HUBs.

6 HUB Subcontracting Procedures — If a Respondent Intends to Subcontract
An HSP must demonstrate that the respondent made a good faith effort to comply with
the Department's HUB policies and procedures. The foliowing subparts outline the items
that the Department will review in determining whether an HSP meets the good faith
effort standard. A respondent that intends to subcontract must complete the HSP to
document its good faith efforts.

6.1 identify Subcontracting Areas and Divide Them into Reasonable Lots

A respondent should first identify each area of the contract work it intends to
subcontract. Then, to maximize HUB participation, it should divide the confract
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6.2

6.3

6.4

405-EMD-15-B50116

work into reasonable lots or portions, to the extent consistent with prudent
industry practices.

Notify Potential HUB Subcontractors

The HSP must demonstrate that the respondent made a good faith effort to
subcontract with HUBs. The respondent's good faith efforts shall be shown
through utilization of all methads in conformance with the development and
submission of the HSP and by complying with the following steps:

6.2.1  Divide the contract work into reasonable lots or portions to the extent
consistent with prudent industry practices. The respondent must
determine which portions of work, including goods and services, will be
subcontracted.

6.2.2  Use the appropriate method(s) to demonstrate good faith effort. The
respondent can use either method(s) 1, 2, 3, or 4:

Method 1: Respondent intends to Subcontract with only HUBs:

The respondent must identify in the HSP the HUBs that will be utilized and
submit written documentation that confirms 100% of all available subcontracting
opportunities will be performed by one or more HUBs; or,

Method 2: Respondent Intends to Subcontract with HUB Protégé(s):

The respondent must identify in the HSP the HUB protégé(s) that will be utilized
and should:

e Include a fully executed copy of the Mentor Protégé Agreement, which must
be registered with the CPA prior to submission to the Depariment, and

e ldentify areas of the HSP that will be performed by the protégé.

The Department will accept a Mentor Protégé Agreement that has been entered
into by a respondent {mentor) and a certified HUB (protégé) in accordance with
Texas Government Code §2161.065. When a respondent proposes to
subcontract with a protégé(s), it does not need to provide notice to three (3) HUB
vendors for that subcontracted area.

Participation in the Mentor Protégé Program, along with the submission of a
protégé as a subcontractor in an HSP, constitutes a good faith effort for the
particular area subcontracted to the protégé; or,
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6.5

6.6
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Method 3: Respondent Intends to Subcontract with HUBs and Non-HUBs
{Meet or Exceed the Goal):

The respondent must identify in the HSP and submit written documentation that
one or more HUB subcontractors will be utilized; and that the aggregate
expected percentage of subcontracts with HUBs will meet or exceed the goal
specified in this solicitation. When utilizing this method, only HUB subcontractors
that has existing contracts with the respondent for five years or less may be used
to comply with the good faith effort requirements.

When the aggregate expected percentage of subcontracts with HUBs meets or
exceeds the goal specified in this solicitation, respondents may also use non-
HUB subcontractors; or,

Method 4: Respondent Intends to Subconiract with HUBs and Non-HUBs
(Does Not Meet or Exceed the Goal):

The respondent must identify in the HSP and submit documentation regarding
bath of the following requirements:

e Written notification to minority or women trade organizations or development
centers to assist in identifying potential HUBs of the subcontracting
opportunities the respondent intends to subcontract.

Respondents must give minority or women trade organizations or
development centers at least seven (7) working days prior to submission of
the respondent's response for dissemination of the subcontracting
opportunities to their members. A list of minority and women trade
organizations is located on the CPA’s website under the Minority and Women
Oroanization link.

e Written notification to at least three (3} HUB businesses of the subcontracting
opportunities that the respondent intends o subcontract. The written notice
must be sent to potential HUB subcontractors prior to submitting proposals
and must include:

o a description of the scope of work to be subgontracted,

o information regarding the location to review project plans or
Specifications,

o information about bonding and insurance requirements,

o required qualifications and other contract requirements, and

o A description of how the subcontractor can contact the respondent.

Respondents must give potential HUB subcontractors a reasonable amount
of time to respond to the notice, at least seven (7) working days prior to
submission of the respondent's response unless circumstances require a
different time period, which is determined by the agency and documented in
the contract file;
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Respondents must also use the CMBL, the HUB Directory, and internet
resources when searching for HUB subcontractors. Respondents may rely on
the services of contractor groups; local, state and federal business assistance
offices; and other organizations that provide assistance in identifying qualn‘zed
applicants for the HUB program.

6.7 Writien Jusiification of the Sélection Process

The Department will make a determination if a good faith effort was made by the
respondent in the development of the required HSP. One or more of the methods
identified in the previous sections may be applicable to the respondent’s good
faith efforts in developing and submission of the HSP. The Depariment may
require the respondent to submit additional documentation explaining how the
respondent made a good faith effort in accordance with the solicitation.

A respondent must provide written justification of its selection process if it
chooses a non-HUB subcontractor. The justification should demonstrate that the
respondent negotiated in good faith with qualified HUB bidders, and did not reject
qualified HUBs who were the best value responsive bidders.

7 Methed 5: Respondent Does Not intend to Subcontract

When the respondent plans to complete all contract requirements with its own
equipment, supplies, materials and/or employees, it is still required to complete an HSP.

The respondent must complete the “Self Performance Justification” portion of the HSP,
and attest that it does not intend to subcontract for any goods or services, including the
class and item codes identified in Section 5. In addition, the respondent must identify the
sections of the proposal that describe how it will complete the Scope of Work using its
own resources or provide a statement explaining how it will complete the Scope of Work
using its own resources. The respondent must agree to comply with the following if
requested by the Department:

provide evidence of sufficient respondent staffing 1o meet the IFB requirements,

e provide monthly payroll records showing the respondent staff fully dedicated to the
contract,

¢ allow the Department to conduct an onsite review of company headquarters or work
site where services are 1o be performed, ang,

e Provide documentation proving employment of qualified personnel holding the
necessary licenses and certificates required to perform the Scope of Work.

8 Post-award HSP Requirements

The H8P shall be reviewed and evaluated prior to contract award and, if accepted, the
finalized HSP will become part of the contract with the successful respondent(s).

After contract award, the Department will coordinate a post-award meeting with the

successful respondent to discuss HSP reporting requirements. The contractor must
maintain business records documenting compliance with the HSP, and must submit

51



405-EMD-15-B50116
Attachment - H

monthly subcontract reports to the Department by completing the HUB “Prime
Coniractor Progress Assessment Beport.” This monthly report is required as a condition
for payment to report to the agency the identity and the amount paid to all
subcontractors.

As a condition of award the Contractor is required 1o send nofification to all selected
subcontractors as identified in the accepted/approved HSP. In addition, a copy of the
notification must be provided to the agency's Contract Manager and/or HUB Program
Office within 10 days of the contract award.

During the term of the contract, if the parties in the contract amend the contract to
include a change to the scope of work or add additional funding, the Department will
evaluate to determine the probability of additional subcontracting opportunities. When
applicable, the Contractor must submit an HSP change request for the Depariment's
review. The requirements for an HSP change request will be covered in the post-award
rmesting.

When making a change to an HSP, the Contractor will obtain prior written approval from
the Department before making any changes to the HSP. Proposed changes must
comply with the HUB Program good faith effort requirements relating to the development
and submission of a HSP.

If the contractor decides to subcontract any pant of the contract after the award, it must
foliow the good faith effort procedures outlined in Section 6 of this IFB (e.g., divide work
into reasonable lots, notify at least three (3) vendors per subcontracted area, provide
written justification of the selection process, or participate in the Mentor Protégé
Program).

For this reason, the Department encourages respondents to identify, as part of their
HSP, multiple subcontractors who are able to perform the work in each area the
respondent plans to subcontract. Selecting additional subcontractors may help the
selected contractor make changes to its original HSP, when needed, and will allow the
Department to approve any necessary changes expeditiously.

Failure to meet the HSP and post-award requirements will constitute a breach of
contract, and will be subject to remedial actions. The Department may also report
noncompliance to the CPA in accordance with the provisions of the Vendor Performance
and Debarment Program {see 34 T.A.C. §20.108 relating fo Debarment) and {(see 34
T.A.C. §20.105 relating to Procedures for investigations and Debarment).
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HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)
Quick Checklist

Method 1 - If all (100%) of your subcontracting opportunities will be performed using oniy
HUB vendors, complete:

Section 1 - Respondent and Reguisition Information
Section 2 a. — Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract

Section 2 b. ~ List all the portions of work you wili subcontract, and indicate the percentage of
the contract you expect to award to Texas certified HUB vendors

Section 2¢. - Yes
Section 4 — Affirmation

HSP GFE Method A (Attachment A) — Complete this attachment for each subcontracting
opporiunity

QoOQ Qoio

Method 2 - If any of your subcontracting opportunities will be performed using HUB
protégés, complate:

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, | wilf be subcontracting portions of the contract

Section 2 b. ~ List ali the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of
the contract you expect to award to HUB protégés (Skip Section 2 ¢ and 2 d)

Section 4 — Affirmation
HSP GFE Method B (Attachment B) — Complete Section B-1, Section B-2, and B-4 only for
each HUB Protégé subcontracting opportunity as applicable.

g Qoo

Method 3 - If you are subcontracting with HUB vendors and Non-HUB vendors, and the
aggregate percentage of the contract you wiil subcontract with a Texas certified HUBs, with
which you have a continuous contract* in place with for five (5) years or less, meets or
exceeds the HUB goal, complete:

Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract

Section 2 b, - List all the portions of work you will subcontract, and indicate the percentage of
the contract you expect to award to HUB vendors and Non HUB vendors

‘Section 2 ¢. ~ No
Section 2 d. - Yes
Section 4 ~ AHfirmation

HSP GFE Method A {Attachment A) ~ Complete this attachment for each subcontracting
opportunity

oo ogog

Method 4 ~ If you are subcontracting with HUB vendors and/or Non-HUB vendors, and the
aggregate percentage of the coniract you will subcontract with a Texas certified HUBs, with
which you have a continuous contract* in place with for five (5) years or less, does not meet
or exceed the HUB Goal, complete:

0 Section 1 - Respondent and Requisition Information
Section 2 a. - Yes, | will be subcontracting portions of the contract

]

0 Section 2 b, - List all the portions of work you wili subcontract, and indicated the percentage of
the contract you expect to award to HUB vendors and Non HUB vendors

(3 Section 2¢c. ~No

53



405-EMD-15-B50116

Section 2d. -~ No
Section 4 -~ Affirmation

HSP GFE Method B {Attachment B) — Complete this aitachment for each subcontracting
opportunity

[ R R

Method 5 — if you are not subceontracting any portion of the contract and will be fulfilling the
entire contract with your own rescurces (i.e., equipment, supplies, materlals, andfor
empioyees), complete:

O Section 1 - Respoendent and Requisition Information

3 Section 2 a. - No, | will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and | will be fulfilling
the entire coniract with my own resources

& Section 3 — Self Performing Justification
O Section 4 - Affirmation

*Continuous Contracs: Any existing written agreement {including any renewals that are exerclsed) between a prime
contractor and a HUB vendor, where the HUB vendor provides the prime coritracior with goods or service under the
same contract for a specified period of tima. The frequency the HUB vendor Is ulllized or paid during the term of the
contract Is not relevant io whelher the contract Is considered continuous, Two or more contracls that run concurrently or
overlap one another for different periods of ime are considered by CPA o be individual contracts rather than renewals or
extensions lo the original contract. In such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entaring (have entered}
inte "new"” contracis.
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|UB SUBCONTRACTING PLAN (HSP)

In accordance with Texas Gov't Code §2161.262, the contrecting agency has delarmined that subcontracting opportunities ame probable undar this confracl,
Therefore, all respondents, including State of Texas certified Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBS) must complete and submit this State of Texas HUB
Subcontracting Plan (HSP) with their rasponse (o the bid requisition (sallchation),

NOTE: Responses that do not include a completed HSP shall be rejected pursuant to Texas Gov't Code §2161.252(h).

The HUB Program promoles aqual business apportunities for aconomically disacvantaged persons to contract with the State of Texas in accordance with the goals
specified in the 2009 State of Texas Disparily Study. The stalewide HUB gogls defined in 34 Texas Administralive Code (TAC) §20.13 are:

o 11.2 porcent for heavy constructlon other than bullding contracis,

o 21.1 percent for all buiiding consiruction, Inciuding general contractors and operative builders coniracis,
e 327 psrcent for all special lrade construction coniracts,

*  23.6 percent for professional services contracts,

e  24.5 percent for all other services coniracts, and

s 21 percent for commodities contracts,

- - Agency Specisl Instructions/Additional Requirements - -

in accordance wilh 34 TAC §20.14{d){(1}{D}#), a respondent {pime comiractor} may demonstrate goed falth effort lo utiliza Texas cariiied HUBs for ils
subeontracting opportunities if the totat value of the respondant’s subcontracts with Texas certiffed HUBs mesls or exceeds the stalawide HUB goal or the agency
speatiic HUB goal, whichever is higher. When a respondent uses this method to demanstrate good faith etfort, the respondent must identity the HUBSs with which it
wilt subcontract. ¥ using exlsiing contracts with Texas cerified HUBS to satisfy this raquirement, only conlracts that have boen In placa lor five years or Tess shalt
qualify for meating the HUB goal. This limitatlon Is designied to encourage vandr rotation as recommendad by the 2009 Texas Disparity Study.

[2eilelRH RESPONDENT AND REQUISTION INFORMATID

a. Respondent (Company) Name:  Amerigual Group, LLC State of Texas VID # 1352110138900 47335
Point of Contact: ~ Rashid Hallaway Phone g  202-380-5118
£.mall Address: rhallaway@ameriqual.com Fax #:
b.  Is your company a Stale of Texas ceifiedHUB? [3-Yes [H-to
¢. Requlsition & 405-EMD-15-B50116 BidOpenDate: 9 / 22 [ 14
{moddfyyyy)
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Enter your company’s name hera:  Ameriqual Group, LLC Requisition #:

405-EMD-15-B50116

[T SUBCONTRACTING INTENTIONS
After dividing the coniract work into reasonable lols or portions lo the extent consistent with prudent Industry practices, and taking Into consideration the scope of
wark fo ba pedormed under the proposed contrac!, including all potential subcontracting opportunities, the respondent must determine what portions of work,

including goods and services, will be subcontracted. Note: In accordance with 34 TAC §20.11., an "Subcontractor” means a person who contracts with a prime
contractor to work, to supply commodities, or io contribute toward completing work for a govemmental entity.

&, Check the appropriate box {Yes or No) thel identifies your subcentracting intentions:

[ - Ves, | will be subcontracting porions of the contract, (if Yas, complata Hem b, of this SECTION and confinua to item ¢ of this SECTION.)

[X] - No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and ! will be fulfiling the entire conlract with my own resources,
f List all tha porions of work {subcontracting opporunities) you will subcontract, Also, based on the tolal value of the contract,

{{ No, continue 1o SECTION 3.)
identify the percentages of the

conlract you expect to award to Texas cerifled HUBs, and the percentage of the contracl you expect to award to vendors that ars not a Texas certifled HUB

(i.e., Non-HUB}.
HUBs Non-HuBs
Percentage of the contract Percentago of the contract
tiem # Subconiracting Cpporiunity Description ::m;ﬂg&;‘;::::ﬁﬁ: ;ﬁuﬁm’h‘: m;n";am n;eg;r;l:gz:: !:'1; :m;d
o Tor B Blomaror s | "o B o Gy s, tonoreiiBs-

1 % ' % %
2 % % %
3 % % %
4 % % %
§ % % %
6 % % %
7 % % %
] % % %
g % % %
10 % % %
1 % % %
12 % % %
13 % % %
14 % % %
15 % % %

Aggregate parcantages of the contract expacied to ba subcontracted: 9% % %

{Nate: If you hava more than fitteen subcanlrseting cpportunitiss, a continuation sheet is available onling at hitp:fwindow.stats.tx.usiprocurementpraghuthub-subontcactingpland)
¢. Chack the approprate box (Yes or No) that indicates whether you will ba using anly Texas certifled HUBS to parform gl of the subcontracting opportunities you

Tistad in SECTION 2, tem b.

7] - Yes (i Yes, coninue to SECTION 4 pnd complete an "HSP Good Faith Efort - Mathod A (Atlachmartt A} for eagh of the subcontracting opporiunities you listed,)

] - No {if Mo, continus to ttem d, of il SECTION.)

d. Chack the apprapriale box (Yes or Noj that indicates whether tha aggregate expected percentage of the contract you will subcontract with Texag ceriified
HUBSs with which you have a conlinuous conlract’ in place with for five (5) years or less meets or exceede the HUB goal the confracting agency identified on

page 1 in the "Agency Speciaf nsiructions/Additional Requirements”.

{1 - Yes {f Yes, continus to SECTION 4 and complele an "HSP Good Falth Effart - Methed A (Attachment A)" for eagh of ihe subcontracting opportunities you listed.)
1 - No it Mo, continue to SECTION 4 and camplets an "HSP Good Faith Efiort - Method B {Attachment B)” for aach of the subcenkacting opportunities you listed.)

such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into "new” contracts.

*Continsous Contract: Any existing written agreement (including any renewals that are exercised) between a prime contractor and 8 HUB vendor, where
the HUB vendor provides thie prime oontractor with goods or service under the same contract for 3 specified period of time. The frequency the HUR vendor is
wtifzed or paid during the term of the conlract s not refevant &o whelher the contract is considered continuous, Two or more contracts that un concurrently or
averlap one another for different periods of ime are considered By CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or extersions to the origing! contract. In
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Enter your company’s name here;  /Ameriqual Group, LLC Requisition # 405-EMD-15-B50116

opportunitias) you will subcontract, Also, based on the total value of the contract, dentify the percentages of the contract you expect to awand to Texas certifled
HUBs, and the percenlage of the contract you expect to award o vendors that are not a Texas cerified HUB (L.e., Non-HUB),

HUBs Nen-HUBs
Parcantage of (ke contract Parcantaga of the contrct
ftarn & Subcontracting Opportunity Degcription mﬁgﬁﬁmmm: :;gm?m?ﬂ ﬁmﬂ;:m: . m‘ﬁ; :'s uuz; ;:mg;d
& copfinoug sonkract’ in nlafs & coplipuous coptragl in nllf» fonon-HUBs ,
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
% % %
Agaregate parcentapes of the contract expacted 1o be subcontracted: % % %
*Continuvous Contrack: Any existing wiitten agreement (IWMg any rencwals that are exercised) between 3 prime contractor and 3 HUE vendor, where
the HUB vendor provides the prime contractor with goods or service under the same contract for 8 specified period of tme, The frequency the HUB vendor is
uilized or paid auring the term of the contract is not refevant to whether the contract is considerad continuous, Two or more contracts that run concurrantly or
overlap one another for different perfods of time are considered by CPA to be individual contracts rather than renewals or extansions to the origing! contract. In
such situations the prime contractor and HUB vendor are entering (have entered) into "new” contracts.

HSP - SECTION 2
(Cominuatig? Sheet)
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SELF PERFORMING JUSTIFICATION (i you responded “No to 3, hem &, you must complete this SECTION and continue fo SECTION

Check the appropriate box {Yes or Noj that indicates whather your responsefproposal containe an explanation demonstrating how your company will fulfil the entire
contract with iis own resources,

[1-Yas {f Yos, In the space provided below list the spacific page{s)ysaction(s) of your proposal which explains how your company will parlorm the entire
contract with its own equipment, supplies, matenials and/or employess.)

i]-#e ({if Mo, in the space provided below explain how your company will perform the entire contract with its own equipment, suppties, malerials and/or
employees.)

AmeriQual Group, LLC specializes in the production, packaging, assembly and distribution of high-guality, shelf-stable food
preducts to the United States Department of Defense (DoD), the Federal Emergency Management Agency, major branded
food companies and numercus disaster relief organizations around the country.

AmeriQual has three facilities: two food processing facilities (one in Evansville, indiana and one in Stone Mountain, Georgia)
and a packaging and assembly plant in Evansville, AmeriQual processes, packages, and assembles all of the entrees and a
large percentage of the components within our Emergency meals.

AmeriQual also utilizes cold storage that is centrally located and capable of reaching Texas within 24 hours.

As a result of our food processing and packaging capabilities, coupled with our warehousing capacity, AmenQual intends to
self perform 100% of the contract with the State of Texas. AmeriQual will, however, consider using Texas HUB vendors for
logistics purposes should additional business development opporiunities arise within the state.

AmeriQual is able to expedite shipments from its Indiana distribution facility because of its central location. AmeriQual has
prearranged logistics carriers in place to ensure we can meet delivery requirements during a large scale event.

As evidenced by my signature below, | alfim that | am an authorized representative of the respondent isted In SEGTION 1, and that the information and supporting
documentetion submitted with the HSP Is true and correct. Respondent understands and agrees thal, i awarded any portion of the requisiion:

# The respandent will provide notice as soon as practical to all the subcontractors (HUBS and Non-HUBs) of their selettion as a subconlractor for tha awarded
contracl. The notice must specify at a minfmum the contmcting agency's name and its pofnt of contact for the contiact, the confract awand number, the
subcontracting epportunity they (the subcontractor) will perform, the approximate dollar valus of the subcontracting opportunlty and the expected percentage of
the tolal contract that the subcontracting opportunity represents. A copy of the netice required by this sechion must also be provided to the contraching agency’s
point of contacl for the contract no fater than ten (10} working days aler tha contract Is awarded,

« The respondant must submit monihly compliance reports (Prime Conleastor Prograss Assessment Report — PAR) to the contracting agency, verilying its
compliance with the HSP, including the use of and expenditures made to its subconlmclors (HUBs and Nen-HUBs). (The PAR is avaliable al
it Awvew.window. siale. by us/arocurementiroghu/bub-forme/sroqressasaessmentral, xis),

The respondent must saek approval from the contracting agency prior to making any modifications o s HSP, including the hiring of additional o ditferent
subcontractors and the termination of a subconlraclor the respondent identified in its HEP, if the HSP Is modilled without the contracting agency's prior
approval, respendent may be subject to any and all enforcement remedies available under the contract or otherwise avallable by law, up to and Including
debarmant from all state contracting.

The respondant musl, upon request, allow the contracting agency to perform on-site reviews of the company's headguariers andfor work-site where services
are belng performed and must provide documentation regarding staffing and other resources,

iy’ Rashid Hallaway Vice President 9/19/14
Signature Printed Name Title Dale

REMINDER: > I you responded “Yes*to SECTION 2, items ¢ or d, you must complete an “HSP Good Falth Effort - Method A (Attachment A)® for gach of
the subcontracting oppofunities you fisted in SECTION 2, tem b )

» It you responded "No™{o SECTION 2, ltems ¢ end d, you must complete an *HSP Good Faith Efforl - Method B {Attachment B)* for gach
of the subeontracting opportunilies you fisted in SECTION 2, llam b,
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HSP Good Faith Effort - Method A (Attachment A)

Enter your company’s name here: Amerigual Group, LLC Requisition #;  405-EMD-15-B50116

IMPORTANT: tf you responded *Yes" 1o SECTION 2, ltems ¢ or d of tha campleted HSP fom, you must submit a campleted "HSP Goad Faith Effort - Mathod

A (Attachment A)° for sach of the subcontracling opportunities you listed In SECTION 2, ltem b of the complalad HSP form. You may phota-copy this page or
download the lorm at fitip.fwwny.window.stete beusdrocurementipraehubiiah-formraMUB Sul nant-A, dog

SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNTY

Enter the itam number and descriplion of the subcontracting apportunity you fisted in SECTION 2, ltem b, of the complated HSP lorm for which you are completing
fhis atiachmant.

Item #: Description:

o i A 1 e e et 25k e el e e o G L b L e e e e IR L

SUBCONTRACTOR SELECTION

List the subsantractor(s) you selected to perform the subcontracting opportunity you fisted above In SECTION A1, Also identify whather Ihey are a Texas Cerified
HUB and their VID number, the approximate doliar valug of the work fo be subcontractad, he expectad percentage of work to be subcontracted, and indicate whether
the company is a Texas ceriified HUB,

Compsny Name CortlodHUB | et | o amant | ot
Ceifivd HUS)
[1-Yes [J-No $ %
O-ves C-Ho ] %
[-Yes [3-No 5 %
[3-Yes [J-No 3 %
3-Yes [OJ-No $ %
O-Yes [-No $ %
[3-Yes [1-No $ %
O-Yes [1-No $ %
O-Yes [J-ho $ %
[1-Yes [C1-No $ %
O-Yes O-No $ %
CI-Yes [1-No $ %
d-Yes [J-Ne 5 %
OJ-ves [-No § %
[J-Yes [I-No 5 %
3-ves [J-No L %
£1-Yes []-Mo $ %
J-Yes [1-No $ %
O-Yes [-No $ %
[J-Yes [J-Mo $ %
C1-Yes [1-8o 8 %

REMINDER: As epacified in SECTION 4 of the complated HSP form, i yesy {respondent} are awarded any partion of the requigiion, you are required to provide
nolice as soon as practieal 1o glt the subcontiactors (HUBs and Non-HUBs) of their selecfion as a subconiraclor, The notice must specify at & minimum the
contracting agency's name and fis point of contact for the contract, the coniract award number, the subcontracting opportunity ey (the subcontracior) wiki parforn,
the approximate doliar value of the subcontracting epportunity and the expected percentage of the tota! contract that the subcontracting opportunily regresents, A
copy of the notice required by this saction must also be provided to the contracting agsncy's point of contact for {1e contrac! no iater than ten {10} working days after
tha contract :s awardad,

{Attachment A)
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HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B)

Enter your company's name hers; Ameriqual Group, LL.C Requisition # 405-EMD-15-B50116

IMPORTANT:  you rasponded “No” to SECTION 2, ems ¢ snd d of the completed HSP form, your must submit a complelad *HSP Good Faith Effort - Method
B (Atlachment B)" for each of the subconiracting opparunities you listed in SECTION 2, ltem b of the completed HSP fomm. You may photo-copy tis page or
downioad the form at hitp:fwww window.sinte e usiprocurementiprog/hubiub-formafHUB SubcontractingPlanAttachment-B.dot

et e e X PO T e S T L L

SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITY

Enter the item nymber and description of the subcontracling opportunity you fisted tn SECTION 2, ftem b, of the completed HSP lorm for which you are completing
this attachment.

item #: Deacription:

cTIo MENTOR PROTEGE PROGRAM

If respondent is participating as a Mentor In a State of Texas Menlar Protégé Program, submitiing its Protégé {Protégé must be a Slate of Texas cerified HUB) as a
subcantracior to perform the subconiracting opporiunity listed n SECTION B-1, constilutes a good failh effort lo subconlract with & Texas certified HUB towards that
specifte portion of work,

Check the appropriate box (Yes or Noj that indicates whelher you will ba subcontracting the portion of work you listed in SECTION B-1 to your Protégs.

3 - Yes (Ii Yes, lo continue lo SECTION B4,)

Whan complating this section you MUST comply with itams a, b, ¢ and d, thereby demonstrating your Good Faith Effort of having notified Texas certified HUBS ang
minority or women trada organizations or development centers about the subcontracting opportunity yoit listed in SECTION B-1. Your notice should includs the scops
of work, information regarding the location to review plans and speclicallons, bonding and insurance requirements, required qualifications, and identily a contact
person. Whan sanding notice of your subcontracting apportunity, you are encouraged to use the attached HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Motise form, which is also
avallable enline at hitp:wwiv.window.slale, ntprosfubhub-subcontraeting-plen

Retain supporting documentation {i.e., corlfied letter, fax, e-mail) demonsirating evidance of your goad faith efiort to notify the Texas certifisd HUBS and minoriy or
women trada organizations or developmen! centers. Also, be mindful that & working day Is conslered a nommal business day of a stale agency, nat including
waakerus, faderal or state holidays, or days the agency |s declared closed by its executive officer. The Initial day the subcontracting opportunity notice is
sen¥/provided to the HUBs and to the minority or women trade organizetions or developmant canters Is consldered {o be “ay zero” and does not count as ane of the
seven (7) working days,

8. Provide writlen notification of the subcontraciing epportunity you flisted in SEGTION B-1, to lhrea £3) or mors Texas certified HUBs, Unless the contracting
agency specified a diliersnt time period, you must allow the HUBSs at least seven (7) working days to respond to the notice prior to your submitting your bid
response to the contracling agency. Whan searching for Texas certified HUBS, ensure that you use the Slate of Texas’ Centrallzed Master Bidders List {CMBL)
and Historically Underutiized Business (HUB) Search direciory locatad at hitp:Asww.window.state.tv.us/procurementiembYemblhub.iml HUB Siatus
code "A" signifies that the company is a Texas certified HUB.

b. List the lies {3) Texas cedified HUBS you notifiad regarding the subceniracting opportunity you listed in SECTION B-1. Includa the cormpany’s Vender 1D {(VID)
nurber, the dale you sent ntice to that company, and indicate whether it was responsive or nan-responsive to your subcontracling opportunity nolice.

Company Nema viD# "“&-’i‘:‘#ﬁi’"‘ Did the HUB Respond?
[ O-ves [J-No
Fo O-Yes O-Ho
P O-Yes [J-No

¢ Provide wiitten notification of the subcontracting opporunily you fisted In SECTION B-1 to lwo {2) or more minorily or women lrade omanizations or
development centers 10 assist in Identifylng potential HUBs by disseminaling the subcontracting opportunity fo thelr membersfparticipants. Unless the
contracting agency specified a dflerent ime period, you must provide your subcontracting opportunity notice to minority or women trade organizations or
develapment centers al feas| saven (7] working days pror to submitting your bid response to the contracting agsncy. A list of trade onganizations and
develapment centers that have expressed an Interest in recelving notices of subcontracting opportunities Is avaliable on the Statewide HUB Program's webpage
at tte: M window.state b us/procurementiprog/hubimwd-links-4/

d. List wo {2 the minarily or women Irade organizations or development centers you notified regarding the subcontracting opportunity you Bsted in SEGTION B-1,
Include the date when you sent notice fo tt and indicate ! it accepted or vejected your notice,

MirorityWomen Teate Organtzations or Developmeni Cenlars D'“(‘ N‘“'I o Sort w:“;;;::?'
[ ) CI-ves [J-No
i1 H-Yes [J-No

(Attachment B)
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HSP Good Faith Effort - Method B (Attachment B) cont

Enter your company's name here;  Ameriqual Group, LLC Requisttion # 405-EMD-15-B50116

&. List the subcentractor{s) you salectad lo perform the subcontracting opportunily you fisted In SECTION B41. Also identify whether they are & Texas Certified
HUB and their VID numbsy, the approximate dollar value of the work o be subcontracted, the expected parcentage of wark to be subcontracted, and indicate
whether the company Is & Texas certified HUB,

Comgany Name Cottoatis | outires | Cormont | otcomn
Certtivd HLIB)
El-Yes [-Mo $ %
[O-Yes [J-No $ %
C}-Yes [J-%o $ %
[J-Yes [d-No 5 %
O-Yes [1-No H] %
£1-ves O-No $ %
O-ves []-Ne $ %

b. i any of the subconiractors you have selected to perform the subcontracting opponiunity you listed in SECTION B-1 is not a Taxas certifled HUB, provide wiillen
justification for your selection prosess (altach additional pags if necessary):

REMINDER: As specilied In SECTION 4 of the complated HSP form, it yay (resp awardad any gartion of the requisifion, you are required to provide
nolice as soon as practical o all the subcontactors {(HUBs and Non-HUBs) of thelr selection as & subcontractor, The notice must spacify at a minimum the
conlracting agency’s name and ts point of contact for the contrct, the contract award number, the subconlracting oppoitunily it {the subcontractor} will perform, the
spproximate dallar value of the subconiracting epporlunity and the expected percetilage of the total contract that the subeontracting opportunity represents, A copy of
the notice raquired by this section must a's0 be provided to the canlracting agency's point of contact for the contract no iater than ten (10} working days after the
contract Is awardad.

{Attachment B)
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HUB Subcontracting Opportunity Notification Form

In accerdance with Texas Gov't Code, Chapler 2161, each stale agency that considers entering into a contract wilh an exgecied valua of $160,000 or more shall,
beiore the agency soliclls bids, proposals, offers, or ather applicable expressions of intarast, delennine whether subcontracting opportunities are probabie under the
conlmact. The slate agency | have identified betow in Section B has determined that subcontracting opporiunities are probable undsr the raquisition to which my
company will be responding.

34 Texas Administrative Code, §20, 14 requires all respondents {prime contractors} bidding on the cantragt to provide notice of aach of thelr subcontracting oppontunities
o at feast [hree (3] Texas cerliiad HUBS (who work within the respeciive industry applicable 1o the subconfracting opportunity), and afiow the HUBS at least seven (7}
working das to respond to the notice prior to the respondent submitiing its bid response to tha contracting ageney. In addilion, the respondant mus! provide notice of
each of its subcontracting opporturities o two {2) or more minorty/women trada organizations or devafoprent centers at least soven (7} working days prior fo
sthmitiing its bid responss lo the cantracting agency.

Wa respactfully raquest that vendors Interasted In bidding on the subcontraating opportunily scope of work identified in Sectien C, tem 2, reply no later than the date
and time identified In Seetion C, llem 1. Submit your responsé to the peint-of-conlact referenced in Section A.

PRIME CONTRACTOR'S INFORATIO

o0 A
Company Name: State of Texas VID #:
Point-of-Contact: Phone &

E-mail Addrass: Fax #:

CY AND REQUISITION INFORMATION

[ CONTRACTING SA

Agency Name:
Point-of-Contact; Phone #:

Requisition #: Bid Open Date:

SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNTY RESPONSE DUE DATE, DESCRIPTION, REGUIREMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION
Our firm must receive your bid response to this subcontracting opportunity no later
than 5:00 P.M., Central Daylight Time on:

1. {oate)
Potential tn aecordance with 34 TAG 520,14, each notice of subconiracting opportunity ahail be provided to at laas! threq (3} Texas cartiied HUBS, and sliow the
Subcontractor's Big | HUBs allaas saven (7) working diws to respond to the notice prior t submitting our bid responss 1o the conlracting agency. In adsition, wa must

.| provide the aama notles to two (2} or more minorityAvomen trade organizalions or davalopment centars al least sawn {7) working days priot lo
Response Due Date: | gunmitting our bid response to the contracting agency.

(A working day Is considered a nomal business day of 1 sinte agency, nol inckwfing weekends, fedaral or state hokdays, or days the 8gency is decired closed by
As exerulive officer. Tha inifial day the subconiricting oppartunily nolfce is saniprovided to the HUBs and fo the minorly or woman trade organizations or
davaiopment cenlers ks consitirad fo be ey zero” and doas nol count as ons of ihe sever: (7) wodking days.)

2.

Subcontracting
Opportunity

Scope of Work:

3.
Required
Qualifications:

{71 - ot Appliceble

4.

Bondingfinsurance
Requirements:

(] - Not Applicable

5.

Locafion o review
plans/specifications:

[ - Not Applicable
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HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)
Prime Contractor rssessme Report

n‘hf ).l 1phianc

subimitlec nh L agency

Contract/Requisition Number: Date pf Award: Object Code:
(mnvddyyy) o

Contracting Agency/University

Name:  Jexas Department of Public Safety

Contract Administrator Name:
Contractor {Company} Name: State of Texas VID #:
Point of Contact: Phons &
Reporting (Menth) Period: Total Amount Paid this Reporting Perfod to Contracto:

Report HUB and Non-HUB subcontractor information

“Toxos Total § Amount
Cortifiatt Tolal Contract § Pald This Total Contract §
SubcontracioraName | " CullmoNominr | (aortio) | wisSebeamactr | to ebeameey | subeonpesy | SHeTC082
] 8 $
3 $ )
$ $ §
$ $ §
3 $ ]
3 § 3
3 $ §
2 3 $
; 3 R $
$ $ $
s s s
‘ s g s
ls $ $
Signature: . Title: Date:

*Nete; Prime contractors can varify subcontractor HUB certification status on-line at hito:fwenw?. cosslate. buusiombiembihul imi
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ATTACHMENT |

CHECK LIST
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Check List

A complete bid or bid package will consist of the items identified below.
Complete this checklist to confirm the items in your bid. Place a check mark or “X” next to each item

that you are submitting to the State. For your bid to be responsive, all required documents must be
returned. This checklist should be returned with your bid package also.

Document Name/Description

X Check List
X Bidder Affirmations, pages 11 and 12 of IFB (section 12.03 and 12.06 must be
completed-DO NOT LEAVE THEM BLANK or use NA}
X Pricing Sheet {Page 3 and 4 of the IFB)
X Texas Application for Payee identification Number {only required if contractor does not

currently have a TIN's number)

X Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification
X Direct Deposit Authorization (only required if vendor wishes to received direct deposit
for payments}
X Verification of Experience Form
X HUB Subcontracting Plan
X Certificate of Insurance
NA License
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AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION Page 1 of 1 Page

1. SOLICITATION NO. 2. AMENDMENT NO. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE
405-EMD-15-B50116 A-001 09/09/2014

4. ISSUED BY

Texas Department of Public Safety
Procurement and Contract Services Bureau
P.O. Box 4087

Austin, Texas 78773-0130

5. NAME AND ADDRESS OF OFFEROR
AmeriQual Group, LLC
18200 HWY 41 N
Evansville, IN 47725

6. The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth in llem 7. The hour and date specified
for receipt of Bids [] is extended, DJ is not extended.

Bidders must acknowiedge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the
soiicitation or as amended, by one of the following methods:

(a) By completing items 5 and 8, and returning 1 copy of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging
receipt of this amendment on each copy of the bid submitted; or (c) By separate letier or e-mail
which includes a reference to the solicitation and amendment numbers. FAILURE OF YOUR
ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF
BIDS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR
BiD. If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change a bid aiready submitted, such change may
be made by e-mail or letter, provided each e-mail or letter makes reference to the solicitation and
this amendment, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

7. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT

The purpose of this Amendment is ‘to insert- additional landuage to Aftachment A, Scope ‘of Work

found within the 1EB,

This addition of language shall be inserted on_page 27 of the IFB under section 5, sub section 5.2
{packaging) of the Scope of work,

The addition of line 5.2.5 shall read: Vegetasian and low-sodium meals_are acceptable, However,
wvepetarian and low-sodium meals shall not each {separately} exceed one percent of total meals. The meals
shall meet all other recuirements, and shail be packased with like megls. {Vegetarian meals shall be
packaged in cases of gnly vezetarian meals and low sodium meals shall be packaged In cases of only low

sodivm mesis)

Please sign this addendum and return with your bid.

All terms and conditions of the solicitation remain unchanged.

8a. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or Print)
Rashid Hallaway, Vice President

8h. OFFEROR w 9/19/14

{Signature of Person Autharized to Sign) Date Signed
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AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION Page 1 of 1 Page

1. SOLICITATION NO. 2. AMENDMENT NO. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE
405-EMD-15-B50116 A-002 09/10/2014

4. ISSUED BY

Texas Department of Public Safety
Procurement and Contract Services Bureau
P.C. Box 4087

Austin, Texas 78773-0130

5. NAME AND ADDRESS OF OFFEROR
AmeriQual Group, [LLC.
18200 HWY 41 N
Evansville, IN 47725

6. The above numbered solicitation is amended as set forth In ltem 7. The hour and date specified for receipt
of Bids [[] is extended, [ is not extended.

Bidders must acknowledge receipt of this amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the soficitation or
as amended, by one of the following methods:

(a) By completing ltems 5 and 8, and retuming 1 copy of the amendment; (b) By acknowledging receipt of this
amendment on each copy of the bid submitted; or (c) By separate ietter or e-mail which includes a reference to
the solicitation and amendment numbers. FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT
THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR THE RECEIPT OF BIDS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED
MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR BID. If by virtue of this amendment you desire to change & bid
already submitted, such change may be made by e-mail or letter, provided each e-mail or lefter makes
reference to the solicitation and this amendmaent, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.

7. DESCRIPTION OF AMENDMENT
The purpose of this Amendment is to answer questions for the
solicitation of Vendor Managed inventory of Emergency Meals.

See the next page for all vendor questions and the responses provided
by TXDPS.

Please sign this addendum and retarn with your bid.

All terms and conditions of the solicitation remain unchanged.

Ba. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or Print)

Rashid Hallaway, Vice President

8h. OFFEROR .m0 0 o
ff E:i LK 9/19/14

(Signature of Person Authorized to Sign) Date Signed

b1



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FOR 405-EMD-15-B50116

1. {Question) - 15 a drink mix required in the meal? If not required, is a powdered drink mix acceptable as part of the
meal.

{Answer) g, a drink mix Is ngt renuired, But if a vendor wishes to make 3 mea! packege from various products, s

equals a8 minimaum of 1,000 calories and meets USDA standards, if an Rem contained within the meal packepe has a
shelf e of under 5 years, the entire package shall pot be accaptable.

2. {Question) - Are there any dietary reguirements and/or restrictions?

{Answer) Vesetarian and low-sodium meals are scceptable . However, vezetarian and low-sodlum meals shall not zach

{separately] excead one nercent of total meals, shall meep ol other requirements, and shall be packeged with like meals

{vegetarian meals must be packared in cases of only vegetarian meals and low sodium meals shall be packaged In casss
of only low sodium meals),

3, (Question) - Are vegetarian meals reguired as part of meal assortment? If not required, is a vegetarian meal acceptable
as part of meal assortment?

{Answer) See answer o guestion 82 ahowe,

4. (Question) we have a problem understanding your invitation to bid 405-EMD-15-B50116, We have a question with
regards to your request for bid on Shelf-Stable Meals. Item Number 9 indicates each meal shail provide a minimum of
1,000 calories; how do you perceive a meal having 1,000 cafories and not being a Military MRE? I this is a Meal Kit that
requires a self-heating meal and other condiments such as a meal replacement bar, desert, cake or cookie for a total of
1,800 calories, please advise.

{Answer) |f the meal or contents of the individual meal or mea! packere couals o minimum, of 1,000 calories, meels
USDA standards and has a shelf life of § vears then it meets the requirements of the bid, 1 a vender wishes 1o make a
meal package from various products, it is acceptable as long as the ENTIRE meal will last 5 years - If any ltamn in the
meal package bas a shelf life under 5 years, the entive package shall not be acceptable )

5. {Question) will a vendor be reimbursed for any transportation costs associated with returning unused meals back to our
warehouse?

{Answer) Yes, please see the {FB, attachment & of the scope of work, pags 28 section 5.7.2

6. {Question) if a vendor intends to self- perform the contract, will that have an adverse impact on the vendor’s bid?

[Answer) Mg,

7. {Question) how much preference is given to HUB companies or business that subcontracts with HUB vendors versus
companies that self- perform?

{Answer} Mone, Award is based unon oversdl low bid but it is reguired that the HSP is filted out completely accurately
and signad,

8. {Question) Could you please provide some detail around Pass/Fail Requirement #6 on pg. 3 of the bid. Is there a specific
temperature the state is targeting for storage?

{Answer) The vendor shall store the meals at the termperature renuired fo maintain maximum shelf like, palatability,
appearance, safaty, and viability of the meals,

90




9. (Question) Regarding Pass/Fail Requirement #6 on pg. 3 of the bid, if the product does not require storage in a climate
controlled warehouse in order to achieve the required 5 year shelf life can this requirement be waived?

{Answer) Yes, as long as the vendor stoves the meals in 5 manngr that maintaing maximum shelf like, palatabifity,
appearance. safery, and viability of the meals.

10, {Question) Given the lower cost and longer term shelf life of freeze-dried and dehydrated meal options, is the State
amenable to this option if all other requirements of the bid {including self-heating) are met?

[Answer} Yes, as long as everything needed to rehvddrate the mesls andfor make them ready to be consumed areg

11, {(Question) Could the State expound on its preferences/requirements regarding packaging. For example, does the
State want the meals packaged in individual serving packages (meeting the 1,000 cal. requirement) or are larger quantity
packages accaptable {i.e. 8-10 servings per package) as long as the # of servings provided still amounts to 1,000 calories
per meal?

(Answer) Meals shajl be packased in individual serving packages,

12, {Question} Is there any flexibility around Pass/Fail Requirement Nos. 2, 3 and 4 {pg. 3 of the bid} if the bidder, by other
means, can show an experience level with which the state Is comfortable?

{Answer} No




AmeriQual Addendum to Pricing for 405-EMD-15-B50116

AmeriQual’s stated unit pricing of $3.55 per meal across all volume tiers is valid for a 1 year period from
date of award. Due to potential fluctuations in commodities and other costs of manufacturing,
AmeriQual’s unit pricing will increase by 3% per annum in periods 2, 3, 4 and 5.

Rashid Hallaway

9/19/14



Client#: 115042

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ANMERIGRO

DATE {MMDDIYYYY)
9/19/2014

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RiGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

PRODUGER
(ld National Insurance
P.O. Box 9638

HRMIACT Elissa Stuckey

(HONE £xq: 812-468-7848 | TRE oy 812-461-9008

Bl o5, Elissa.Stuckey@oldnationaling.com

EvanSVi"e’ IN 47708 INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
§12 461-9001 msurer A : Massachusetts Bay Ins. Co. 22306
INBURED msurer g - Great American Insurance Co. 16691
AmeriQual Group, LLC INsurzr ¢ : American Select Insurance Co. 19992
18200 Hwy 41 N wsurer o - St. Paul Fire & Marine Ins. Co. 24767
Evansville, IN 47725 INSURER E : Great Ametican Insurance Co. 16691
msurer £ Liberty Insurance Underwriters 19917
COVERAGES CERTIFIGATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITICN OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

[T

Lix FYPE OF INSURANCE ISR WD POLICY NUMBER (BB | (DB Py LTS
A | GENERALLABILITY ZDW580876112 06/13/2014|06/13/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE 51,000,000
K| COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIARILITY R S il enesy | $100,000
uuuuuu | CcLAIMS-MADE El QCCUR MED EXP (Any ane person) | $5,000
{ | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
| ] GENERAL AGGREGATE 52,000,000
GEN'T AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | 52,000,000
j POLICY m RO ’—\ LoS ) ®
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ZDW580876112 06/13/2014 | 06/13/201 5 LJMENEL SINGLELIVIT 1 4,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Perperson) | $
: ib%ggVNED - Eﬁ%gULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
| X|Hrenautos | X | AoTaa MEP FPROPERT BRWAGE s
B | X|UMBRELLA LIAB }ﬁ OCCUR TUUSE7585010 06/13/2014|06/13/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE .| 55,000,000
EXCESS LiAB | CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE 55,000,000
| |oen | X| revention$10,000 1 $
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION, i WCP1465728 06/13/2014| 081132018 X 58Tl | 941
ANY PROPRIETCR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE £l EACH AGCIDENT $500,000
CFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? IE NIiA
{(Mandatory in NH} E L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $800,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS below £ L. DISEASE - PoLicY LMIT | $500,000
I} |Excess Liability ZUPB1M0753514NF 06/13/2014|08/13/2015 $20MM Excess of § SMM
E |Excess Liability TUEOD98740500 06/13/2014|06/13/2015 $ SNMM Excess of $25MM
F |Excess Liability 100005001702 06/13/2014|06/13/2015 $15MM Excess of $30MM

DESCGRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is reguired}

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Texas Dept. of Public Safety

IFB #405-EMD-15-B50116
Procurement & Contract Services
MSC 0268, Building A, 1st Floor
5805 N Lamar Blvd

. Austin, TX 787562

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WI_L BE DELIVERED |N
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

fmmﬂ ﬂ.M

ACORD 25 (2010/08) i of1
#5921145/M887228

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Ali rights reserved.

The AGORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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- D&B Rating

2089

Mig food
preparations

i1 o Composite Credit Appradsal

i History Status CLEAR '

The D&B Viability Rating uses D&B's propristary analytics to compare the most predictive business risk indicators and deliver a highly reliable
agsessment of the probability that a company will ho ionger be in business within the next 12 months.

= Compared to All US Businesses within D&B Database:

+ Level of risk: Moderate Risk

« Busingsses ranked 6 have a probability of becoming ne longer viable: 13%
+ Percentage of businesses ranked 6: 30%

+ Across all US businesses, the average probability of becoming no longer viahle: 14%

Compared to all Businesses within the same MODEL SEGMENT:
Model Segment: Established Trade Payments

» Level of risk: High Risk

= Percentage of businesses ranked 8 within this model segment: 13%
« Within this model segment, the average probability of becoming no longer viable: 5%

+ Businesses ranked 8 within this model segment have a probability of becoming no longer viable:

Py ?--3‘38@%3_-
i ‘ .R?&im N

Fating Dats

03/10/2002

Payment Activity

o Mpghest
L oGredit

s ;Téi_:\{i..r-r’sgg%mé;t
EinHit

11%

{based on 127 experiznces)

600,000 ;-

11754,744200°




Discide with (bpfldesce

Data Depth Indicator Details:

+ Rich Firmographics
+ Extensive Commercial Trading Activity
« Basic Financial Attributes

Greater data depth can increase the precision of the D&B Viability Rating assessment,
You have the ability to influehce tha confidence of the viability assessment by asking the business to regort more information to D&E at
htips://ikpdate.dnb.comfiUpdate/

E

IR o L U Years in
Fipsciiata  Toads Pmerts| Sompany Sie || GUE,

~ Company Profile -

Available

. Not Available: 3+Tra

Company Profile Details:
* Financial Data: Not Available
» Trade Payments: Available (3+Trage)

* Busihess Size: Large {Empioyeas: 50+ or Sales: $500K+)
* Years in Business: Established (5+)

Direciors

The officars identified by (+)

As of 0aM472014

The Indiana Secretary of State's business registrations file showed that Ameriqual Group, LLC was registered as a Limited Liability Company on June
15,2000.

Ownership information provided verbaily by David Barnes, Controller, on Aug 08 2012,

i Business started 1988 by Steven Chancellor, Present control succeeded 1993,

DANIEL HERMANN born 1957. Graduated from Indiana State University, Evansville, IN in 1979 (accounting). 1979-1982 employed by Harding
. Shymanski & Co Accountants, Evansville, IN. 1882-present employed by Black Beauty Coal Co Inc and its affiiates. He is a certified public accountant.

STEVEN CHANCELLOR boin 18947. Graduate of University of Evansville, Evansvilie, IN, Active here since 1978, elected Chairman of the Board Jul 1
1981, 1969-1977 employed by Thtift Financial Corporation, Evansville, IN.

. EUGENE D AIMCONE. Antecedents are undetermined.

TIMOTHY A BRAUER. Anlacedenis are undetermined.

. Affiliates:
fg ThermoPac, LLC lecated at Stone Mouniain, GA

B L

AR R SHEH e g s s bR i

CCRPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATICNS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL SOURCE AS OF Aug 12 20

R

STEFPHANE.
WEITZEL

Ragistersd Agent

DOMESTIC 20 N.WV.
LIMITED FIRST
LIABILITY STREET,
STH FLOCR,
EVANSVILLE,

iN




Cacld with Jenliderce

Administralive Dabi

Faderal Programs

Contfracior

Party Excluded from

Publis Gompany

N/AA |

As of 05/14/2014

Description:

Employess:
Facilities:

Location:

Mahufactures food preparations, specializing in ready-to-eat meals, salads or sandwiches (100%).

Has 20 account(s). Terms are Net 30 days. Sells to US Department of Defense. Territoty : United States.
Norseasonal.

650 which includes partners. 510-380 employed here.

Cwns premises in a single story brick and steel building.

Rural section on main highway.

This list is limited to the first 25 branches, subsidiaries, divisions and affiliates, both domestic and international. Please use the Global Family Linkage Link
above to view the full fisting.




Dingide with Confidence

D&B has been unable to obtain sufficient financial information
from this company to calculate business ratios. Our check of
additicnai outside sources also found no information available on
its financial performance.To help you in this instance, ratios for
other firms in the same industry are provided below te support

This
Business

indusiry
Meadian

Induistey
Quastile

Asseis Sales UN

49.6

UN

EAS of 05/14/2014
On MAY 02 2014 Timothy A Brauet, Cnirl, deferred financial informaftion.

¢ The following data inciudgs both open and closed filings found in D&B's database on this company

Record Type

ey

Mo, of Resords

e

L uce

24

The following Public Filing data is for information purposes only and is not the official record. Certified copies can only be obtained from the officiai source.
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NITA TROTT

i Coltectad Dale

Co7moR00

P

Criginal

Date

fxviginal Y00 Filed

1000007456851
03/28/2011

i ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, NEW YORK, NY
© ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANGE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, (L.

st ot
Regewsd

Type

1100002643560

© Driginat UCT Filed
- Date

1 Becured Party

03/28/2011
ALLY COMMERGIAL FINANCE LLC, NEW YORK, NY
ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, IL

Chriginal UUT Flled
Date

Secured Party

RYOF STATEMGC DIVISION,
: ALLY BANK, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY
* ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANGE LLC, NEW YORK, NY

ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, iL

Crriginal Filing Mo,

1100002649560

GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANGCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

Original

Criginal UGT Fijed
Ciaty

1 Secured Party

RET ¢ DIVISION, INDIANAROL
GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YCRK,

L Ciriginet YOO Filed
Date




Prmtide with Corfiienca

i Secured Party

GMAGC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

| Date

Bacured Party

ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, iL

el VOO Fited

ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY
ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, IL

GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

Originad UGO Fite
Diate

| Seoured Parky

o

Original Filing No.

Criginad Fiing Nao,

| 0500002923558

Amendment

i 0500002923553

$14p0003808

03/31/2005

ALLY BANK, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY

" ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANGE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY
ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANGE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, IL

GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

. Fiting No.

RETARY OF STATEAIGS DIVISION, INDIANAPOLIS, IN .
i GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

st fit
Recoided,

Tyvpe

. Amendment

Criginal Fillng No. |

Qrigina YOO Fied
Dota

03/31/2005

Securad Farty

Original UGT Filed

ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLGC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, IL
GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANGCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,

Criginal Filing Mo,

i ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANGE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY
© ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGO, IL

GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,
NY

0500002822648

Amendment

Originat Fiiing No. |
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Late

Securedd Party

Qriginal UGC Filed

i ALLY BANK, AS AGENT, NEW YORK, NY
" ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEWY YORK, NY
ALLY COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, CHICAGC, IL
GMAC COMMERCIAL FINANCE LLC, AS AGENT, NEW YORK,

NY

Tepe
- DateFiled |

SECRETARY OF STATEIUCE DIVISION THDIANAPOLIS, Il .~

Criginat Piling No.

05/08/2014%

Amendment

0500002922648

1 Becured Party

. AMERIQUAL GROUP; L

0700000985021

- SECRETARY OF STATE/IGE DIVISION, INDIANAPOLIS, IN

EVANSVILLE, N

FIFTH THIRD BANK A MICHIGAN BANKING CORPORATION,

Filing Mo

1 Wihere Filed

| Debtor

Criginal Filing Ne. |

0700000885021

Civiginal UGU Fiied
Dat

i Secured Parly

FIFTH THIRD BANK,A MICHIGAN

EVANSVILLE, IN

Crriginal Fillng No

Continuation

0700000985021

Becured Parly

FIFTH THIRD BANK, CINCINNATI, OH

6 BIVISIO

DafeRiled [ 06120012

Criginal

Qriginal
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Sacaxre{i ?@u ty

F'iim} ?do

; Where ?“a

g i products

1200000381259

IKON FINANCIAL SVCS, MACCN, GA

: .."SECRETARY OFSTATE!UCC DIVISION INDtANAPOLlS !N :. .

Latess tigto

Origina[

1;13:2012 SRR

Filing No,

Securad Farty

Edlitng Mo
Wihere Filed

The pubhc record items contalned in this report may have been paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to the date this report was printed.
Additional UCC and SLJ filings for this company can be found by conducting a more detailed search in cur Public Records Database.

AMERIQUAL GROUP, LLC

SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, INDIANAPOLIS, N

| Original

© compared to payments three months ago

The Payment Summary section seflacts payment information in D&B's file as of the date of this report.

Paymenis Within Terms

1!

et 8 e Pyt Anditipren
Tnayi Al sy
dsigs Ao

When welghted by doliar amount, payments to suppliers
average 15 Days Beyond Tarms, Based on payments
callected ever last 3 months

83%

Total Placed for Colieciion

P

ﬁwa: ‘iéxté’*s‘ﬁ

: VWhen weighted by dellar amount, payments o suppliers
. average 9 days beyond terms. Based on payments
i collected up to 24 menths,

© When weighted by dollar amaunt, the industry average is 8
: DAYS BEYOMD terms,

There are 127 payment experiences in D&B's file, with 91 experiences reported during the last three month period.
The highest Now Owes on fils is $500,000. The highest Past Due on file is $200,000.

HE High risk of late

Highest Past Dus

payment (average
3010 120 days
heyond terms)

Medium risk of late
payment (average
30 days or less
beyond terms)

Low risk of late
payment (average
prompt to 30+
days sooner)

$200C,000
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Industrios

Total

Recaived Tatal Armounts

Largast High
Cradit

Tarms (%) 030

Within

Days Blow (3%}

5180 GO+

f‘é@ chassified

Mg food preparations

e cardy franspt

ity canned fruitiveng

| Meat packing plant

Mg conoa produsts

- Uther Payment Categories . .

4 277,500

855,000
3 275,000

1 100,000

...5.7‘50_0:4. et

250,000

200,000

106,000

$600,000 1

0007 i ligs

600,000 }

o0 50

Catagory

Total Recsived

Total Dollar Amcunts

i
i
i
i

Payment record unknown

Placed fov Colleciion

Last Sale |

E Date Reportad ; Paying Resord High Cradit Mow Cvwes Past Due Seliing Terms | withimenihe) :
| Gopteraner 2014

August 2014 Ppt

Ppt

250,000

55,000
40,000

gen

35,000

1¢,000

N/A

N/A
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July 2014

Pt

Ppt

Ppt-Slow 30

Ppt-Slow 60

250,000
45,0007

oo G o o0 8o

M/A

N/A
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Slow 30

. Ppt

February 2014

October 2013

il 2013 Blow 30

over merchandise, skipped invoices etc.

Lines shown in red are 30 or more days beyond terms

Payment experignces reflect how bills are met in relation to fhe terms granted. In some instances payment beyond terms can be the result of disputes

N30

Leasze Agreamnt

Each experience shown is from a separate supplier. Updated trade experiences replace those pravieusly reported.
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MeGladrey LLP

McGladrey

Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Board of Directors of
AmeriQual Management, Inc.
and the Members

AmeriQual Group, LLC
Evansville, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AmeriQual Group, LLC and its
subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in members’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for
the years then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, impiementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for cur audit opinion.

1

wherbiee of the H5M Iatern stlenal natwork of Indaperdent accounting, tax and cansultyeg firms.




Opinion

{n our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AmeriQual Group, LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/ZZ’W Le”

Peoria, lllinois
March 21, 2013




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15,216 3 5,133,369
Trade receivables, net of allowances 2012 and 2011 $125,000 14,446,897 7,894,702
Inventories 30,862,182 23,950,113
Prepaid expenses and other 1,034,482 2,458,154
Total current assets 46,358,777 39,436,338
Property and equipment, net 25,682,187 25,985,242
Goodwill 11,379,194 11,379,194
Other intangible and other assets 6,858,181 7,958,716
90,278,339 3 84759490
Liabilities and Members' Equity (Deficif)
Current liabilities
Excess of outstanding checks over bank balance 4,422384 % -
Accounts payabie 10,090,407 4,997 320
Current maturities of long-term debt 962,500 3,250,000
Accrued expenses 5,567,564 5,779,037
Total current liabilities 21,042,855 14,026,357
Long-term debt, iess current maturities 76,875,000 83,125,000
Total liabilities 97,917,855 97,151,357
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9, 12, and 13)
Members' equity (deficit) (7,639,516) (12,391.,867)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

90,278,339 §

84,759,480




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Product sales, net $ 240409408 $ 267,127,189
Cost of sales 214,312,339 240 154 956
Gross profit 26,097,069 26,972,233
Selling, general and administrative expenses 12,494,168 13,396,570
Operating income 13,602,901 13,575,663

Other income {expense);
Interest income 2,833 4080
Interest expense (6,981,759) (8,976,425)
Debt extinguishment loss - {4,112)
Product recall, net of insurance recoveries 65,982 {910,412)
Other (8,713} (6,724)
(6,921,657) (9,893,593)
Net income $ 6,681,244 % 3,682 070

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members' Equity (Deficit)
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 |

Balance (deficit), December 31, 2010 $ (13,789,742}
Net income 3,682,070
Redemption of 56,574 non-voting membership units (15,000)
Additional paid-in capital for equity-based compensation 118,822
Cash distributions {2,386,017)

Balance (deficit), December 31, 2011 (12,391,867}
Net income 6,681,244
Additional paid-in capital for equity-based compensation 97,213
Cash distributions (2,028,106)

Balance (deficit), December 31, 2012 $ (7,639,516)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 6,681,244 $ 3682070
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 5,663,659 6,712,592
Loss on debt extinguishment - 4112
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 8,713 8,724
Equity-based compensation expense 97,213 116,822
Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase} in:
Trade receivables {6,552,195) 3,037,820
inventories (6,912,069) (497,383)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,423,672 (1,694,908)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 5,093,087 1,028,849
Accrued expenses (211,473) (933,843)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,291,851 11,462 855
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (4,268,782) {3,635,354)
Net cash used in investing activities {4,268,782) (3,635,354)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase {decrease) in excess of outstanding
checks over bank balance 4,422 384 (221,282}
Net proceeds from (payments on) revolving credit facilities (3,000,000) 2,200,000
Proceeds from borrowings on term loans - 85,000,000
Principal payments on term loans (5,537,500} (5,425,000}
Redemption of and principal payments on senior secured notes - (85,095,000}
Debt issue costs - (3,766,608)
Redemption of non-voting membership units - (15,000}
Cash distributions paid (2,026,106) {2,386,017)
Net cash used in financing activities (6,141,222) (9,709,607)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {5,118,153) (1,882,108)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 5,133,369 7,015,475
Ending $ 15,216  $§ 5,133,369
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for interest $ 7,218,268 $ 8,487,904

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business: lHeadquartered in Evansville, Indiana, AmeriQual Group, LLC {AQG), together with
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Thermo Pac, LLC (TP) and AmeriQual Finance Corp. (FinCo), collectively,
the "Company,” is a leading provider of Meals, Ready to Eat (MRES) and other food products to the U.S.
Department of Defense. in addition, the Company sells thermal processed and high-pressure processed,
shelf-stable and refrigerated food to large commercial branded food companies, non-governmental relief
organizations and governmental agencies. The Company has three reportable business segments
consisting of: AQG's food processing (AmeriQual Foods) and assembly (AmeriQual Packaging) divisions
and TP. FinCo was formed in March 2005 as a special purpose finance entity for the purpose of being a
co-issuer on senior secured notes issued and has no operations or net assets.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies follows:

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements: The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peried. Actual results could differ from those
astimates.

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AQG and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and cash equivalents: For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly
liguid debt instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Member assets and liabilities: In accordance with the generally accepted method of presenting limited
liability company (LLC} financial statements, the financial statements do not include the assets and
liabilities of AQG’s members, including their obligations for income taxes on their distributive shares of the
net income of AQG, nor any provision for income tax expense.,

Trade receivables: Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for
uncollectible aceounts receivable. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers and
pravisions are made for estimated uncollectible trade accounts receivable. Each month, management
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individua! customer's receivables
and considering a custemer’s financial condition, credit history and current economic conditions. Trade
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of trade receivables previously written
off are recorded when received.

The Company generally does not charge interest on past-due amounts or require collateral on trade
receivables.

Concentration of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and receivables. At times, cash in banks is in
excess of the FDIC insurance limit. The Company has not experienced any loss as a result of those
deposits and does not expect any in the future. The Company’s trade receivables are concentrated with
one significant customer.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) average cost method. Costs included in inventories consist of materials, labor and fixed
and variable manufacturing overhead which are related to the purchase and production of inventories,
including production machine parts.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is generally
computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Land improvements 15
Buildings 10 - 40
Machinery and equipment 3-7
Office equipment, software, furniture and fixtures 3-7

Amortization of leasehold improvements is on the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or
the life of the improvement,

Construction and equipment installations in progress primarily represent building additions and/or
production equipment installations. Such assets are not depreciated untif they are placed in service.

Goodwill, other intangible and other assets: Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of business
acquisitions over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired
in a purchase business coembination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but
instead reviewed for impairment at least annually, as well as when an event triggering impairment may
have occurred. If the carrying value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The impairment determination for
goodwill is made using a two-step process by comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair
value. The first step tests for impairment, while the second step, if necessary, measures the impairment.
An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds its implied fair value. The
Company has elected to perform its annual analysis as of December 31 of each fiscal year. The TP
reporting unit narrowly passed the first step of the 2012 impairment determination for goodwill and, as a
result, there is a significant risk of impairment loss recognition in the year ending December 31, 2013, if
TF's projected net sales and gross profit increases are not able to be achieved as projected by the
Company's management. The carrying amount of TP reporting unit goodwill, included as a component of
goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, was approximately $2.6 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011. No impairment foss was recognized by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011,

Customer relationships are amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years, depending on the customer’s industry. The noncompete agreement is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the related agreement, 3 years. The trademark license agresment is amortized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the related agreement, 20 years.

The trademark acquired is an indefinite-lived intangible asset and is not amortized until the useful life is
determined to be no longer indefinite.

Debt issue costs are amortized over the average term of the related credit agreement using the effective
interest method, with amortization included in interest expense. Debt issue costs associated with debt
extinguishment prior to maturity are expensed.

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset o future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are
impaired, the impairment is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated future discounted cash flows. Assets to be sold are reported at the lower of the carrying amount
or the fair value less costs to sell.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred revenue: The Company, in certain transactions, bills customers prior to shipment, and
revenues applicable to such billings are deferred until the product is shipped.

Product liability: Accruals for product liability claims are recorded, on an undiscounted basis, when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the lability can be reasonably estimated
based on existing information and are adjusted periodically as additional information becomes available.
The Company purchases certain liability, umbrella and product contamination and recall insurance from
third-party insurance carriers. Receivables for insurance recoveries related to claims are recorded on an
undiscounted basis, when it is probable that a recovery will be realized.

Income taxes: AQG and TP file combined federal and state income tax returns as a single LLC. TP, as a
single member LLC, is not recognized by the taxing authorities as a separate reporting entity. An LLC is
taxed under sections of the federal and state income tax laws, which provide that the members separately
account for their pro rata shares of the LLC’s items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore,
these statements do not include any provision or liability for income taxes applicable to AQG and TP.

FinCo is a corporation subject to income taxes and files its own separate income tax returns. There were
no income taxes applicable to FinCo from its formation to December 31, 2012,

Uncertainty in income taxes accounting guidance addresses the determination of whether tax benefits
claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under
this guidance, the Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more-
likely-than-not that the fax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the
technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a
position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also
addresses de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim
periods. Management evaluated the Company’s tax positions and concluded that the Company had
taken no uncertain tax positicns that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the
provisions of this guidance. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to income tax
examinations by the U.S. federal, state or local tax authcrities for years before 2009.

Member distributions: Member distributions are reported as a reduction of members’ equity when
declared by the Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. The Company intends to declare
distributions to assist the members in paying perscnal income taxes on the income of the Company. No
provision has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for any amounts which
may be declared as distributions subsequent to December 31, 2012,

Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when each of the following
conditions have been met: an arrangement exists, shipment has heen made under terms F.O.B. shipping
point and collectability is reasonably assured, which is generally upon shipment. The Company records
estimated discounts in the same period revenue is recognized based on historical experience.

Shipping and handling costs: Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales.

l-egal costs associated with loss contingencies: l.egai costs associated with loss contingencies are
expensed as incurred.

Equity-based compensation: For equity-based awards, compensation expense is measured at the
grant date, based upon the fair value of the award, calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and recognized as a component of cost of goods sold and/or selling, general and administrative
expense over the awards vesting pericds.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Recent accounting pronouncements: Delayed adoption of accounting standard: In May 2003, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued accounting guidance that requires that certain
freestanding financial instruments be reported as liabilities in the balance sheet. Depending on the type of
financial instrument, it wilt be accounted for at either fair value or the present value of future cash flows
determined at each balance sheet date with the change in that value reported as interest expense in the
income statement. Prior to the applicable FASB issued accounting guidance, either those financial
instruments were not required to be recognized, or if recognized, were reported in the balance sheet as
equity and changes in the value of those instruments were normally not recognized in net income. The
FASB has delayed indefinitely the effective date of this accounting guidance.

In December 2010, the FASB issued amended accounting guidance relating to the goodwill impairment
test for reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts. For those reporting units with zero or
negative carrying amounts, an entity is required to perform "Step Two" of the goodwill impairment test if it
is more-likely-than-not that a goodwill impairment exists. In determining whether it is more-likely-than-not
that a goodwill impairment exists, an entity should consider whether there are any adverse qualitative
factors indicating that an impairment may exist. The accounting guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011, and was adopted by the Company effective January 1, 2012, and did
not have any effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance related to fair value measurements and
disclosures that result in commeon fair value measurements and disclosures between U.S. GAAP and
International Financial Reporting Standards. This guidance includes amendments that clarify the
application of existing fair value measurement requirements, in addition to cther amendments that change
principles or requirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value
measurements. The accounting guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2011, and was adopted by the Company effective January 1, 2012, and did not have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB issued guidance to amend and simplify the rules related to testing indefinite-lived
intangible assets for impairment. The revised guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors
to determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more-likely-than-not
that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If, after assessing the totality of events and
circumstances, an entity concludes that it is not more-likely-than-not that the indefinite-lived intangible
asset is impaired, then the entity is not required to take further action. However, if an entity concludes
otherwise, then it is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform
the quantitative impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount in accordance with
current guidance. These amendments are effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for
fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have a
materiat effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Inventories

A summary of inventories as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

2012 2011
Raw materials $ 18450,259 $ 16,860,720
Work in process 2,061,501 1,374,188
Finished goods 7,756,844 3,347,561
Parts _ 2,593,578 2,367,644
$ 30,862,182 § 23,950,113

Note 2. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

2012 2011

Land and improvements 3 2061626 § 2,039,015
Buildings 12,656,839 12,656,839
Leasehold improvements 4,641,025 4479744
Machinery and equipment 54,689,766 51,322 577
Office equipment, software, furniture and fixtures 3,600,781 3,977.925
Construction and eguipment installations in progress 437 574 1,378,995

78,087,611 75,855,095
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 52,405,424 49,869,853

$ 25682187 3 25,985,242

Approximately $4,099,000 and $3,986,000 of the leasehold improvements as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively, were made to the AmeriQual Packaging facility which is being leased from a related

pary.

Depreciation expense on property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, was
$4,563,124 and $5,116,614, respectively.

11




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4.

Other Intangible and Other Assets

Other intangible and other assets consisted of the following as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Definite-lived, subject to amortization:

Customer relationships
Noncompete agreement
Trademark license agreement
Debt issue costs

Indefinite-lived:
Trademark

Definite-lived, subject to amartization:

Customer relationships
Noncompete agreement
Trademark license agreement
Debt issue costs

Indefinite-lived:
Trademark

Gross Carrying  Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
2012
$ 5200000 $ 1450140 $ 3,749,880

330,000 330,000 -
160,000 35,333 124,667
3,846,119 1,462,465 2,483,654
9,636,119 3,277,938 6,358,181
500,000 - 500,000

$ 10,136,119 $ 3277938 § 6,858,181

2011

$ 5200000 $ 1,121,808 $ 4,078,194
330,000 330,000 -
160,000 27,333 132,667
3,946,119 698,264 3,247,855
9,636,119 2177,403 7,458,716
500,000 - 500,000

$ 10,136,119 $ 2177403 $ 7,958,716

Amortization expense recognized an all definite-lived intangible and other assets totaled $1,100,535 and
$1,675,090 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Estimated aggregate annual amortization expense on definite-lived intangible and other assets, in future

years, is as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter

12

Amount

$ 1,100,534
1,100,534
1,100,534

627,383
336,333
2,192 883

3 6358181




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, are comprised of the following:

2012 2011
Compensation $ 2563961 $ 2,174,976
Self insurance 682,084 625,485
Real and personal property and payroll taxes 1,094,999 929,313
Interest 361,950 1,362,660
Product recall 583,122 633,365
Other 281,448 53,238

$ 5567564 $ 5,779,037

Note 6. Pledged Assets, Current and Long-Term Debt and Debt Extinguishment
A summary of long-term debt as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, is as follows:

2012 2011
Term Loans, terms as described below $ 77,837,500 $ 83,375,000
Revolving loan facilities, due March 28, 2018, other terms as
described below - 3,000,000
) 77,837,500 86,375,000
lL.ess current maturities 962,500 3,250,000
Long-term portion $ 76,875,000 $ 83,125,000

In January 2011, the Company entered into a private transaction to redeem and retire approximately
$10.0 million of its outstanding senior secured notes. The transaction was finalized at a purchase price of
approximately $10.3 million, consisting of approximately $10.0 milfion of principal and $0.3 million of
accrued interest. The redemption transaction resulted in a debt extinguishment loss of approximately
$4,000. This loss included amortization of approximately $79,000 in previously unamortized debt issue
costs.

On March 28, 2011, the Company entered into an amended and restated loan and security agreement
(the New Facility) with its current revolving loan facility lender (the Agent) and certain other participating
lenders. In addition, proceeds of the New Facility were used to satisfy and discharge the Company's
senior secured notes, repay its existing revolving loan facility, repay and terminate TP’s existing foan
facility, pay certain fees and transaction expenses related to the New Facility and provide working capital.

The New Facility expires March 28, 20186, or earlier as defined in the New Facility, and provides a
maximum credit facility of $120.0 million comprised of $65.0 million in term loan A, $20.0 million in term
loan B {collectively, the Term Loans) and a $35.0 million revolving loan facility. Term loans A and B are
payable in quarterly principal installments of $762,500 and $50,000, respectively, from July 2011 to
January 2016, with the entire unpaid balance of each loan due March 28, 2016. The Company prepaid
three quarterly principal installments on term loan A in 2012. The outstanding term loan A and B balance
was $58,137,500 and $19,700,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2012, and $63,475,000 and
$19,900,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2011. The revolving loan facility includes a sub-facility for
letters of credit, not to exceed $5.0 million. There were no cutstanding letters of credit as of December
31, 2012 and 2011.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Piedged Assets, Current and Long-Term Debt and Debt Extinguishment (Continued)

The Term Loans and the revolving loan facility bear interest at a base rate or a LIBOR rate, at the
Company’s discretion, plus a margin. Interest is payable monthly on alf base rate loans and on the earlier
of the last day of the applicable interest period or the quarterly interval during such interest period for
LIBOR rate loans. As of December 31, 2012, the entire term lpan A balance was at the LIBOR rate (an
effective rate of 6.50%). As of December 31, 2012, $19,600,000 of the term loan B was at the LIBOR
rate (an effective rate of 9.00%) and $100,000 was at the base rate (an effective rate of 9.75%). The
Company is also required to pay a monthly unused revolving lean facility fee at the rate of 0.75% per
annum, cerfain monthly letter of credit fees at the rate of 0.25% per annum and certain fees and
expenses otherwise as defined in the New Facility.

Botrowings under the New Facility are collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company.

The New Facility includes certain covenants that generally restrict the Company's ability to change its
business conducted, incur additional indebtedness, redeem equity interests or make other distributions
{other than permitted tax distributions), make certain investments, create liens on assets, enter into
transactions with affiliates, merge or consolidate, and transfer or sell assets, in excess of defined
amounts. In addition, the New Facility requires the Company to comply with certain financial covenants,
including maximum total leverage and minimum fixed charge coverage ratios, calculated quarterly for the
trailing twelve month period, and a limitation on annual capital expenditures.

The aggregate annual maturities on the Term Loans are subject to adjustment since the Company is
required fo make prepayments, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after each fiscal year-end in
amounts equal to filty percent {50%) of its excess cash flows, as defined in the New Facility. There were
no excess cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2012, and therefore no accelerated maturities
were applicable to 2013 maturities in the table below.

Aggregate annual maturities required on long-term debt are due in future years as follows;

Amount
Year Ending December 31,
2013 3 962,500
2014 3,250,000
2015 3,250,000
20186 70,375,000
$ 77,837,500

Prior to the refinancing transactions on March 28, 2011, AQG had a $35 million revolving loan facility with
the Agent and certain other participating lenders. Borrowings under the revolving credit facility had an
effective interest rate of 6.50%. In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the revolving
credit facility, the Company was required to pay a commitment fee to the lenders in respect of unutilized
commitments there under at a rate from 0.50% to 1.00% per annum.

Prior to the refinancing transactions on March 28, 2011, the senior secured notes bore interest at 9.50%
and were due April 1, 2012.
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AmeriQual Group, LL.C and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Pledged Assets, Current and L.ong-Term Debt and Debt Extinguishment (Continued}

Prior to the refinancing transactions on March 28, 2011, TP had a loan agreement with a bank that
included a revolving loan facility and a term loan. The revolving loan facility provided for borrowings up to
the lesser of $3,500,000, or a borrowing base that consisted of the aggregate of certain percentages of
eligible accounts receivable and inventories. Advances under the revolving loan facility bore interest at a
rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin. As amended, the minimum effective
interest rate on such revolving credit facility was 4.00%. The term loan was due in monthly principal
installments of $100,000 plus accrued interest with the entire unpaid balance due August 2011. The term
loan bore interest at a rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin.

Note 7. Members’ Deficit and Gperating Agreement

Members' deficit: The Company’s members' deficit is primarily the result of a leveraged recapitalization
and other related transactions that occurred on March 31, 2005, and included payment of cash dividends
to AQG’s members, who were the sellers of approximately 50% of their voting and non-voting
membership units to AQ Acquisition LLC (as a part of such transactions), that reduced members’ equity
by approximately $110.8 million.

Authorized, issued and outstanding voting and non-voting membership units are summarized as follows
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 2011
issued and Issued and
Authorized Outstanding Authorized Outstanding
Voting units 45,200,000 45,200,000 45,200,000 45,200,000
Non-voting units 49,254,071 (a) 35,230,767 49,254,071 (a) 35,230,767

(a) 14,023,304 of these units were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of warrants (6,554,168 units),
options (7,282,408 units} and unissued options (186,728 units).

Certain rights, features and/or terms of voting and non-voting units, warrants issued to AmeriQual
Holding, Inc. (AQH) and AQG’s Operating Agreement are summarized below:

Voting units’ rights: In general, actions required by interest holders in respect to the business affairs of
the Company may only be taken by holders of voting units and, in any event, actions require the approval
of both AQ Acquisition LLC (which owned 50% of outstanding voting and total units as of December 31,
2012 and 2011) and AQH (which owned 50% of outstanding voting units and approximately 33% of
outstanding total units as of December 31, 2012 and 2011). AQ Acquisition LLC is an affiliate of Ares
Management LLC {Ares) and Ares Corporate Opportunities Fund, L.P. (ACOF).

Non-voting units conversion rights: In the event of an issuance of additional voting units after
March 31, 2005, all holders of original non-voting units have a right to convert their original non-voting
units into voting units such that one original non-voting unit may be converted for each newly issued
voting unit until all such original non-voting units are converted.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Members’ Deficit and Operating Agreement {Continued)

Warrants issued to AQH: AQG issued certain warrants to AQH that aliow the holders to purchase non-
voting units of AQG at exercise prices of $2.17 or $2.92. Warrants issued to AQH included 5,982,777
warrants, 50% of which have an exercise price of $2.17 and 50% of which have an exercise price of
$2.92. All warrants issued to AQH were outstanding as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. Such warrants
were 100% vested upon issue and are exercisable for a 10-year period from date of issue {an expiration
date of March 31, 2015).

Operating agreement: AQG operates under a fourth amendment and restatement of its Operating
Agreement (the AROA) with its members. The AROA defines, among other things, AQG’s purpose and
terms with its members including: initial capital accounts determination and maintenance thereafter,
additional capital contributions of members, allocation of profits and losses, cash flow distributions and
liguidation and dissolution distributions, transfer of ownership interests and withdrawals of members,
voting and non-voting units issued and rights, deadlock resolution actions in the event of material
disagreements among voting members, covenants with respect to transactions with affiliates, information
rights, advisory fees and other, and General Manager powers, authority and governance. The term of the
LLC shall continue perpetually, unless its existence is sooner terminated pursuant to terms as specified in
the ARCA.

Under the AROA, AmeriCual Management, Inc. {AMI} was designated to serve as the General Manager
and as such controls substantially all significant governance matters decisions with respect to AQG. AMI
is owned equally by AQH and an affiliate of Ares and AMI's Beard of Directors is authorized to have eight
directors with equal representation designated by AQH and the affiliate of Ares.

Certain provisions of the AROA with respect to withdrawals of membership unit holders are as follows:

Involuntary withdrawal of or termination of employee membership unit holder: Immediately upon
the occurrence of an involuntary withdrawal of or the cessation of employment on a full-time basis in
respect of an employee membership unit holder, AQG has the first option right, but not the obligation, to
purchase all units of such affected employee member at its fair market value. In the event AQG decides
not to purchase such units, then each of AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates and AQH have the second
option right to purchase such units under the same terms as the first option.

First offer rights: At any time or from time to time, and prior to a qualified initial public offering (IPO),
AQH and non-voting members may offer to sell all or part of their membership units and AQG has the first
option right, but not the obligation, to purchase such units on detailed terms specified in an investor’'s
notice. In the event AQG decides not to purchase such units, then AQ Acquisition LLC or any of its
affifiates have the second option right to purchase such units on the same terms specified in the
investor's notice. AQ Acquisition LLC may assign its right to purchase to another interest holder or a
permitted transferee, at its sole option. These rights will not apply to transfers to a permitted transferee or
transfers to which drag-along rights or liquidity rights are to be applied.

Tag-along rights: If, at any time or from time to time prior to an IPO, either (a) a proposed transfer of
membership units by AQ Acquisition LLC or any of its affiliates to a third party or {b) a proposed transfer
by AQH or any of its affiliates or by any other unit holder beneficially owning units representing 10% or
more of all the outstanding units (on a fully diluted basis assuming exercise of warrants and options) of
AQG, each other unit holder will have the right to participate in such sale on a pro rata basis and such
other unit holders shall also have the right to participate on the same terms and conditions as granted to,
provided to or purchased by the proposed transferor and its affiliates. These rights will not apply to
transfers to a permitted transferee or transfers to which drag-along rights or liquidity rights are to be
applied.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Members’ Deficit and Operating Agreement (Continued)

Drag-along rights: [f at any time, and prior fo an IPO, AQ Acquisition LL.C and its affiliates intend to
effect a change of control, AQ Acquisition 1.1.C and its affiliates shall have the right to require that all other
holders of membership units participate with it on a pro rata basis in any bona fide transaction with a
person that is not an affiliate {(whether through a transfer of shares or a merger, consclidation or sale of
assets) resuiting in a change of control. To the extent the other unit holders participate as set forth above,
such participation must be pro rata and on the same terms and conditions as granted to, provided to or
purchased by AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates.

Liquidity rights: Af any time after a deadlock event as defined, ACOF may cause AQG to effect an IPQ
or may initiate a process to realize value in whole or in part on a private basis, whether through the sale
of units, a recapitalization or a sale to a third party of AQG as an entirety {in any such case, a Liguidity
Event). ACOF can require that all other unit holders and the General Manager of AQG participate, and all
unit holders and the General Manager of AQG shall be entitled to participate, in a Liguidity Event on a
pro rata basis as necessary to achieve liquidity for their economic interests in AQG and on the same
terms and conditions as granted to, provided to or purchased by AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates.

Note 8. Major Customer

Revenue for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, includes revenue from product sales to the
following major customer, together with the trade receivables due from such customer as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Percent to Total

Customer

U.S. Government agencies

Product Sales, Net

Product Sales, Net

2012 2011

2012 2011

$ 175,840,696  § 208,219,943

73.1% 77.9%

Information regarding trade receivables from the major customer is as follows:

Percent to Percent to
Total Trade Total Trade
Amount Receivables Amount Receivables
Customer 2012 2011
1.5, Government agencies $ 9,949 448 689% $ 3,951,782 50.1%

The segment revenue breakdown from product sales to the major customer among the Company’s
repcrtable operating segments is as follows:

Product Sales, Net

Percent to Total
Product Sales, Net

Customer 2012 2011 2012 2011
AmeriQual Foods:

U.8. Government agencies $ 57,071,740 $ 71,818,790 66.5% 72.2%
AmeriQual Packaging:

U.S. Government agencies $ 109,071,735  $ 124,303,503 92.3% 96.9%
TP:

U.S. Government agencies $ 9697221 § 12,097,650 26.6% 30.7%
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Note 9. Lease Commitments and Total Rent Expense

AQG leases the AmeriQual Packaging facility from AQ Real Estate, LLC (formerly known as The
American Patriot Group, LLC), a related party whose members are owners of AQH, under a
noncancelabie agreement (inclusive of certain amendments) that expires December 2014, Under the
lease terms, monthly rent payments required are approximately $61,600. In addition to monthly rent, the
Company is also responsible for substantially all executory costs applicable to the facility leased including
insurance, maintenance, utilittes and property taxes and is required to make all necessary repairs.

AQG has an option to extend the lease for an additional five-year period at inflation adjusted rent and an
option to purchase the leased property through June 30, 2013, at fair market value.

AQG is also obligated, under other operating leases with unrelated parties, for certain warehouse facilities
and equipment under noncancelable agreements that expire in various years through February 2017 and

generally require minimum monthly rental amounts and certain warehouse facilities on a month-to-month

basis.

TP leases ¢operations facilities and equipment from various unrelated parties under operating leases that
expire in various years through July 2018 and generally require minimum monthly rental amounts. In
addition, certain leases also require the payment of property taxes, normal maintenance and insurance
on the properties.

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, was approximately $1,935,000
and $1,957,000, respectively, inclusive of rental expense (and excluding executory costs) to the related
party LLC of $738,900 for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The total approximate minimum rental commitment as of December 31, 2012, required under
noncancelable leases, is due in future years as follows:

Related Unrelated
Party Parties Total
Year Ending December 31,
2013 $ 738,900 % 801.800 $ 1,540,700
2014 738,900 748,800 1,487,700
2015 - 575,900 575,900
2016 - 103,700 103,700
2017 - 76,100 76,100
Thereafter - 40,000 40,000

$ 1477800 $ 2346300 $ 3,824,100

Note 10. Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The Company participates in a defined contribution 401(k) pension plan offering substantially all
employees a choice to elect fo make contributions pursuant to salary reduction agreements upon
attaining certain age and length-of-service requirements. Employees may participate by contributing up to
a maximum of 80% of their salary, a portion of which is required to be matched by the Company. The
Company matches a participant’s elective salary deferrals at 100% of the first 3%, and 50% of the next
3% of a participant's compensation. The Company incurred matching contributions of approximately
$652,000 and $561,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Note 11. Equity-Based Compensation Awards

AQG has an option plan (the Plan} that permits option holders the right to purchase its non-voting units.
The Plan allows for grants of non-voting units of AQG up to a maximum of 7,469,136 units. The primary
purpose of the Plan is to provide additionai performance and retention incentives to key management
employees by facilitating their purchase of non-voting units of AQG. The Plan is administered by the
Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. Under the terms of the Plan, options may be granted
to purchase non-voting units of AQG at exercise prices set on the date an option is granted and as
determined by the Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. Exercise or purchase price per
unit amounts are generally approved at or above the grant date estimated fair value per unit of AQG's
members' equity. Awards issued under the Plan vest and become exercisable in five equal annual
installments from the date of grant provided the employee is continuocusly employed by the employer
through the applicable vesting date, subject to 100% acceleration of vesting upon a change of ownership
control, as defined in the Plan, Options are generally exercisable for a 10-year period from date of grant.

AQG also issued warrants to AQH and certain non-voting members that allow the holders to purchase
non-voting units of AQG at an exercise price of $2.17 or $2.92. Warrants issued to selected key
employees and a non-employee who are also non-voting members meet the conditions for compensation
awards and are included with options in the tables below. Warrants are 100% vested upon issue and
exercisable for a 10-year period from date of issue {an expiration date of March 31, 2015).

AQG receives no monetary consideration for the granting of equity-based awards pursuant to the Plan or
otherwise. However, it receives the option/warrant price for each nen-voting unit issued to holders upon
the exercise of the options/warrants.

The fair value of each award is estimated as a single award and amortized into compensation expense on
a straight-line basis over its vesting period.

The Company estimates the fair value of all option awards and applicable warrants issued as of the grant
date by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The use of this valuation model involves
assumptions that are judgmental and highly sensifive in the determination of compensation expense and
include the expected life of the option/warrant, unit price volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield,
exercise price and forfeiture rate. Under FASB issued accounting guidance effective for awards issued or
modified after December 31, 2005, forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuation and reduce expense
ratably over the vesting period. The forfeiture rate, which is estimated at a weighted average of 8% of
unvested options outstanding, is adjusted periodically based on the extent to which actual forfeitures
differ, or are expected to differ, from the previous estimate.
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Note 11. Equity-Based Compensation Awards (Continued)

A summary of options and applicable warrants at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and changes during the

years then ended is as follows:

Outstanding at beginning of year

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Expired

Outstanding at end of year

Exercisable at end of year
Unvested at end of year

2012 2011

Weighted Woeighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Units Price Units Price

7853798 § 1.52 8,040526 % 1.62
- - {186,728) 1.50
7,853,798 1.52 7,853,798 1.52
7,144,230 1.53 6,696,082 1.53
709,568 1.50 1,157,716 1.50

There were 186,728 non-voting units avaitabie for future employee grants at December 31, 2012. The
total compensation cost at December 31, 2012, related to non-vested awards not yet recognized was
approximately $82,000 with an average expense recognition period of approximately one year.

A further summary of equity-based compensation awards outstanding at December 31, 2012, was as

follows:

Exercise Prices
$0.92
$1.92
$2.17
$2.92
$1.00
$2.00

7,853,798

20

7,144,230

Options and Options and
Warrants Qutstanding Warrants Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Number Contractual Number Contractual

Qutstanding Life Exercisable Life

2,520,834 2.25 2,520,834 225
2,520,834 225 2,520,834 2.25
285,695 225 285,695 2.25
285,695 225 285,695 225
1,120,370 575 785,586 5.87
1,120,370 875 765,586 5.67




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 12. Related-Party Transactions
Aircraft Usage

The Company uses aircraft which are owned by other companies affiliated through common ownership.
The Company incurred expenses to related parties for aircraft usage of none and approximately $52,060
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Building Rent Expense

AQ Real Estate, LLC owns a building which is leased to AQG. Reference should be made to Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements for those lease arrangements, commitments and total rent expense
applicable thereto.

Advisory Fees

AQG has certain agreements with AQH and an affiliate of Ares the terms of which require each party to
provide advisory and consulting services to AQG for $250,000 annually, payable quarterly in advance.
The agreements expire March 31, 2015. As a result of said agreements, the Company incurred $500,000
in advisory services expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The Company
has future commitments as of December 31, 2012, under these agreements for $500,000 annually for the
years 2013 and 2014 and $125,000 for the first quarter of the year 2015,

Note 13. Other Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In order to complete the equipment installations in progress, the Company was committed to vendors for
equipment purchases of approximately $232,000 as of December 31, 2012. These commitments are
expected to be financed hy cash flows from operating activities.

Contingencies, including legal proceedings and product liability maliers

In May 2011, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) first warned against using a food thickening
agent sold under the product brand name SimplyThick (ST}. TP is one of certain companies that
manufacture ST for a product design, marketing and distribution company located in Missourf (the
Customer). The FDA conducted an inspection of TP's manufacturing facilities located near Atlanta, GA
from May 23 to June 3, 2011, and discovered that TP had failed to file with the FDA a scheduled process
designed to ensure that vegetative cells of microorganisms (harmful bacteria) of possible public health
significance are destroyed during the manufacturing process. Upon nctification of the FDA observations,
TP voluntarily ceased proeducing and shipping ST product and, on June 4, 2011, the Customer initiated a
voluntary recall of ST manufactured by TP. Shortly after the FDA inspection observations were issued, TP
issued responses to the FDA specifying that all applicable ST product (for which production had resumed
after the voluntary recall) was produced following filed and accepted process parameters as accepted by
the FDA. In June of 2012, TP ceased all manufacture of ST. In September of 2012, based on an
extensive review of reports of health problems potentially tied to ST, the FDA updated its May 2011
warning regarding ST. The 2012 update (i} expanded FDA’s recommendation against consumption of ST
to include infants of any age {ii} reported that identified instances of a rare intestinal-tissue disease known
as necrotizing enterocolitis (NEC) among children born at hospitals using the ST product had increased to
twenty-two, including seven deaths and (iii) concluded that further study is warranted to establish if there
is a link between NEC and ST and other thickening agents.
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Note 13.  Other Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

As of March 20, 2013, the Company has been served with notice of nine lawsuits relating to alleged
damages resulting from the alleged consumption of ST. In addition it is presently believed that the
Company is threatened with possible additional litigation, associated with approximately 14 to 20
additional named or unnamed plaintiffs purportedly represented by various law firms. In the case of the
named plaintiffs in pending litigation we are aware of, the recovery sought includes money damages for
personal injuries and/or death resulting from the consumption of claimed defective or tainted ST. The
various legal theories and/or claims asserted against the Company include: {1} strict product liabiiity -
manufacturing defect; (2) strict preduct liability - failure to warn; (3) strict product liability — design defect;
(4) negligence; (5} gross negligence; (6) breach of express and implied wairanty; (7) negligent
misrepresentation; (8) negligent infliction of emoctional distress; (9) wrongful death; (10} Survival Act;
{11) compensatory, punitive and/or unspecified damages; and (12) violation of various other state-specific
consumer protection laws and/or statutes. The lawsuits and threatened litigation, in each case, name
several of the following defendants: TP; AQG,; the Customer,; the former owner and operator of the TP
manufacturing faciity; the third party distributors of ST; and the hospital medical providers (the
Defendants).

The Company plans to contest all matters in controversy in each of the lawsuits and incidents of
threatened litigation. The Company has taken steps to preserve any rights it may have for insurance
recovery, for indemnification by other third parties or for contribution by other named Defendants.
According to external legal counsel, based on their investigation through March 20, 2013, they (i) are not
aware of any direct evidence that there was any bacterial contamination in any ST product manufactured
or processed by the Company which was consumed by any of the minors in any of the cases presented
through such date, and (ii) do not know whether there is any connection between an alleged bacterial
contamination in the processing of ST and the subsequent onset of NEC. According to the Company’s
management and external legal counsel, they believe it is premature {o evaluate the likelihcod of a
favorable or unfavorable outcome in any case alleging consumption of ST or to estimate the amount or
range of potential loss in the event of an unfavorable cutcome. Once discovery is completed, external
legal counsel has indicated they will be in a better position to estimate the likelihood of success on the
merits of the defense and/or the amount or range of potential loss, although it is generally not feasible to
predict the ultimate outcome of litigation,

The damages amounts claimed in the pending lawsuits referred to above are significant, and other claims
made or unknown claims that may be asserted in the future related to ST product liability matters may
also be significant and, in the event of an unfavorable outcome, may have a material adverse effect on
the: Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

The Company is involved in certain other legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of

husiness. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such other proceedings and litigation will not
materially affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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The Company self-insures a portion of the risks associated with medical expenses incurred by its
employees and their dependents. The Company has secondary insurance coverage for individual claims
in excess of $100,000 and for aggregate annual claims exceeding an estimated contract maximum,
approximately $5.0 million for the policy year ending September 30, 2013. Claims are expensed as
incurred. In establishing accruals for claims incurred and reported and estimates for claims incurred but
not yet reported, the Company uses factors such as historical experience, known trends and third-party
administrator estimates to determine the appropriate amounts to report as accrued liabilities. Changes in
the perceived severity of unreported claims, significant changes in medical costs and legislative changes
affecting the administration of the Company's plan could significantly impact the determination of
appropriate accruals. Amounts charged to expense for such claims were approximately $4,136,000 and
$4,297,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

A loss or substantial negative revision of any U.S. Government sales contract could adversely affect the
Company's results of operations and cash flows and a loss or substantial negative revision to the |
Company's MRE assembly or Unitized Group Rations-A contracts would have a material adverse

consequence to the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.

In November 2011, the Company was awarded a new MRE contract that expires in November 2016. To
date the U.S. Government (Department of Defense), through its Defense Logistics Agency - Troop
Support (DLATS), has issued delivery orders for minimum contract guantities for calendar year 2013,
The new MRE contract requires annual re-pricing in conjunction with the allocation of delivery orders for
the calendar year minimum contract quantities.

Note 14. Segment Information

The Company's three reportable segments offer different products and services and consist of AmeriQual
Foods (Foods), AmeriQual Packaging (Packaging) and TP. The Foods segment processes (i} shelf stable
food products in microwavable bowls, trays and pouches which are sold to commercial customers,

(i) shelf stable pouches which are sold to the Packaging segment, (iii) high-pressure processed food
products which are sold to commercial customers and (iv) perishable UGR-A modules which are soid to a
governmental customer. The Packaging segment assembles food and other products into packages
which are primarily sold to governmental, non-governmental relief organization and commercial
customers. The TP segment processes shelf stable food products in cups and pouches that are sold to
commercial customers, a governmental customer and to the Packaging segment. The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Inter-segment transactions have been eliminated.

Inter-segment transactions are recorded at prices typically consistent with sales prices to external
customers.

The Company evaluates segment profit based on operating income.
The Company's two main product lines are military rations and commercial branded products. For the

years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, approximately 71% and 73%, respectively, of the Company’s
net product sales were military products and the remainder was commercial products.
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The Company’s sales by product line for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, are as follows:

2012 2011
Military products $ 169,823458 § 194,053,754
Commercial products 70,585,950 73,073,435

$ 240,409,408 $ 267,127,189

Reportable operating segment financial information as of or for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, is as follows:

Product Inter-segment Operating Depreciation/ Capital

Operating Segments Sales, net Revenue Income (Loss) Amortization Total Assets Expenditures
AmeriQual Foods

2012 $ 85,834,454 § 31,827,691 $ 833,112 § 3,929,187 3§ 54665922 § 3476668

2011 99 447 297 33,950,641 (1,407,934} 4,783,880 54,941,444 1,834,764
AmeriQual Packaging

2012 118,118,363 - 15,857,621 626,150 135,809,464 205,334

2011 128,243,192 - 17,339,300 850,348 115,856,611 142,149
TP

2012 36,456,591 2,480,009 (3,027,144) 1,108,322 17,505,889 586,780

2011 36,436,700 3,314,116 (2,370,977) 1,157,476 19,721,880 1,658,441
Eliminations

2012 - {34,307,700) 139,312 - (117,702,938) -

2011 - {37,264,757) 15,274 - (105,760,445)
Total Company

2012 240,409,408 - 13,602,901 5,663,659 80,278,339 4,268,782

2011 267,127,189 - 13,575,663 5,791,704 84,759,490 3,635,354

Note 15.  Fair Value Disclosures

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including frade receivables and accounts payable are
estimated to approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of
term loans and revolving loan facilities debt is estimated to approximate fair value because the interest
rates fluctuate with market rates or are based on estimated current rates offered to the Company for debt
with similar terms and maturities.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company did not have any financial or non-financial assets or
liabilities that were reported at fair value.

Note 16, Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2012, as to their potential
impact to the consolidated financial statements through March 21, 2013, which represents the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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Mchimdray LLP

— McGladrey

independent Auditor's Report
on the Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors of
AmeriQual Management, Inc.
and the Members
AmeriCGual Group, LLC
Evansville, Indiana

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AmeriQual Group, LLC and its subsidiaries as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and have issued our report thereon which
contains an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. See pages 1 and 2. Our
audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to
present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the individual companies and is not
a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional pracedures, including comparing and recenciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in ali
material respects in relation to the consolidated financiat statements as a whole.

/%4%4&7 L

Peoria, lllinois
March 21, 2013
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AmeriGual Group, LL.C and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

AmeriCual Thermo AmeriQual
Group, Pac, Finance
LLC LLC Corp. Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current asseis
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15216  § - -8 - % 15,216
Trade receivables, net 12,324,143 2,122,754 - - 14,446,897
Intercompany receivables 11,519,963 - - (11,519,963) -
Inventories 25,725,749 5,193,768 - (57,335) 30,862,182
Prepaid expenses and other 914,711 119,771 - - 1,034,482
Total current assets 50,499,782 7,436,293 - (11,577,298) 46,358,777
Property and squipment, net 22,571,454 3,110,733 - - 25,682,187
Goodwill 8,794,860 2,584,334 - - 11,379,194
Other intangible and other assets 2,483 653 4,374,528 - - 6,858,181
Investment in subsidiaries 2,664,189 - - (2,664,189) -
$ 87013938 $ 17505888 - $ (14,241487) $ 90,278.333
Liabilities and Members' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities
Excess of outstanding checks over
bank balance $ 3802058 $ 620,326 - $ - $ 4,422.384
Accounts payable 8,564,298 1,528,111 - - 10,080,407
Intercompany payables - 11,519,963 - (11,519,963) -
Current maturities of long-term debt 962,500 - - - 962,500
Accrued expenses 4,392,265 1,175,299 - - 5,667 564
Total current liabilities 17,724,119 14,841,699 - (11,519,963) 21,042,855
Laong-term debi, less current maturities 76,875,000 - - - 76,875,000
Total liabilities 94,596,118 14,841,699 - {11,519,963) 97,917,855
Mambers' equity (deficit) (7.582,181) 2,664,189 - (2,721,524) (7,639,515)
$ 87013938 § 17505888 - $ (14241487) $ 90278339
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Income
Year Ended December 31, 2012

AmeriQual Thermo AmeriQual
Group, Pac, Finance ‘
LLC LLC Corp. Eliminations Consolidated ‘
Product sales, net $ 203,952,817 § 38,936,600 3 - $ (2.480,009) $ 240,409,408 . i
Cost of sales 177,649,052 39,175,754 (2,512,487) 214,312,339 1
Gross profit {loss) 26,303,765 (239,154) - 32,458 26,097,089
Selling, general and adminis{rative
expenses 9,706,178 2,787,990 - - 12,494,168
Operating income {loss) 16,597,587 (3,027,144) - 32,458 13,602,201
Other income (expense):
Interest income 2,832 1 - - 2,833
Interest expense (6,981,759) - - - (6,981,759)
Product recall, net of insurance
recoveries - 65,982 - - 65,982
Other (8,713) - - - (8,713)
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries {2,961,161) - - 2,961,161 -
(©,948,801) 65,983 - 2,961,181 (6,921,657)
Net income (loss) 3 6,648,786 $ (2,961,1681) 3 - $ 2,003619 § 6,681,244
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McGladrey LLP

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
AmeriQual Management, inc.
and the Members
AmeriQual Group, LL.C
Evansville, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of AmeriQual Group, LLC and its
subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in members’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for
the years then ended and the related notes fo the consalidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consclidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmenis, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

1

fiaabeor of the REMIntarmatiang] petwerk of Indapardent atcountlng, tax and consaiting firms,




Opinion

fn our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of AmeriQual Group, LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/%W e

Pecria, Illinois
March 21, 2014



AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,246 § 15,216
Trade receivables, net of allowances 2013 and 2012 $125,000 14,288,122 14,446,897
Inventories 29,777,423 30,862,182
Prepaid expenses and other 1,065,577 1,034,482
Total current assets 45,146,368 46 358,777
Property and equipment, net 26,858,615 25,682,187
Goodwill 11,379,194 11,379,194
Other intangible and other assets, net 5,994,377 6,858,181
$ 89378554 $ 90278339
Liabilities and Members' Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities
Excess of outstanding checks over bank balance $ 5,248,459 % 4,422 384
Accounts payable 5,334,117 10,090,407
Current maturities of long-term debt 2,487,500 962,500
Accrued expenses 4,991,039 5,667,564
Total current liabilities 18,061,115 21,042,855
Long-term debt
Revolving credit facility 5,182,202 -
Term foans, less current maturities 73,793,459 76,875,000
Total long-term debt 78,975,661 76,875,000
Total liabilities 97,036,776 97,917,855
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9, 12, and 13)
Members' equity (deficit) (7,658,222) (7.639,516)
$ 89378554 $ 90278339

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,




AmeriQual Group, LL.C and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013

2012

Product sales, net
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Product recall, net of insurance recoveries
Cther

Net income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

$ 186,271,554

$ 240,409,408

165,610,896 214,312,339
20,660,658 26,097,069
12,221,612 12,494,168

8,439,046 13,602,901

3,605 2,833
(7.203,820) {6,981,759)

- 65,982
39,928 (8,713}
(7,160,287) (6,921,657)

$ 1,278,759 3 6681244




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members' Equity (Deficit)

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Balance {deficit), December 31, 2011

Net income
Additional paid-in capital for equity-based compensation
Cash distributions

Balance (deficit), December 31, 2012

Net income

Additional paid-in capital for equity-based compensation
Redemption of 51,859 non-voting membership units
Cash distributions

Balance (deficit), December 31, 2013

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

$ (12,391,867)

6,681,244
97,213
(2,026,108)

(7,639,5186)

1,278,759
81,916

(13,750)
(1,365,631)

$ (7,658,222)




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income $ 1278789 3 6,681,244
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,915,535 5,663,659
Net (gain) loss on sale and disposal of property and equipment {39,928) 8,713
Equity-based compensation expense 81,916 97,213
Interest capitalized on debt 175,661 -
Change in working capital components:
Decrease (increase) in; .
Trade receivables 158,775 (6,552,195)
Inventories 1,084,759 (6,912,089)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {31,095) 1,423,672
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable {4,756,290) 5,093,087
Accrued expenses {576,525} (211,473)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,291,567 5,291,851
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment (5,919,151) (4,268,782)
Proceeds from saie of property and equipment 167,000 -
Purchase of noncompete agresment {50,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,802,151) (4,268,782)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase in excess of outstanding
checks over bank balance 826,075 4. 422 384
Net proceeds from (payments on} revolving credit facilities 5,175,000 (3,000,000)
Principal payments on term loans (1,725,000) (5,537,500)
Debt modification costs (386,080) -
Redemption of non-voting membership units (13,750) -
Cash distributions paid {1,365,631) (2,026,106)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,510,614 (6,141,222)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30 (5,118,153)
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning 15,216 5,133,369
Ending $ 15,246 $ 15,216
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash payments for interest $ 6,201,085 $ 7,218,268

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




AmeriQual Group, LL.C and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business: Headguartered in Evansville, Indiana, AmeriQual Group, LLC (AQG), together with
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Thermo Pac, LLC (TP) and AmeriQual Finance Corp. (FinCo), collectively,
the “Company,” is a leading provider of Meals, Ready to Eat (MREs)} and other foed products to the U.S.
Department of Defense. In addition, the Company sells thermal processed and high-pressure processed,
shelf-stable and refrigerated food to large commercial branded food companies, non-governmental relief
organizations and governmental agencies. The Company has three reportable business segments
consisting of: AQG's food processing (AmeriQual Foods) and assembly {AmeriQual Packaging) divisions
and TP. FinCo was formed in March 2005 as a special purpose finance entity for the purpose of being a
co-issuer on senior secured notes issued and has no operations or net assets.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies follows:

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements: The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AQG and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and cash equivalents: For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Company considers all highly
liquid debt instruments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Member assets and liabilities: In accordance with the generally accepted method of presenting limited
liability company (LL.C) financial statements, the consolidated financial statements do not include the
assets and liabilities of AQG's members, including their obligations for income taxes on their distributive
shares of the net income of AQG, nor any provision for income tax expense,

Trade receivables: Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for
uncollectible accounts receivable. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its customers and
provisions are made for estimated uncollectible trade accounts receivable. Each month, management
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by regularly evaluating individual customer’s receivables
and considering a customer’s financial condition, credit history and current economic conditions. Trade
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of trade receivables previously written
off are recorded when received.

The Company generally does not charge interest on past-due amounts or require collateral on trade
receivahles.

Concentration of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and receivables. At times, cash in banks is in
excess of the FDIC insurance limit. The Company has not experienced any loss as a result of those
deposits and does not expect any in the future. The Company’s trade receivables are concentrated with
one significant customer.

Inventories: Invenfories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined by the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) average cost method. Costs included in inventories consist of materials, labor and fixed
and variable manufacturing overhead which are related to the purchase and production of inventories,
including production machine parts.



AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Property and equipment. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is generally
computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Land improvements 15
Buildings 10 - 40
Machinery and equipment 3-7
Office equipment, software, furniture and fixtures 3-7

Amortization of leasehold improvements is on the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or
the life of the improvement.

Construction and equipment installations in progress primarily represent building additions and/or
production equipment installations. Such assets are not depreciated until they are placed in service.

Goodwill, other intangible and other assets: Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of business
acqguisitions over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired
in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amartized, but
instead reviewed for impairment at least annually, as well as when an event triggering impairment may
have occurred. If the carrying value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The impairment determination for
goodwill is made using a two-step process by comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair
value. The first step tests for impairment, while the second step, if necessary, measures the impairment.
An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds its implied fair value. The
Company has elected to perform its annual analysis as of December 31 of each fiscal year. The carrying
amount of goodwill by reporting unit, the total of which comprises goodwill in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets, was approximately $8.5 million — AmeriQual Packaging, $0.3 million —
AmeriQual Foods, and $2.6 million — TP, as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. No impairment loss was
recognized by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Customer relationships are amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated usefut lives of 10 to 20
years, depending on the customer’s industry. The noncompete agreements are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the related agreement, from 2 to 3 years. The trademark license agreement is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the related agreement, 20 years.

The trademark acquired is an indefinite-lived intangible asset and is not amortized until the useful life is
determined to be no longer indefinite,

Debt issue and medification costs capitalized are amortized over the average term of the related credit
agreement using the effective interest method, with amortization included in interest expense. Debt issue
costs associated with debt extinguishment prior to maturity are expensed. Debt issue and modification
costs amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was $951,051 and
$764,201, respectively,

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are
impaired, the impairment is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated future discounted cash flows. Assets to be sold are reported at the lower of the carrying amount
or the fair value less costs to sell.




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred revenue: The Company, in certain transactions, bills customers prior to shipment, and
revenues applicable to such billings are deferred until the product is shipped.

Product liability: Accruals for product liability claims are recorded, on an undiscounted basis, when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated
based on existing information and are adjusted periodically as additional information becomes available.
The Company purchases certain liability, umbrella and product contamination and recall insurance from
third-party insurance carriers. Receivables for insurance recoveries related to claims are recorded on an
undiscounted basis, when it is probable that a recovery will be realized.

Income taxes: AQG and TP file combined federal and state income tax returns as a single LLC. TP, as a
single member LLC, is not recognized by the taxing authorities as a separate reporting entity. An LLC is
taxed under sections of the federal and state income tax laws, which provide that the members separately
account for their pro rata shares of the LLC’s items of income, deductions, losses and credits. Therefore,
these statements do not include any provision or fiability for income taxes applicable to AQG and TP.

FinCo is a corporation subject to income taxes and files its own separate income tax returns. There were
no income taxes applicable to FinCo from its formation to December 31, 2013,

Uncertainty in income taxes accounting guidance addresses the determination of whether tax benefits
claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under
this guidance, the Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more-
likely-than-not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the
technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a
position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihcod of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also
addresses de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim
periods. Management evaluated the Company’s tax positions and concluded that the Company had
taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the
provisions of this guidance. With few exceptions, the Company is no lenger subject to income tax
examinations by the U.S. federal, state or local tax authorities for years before 2010,

Member distributions: Member distributions are reported as a reduction of members’ equity when
declared by the Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. The Company intends to declare
distributions o assist the members in paying personal income taxes on the income of the Company. No
provision has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for any amounts which
may be declared as distributions subsequent to December 31, 2013.

Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when each of the following
conditions have been met: an arrangement exists, shipment has been made under erms F.O.B. shipping
point and collectability is reasonably assured, which is generally upon shipment. The Company also
recognizes revenue from MREs product sales when, in accordance with a written amendment to MRE
contract terms with the major customer, the major customer has requested and agreed to purchase
product and accepts ownership and risks related thereto, but requires the Company to temporarily retain
physical possession until the major customer requests shipment and all other conditions for revenue
recognition are met applicable to bill-and-hold arrangements. The Company records estimated discounts
in the same period revenue is recagnized based on historical experience.

Shipping and handling costs: Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales.

Legal costs associated with loss contingencies: Legal costs associated with loss contingencies are ;
expensed as incurred. i



AmeriQual Group, LL.C and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Equity-based compensation: For equity-based awards, compensation expense is measured at the
grant date, based upon the fair value of the award, calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model and recognized as a component of cost of goods sold and/or selling, general and administrative
expense over the awards vesting periods.

Recent accounting pronouncements: Delayed adoption of accounting standard: In May 2003, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued accounting guidance that requires that certain
freestanding financial instruments be reported as liabilities in the balance sheet. Depending on the type of
financial instrument, it will be accounted for at sither fair value or the present value of future cash flows
determined at each balance sheet date with the change in that value reported as interest expense in the
income statement. Prior to the applicable FASB issued accounting guidance, either those financial
instruments were not required to be recognized, or if recognized, were reported in the balance sheet as
equity and changes in the value of those instruments were normally not recognized in net income. The
FASB has delayed indefinitely the effective date of this accounting guidance.

Note 2. Inventories

A summary of inventories as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, is as follows:

2013 2012
Raw materials $ 18,637,175 § 18,450,259
Worl in process 149,839 2,061,501
Finished goods 10,400,923 7,756,844
Parts 2,689,488 2,593,578

$ 29777423 $§ 30,862,182

Note 3. Property and Equipment
A summary of property and equipment as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, is as follows:

2013 2012

Land and improvements % 2061626 % 2,061,626
Buildings 12,681,011 12,658,839
Leasehold improvements ' 4,720,241 4.641,025
Machinery and equipment 56,183,092 54,689,766
Gffice equipment, software, furniture and fixtures 3,642,948 3,600,781
Construction and equipment installations in progress 3,654,405 437,574

: 82,943,323 78,087,611
|ess accumulated depreciation and amortization 56,084,708 52,405,424

§ 268586815 3 25682187

Approximately $4,099,000 of the leasehold improvements as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, were made to the AmeriQual Packaging facility which is being leased from a related party.

Depreciation expense on property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was
34,615,651 and $4,563,124, respectively.

10



AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4.

Other Intangible and Other Assets

Other intangible and other assets consisted of the following as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Definite-lived, subject to amortization:
Customer relationships
Noncompete agreements
Trademark license agreement
Debt issue and modification costs

Indefinite-lived:
Trademark

Definite-lived, subject to amortization:
Customer relationships
Noncompete agreement
Trademark license agreement
Debt issue costs

Indefinite-lived:
Trademark

Gross Carrying  Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
2013
3 5200000 $ 1778474 $ 3421526

380,000 342,500 37,500
160,000 43,333 116,667
3,967,027 2,048,343 1,918,684
9,707,027 4,212,850 5,494,377
500,000 - 500,000

$ 10,207,027 $ 4212650 $ 5,994,377

2012

$ 5200000 $ 1450140 $ 3,749,860
330,000 330,000 -
160,000 35,333 124,667
3,946,119 1,462,465 2,483,654
9,636,119 3,277,938 6,358,181
500,000 - 500,000

$ 10,136,119 § 3277938 $ 6,858,181

Amortization expense recognized on all definite-lived intangible and other assets totaled $1,299,884 and
$1,100,535 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Estimated aggregate annual amortization expense on definite-lived intangible and other assets, in future

years, is as follows:

Year Ending December 31,
2014
2015
2018
2017
2018
Thereatfter

11

Amount

$ 1,214,083
1,201,583
549,521
336,334
280,500
1,902,356

$ 5494377




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, are comprised of the following:

Compensation
Self insurance

Real and personal property and payroll taxes

Interest
Product recall
Other

Note 6. Pledged Assets, Current and Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, is as follows:

Term Loans, terms as described below

Revolving loan facility, due March 28, 2016, other terms as

descrihed below
Less current maturities

Long-term portion

2013 2012
$ 2,328,197 % 2,563,961
462,003 682,084
1,034,179 1,094,999
233,003 361,950
583,122 583,122
345,535 281,448
$ 4991039 $ 5,567,564
2013 2012
$ 76,280,959 $ 77,837,500
5,182,202 -
81,463,161 77,837,500
2,487,500 962,500
$ 78975661 $ 76,875,000

The Company has an amended and restated loan and security agreement (the Credit Facility) with a
group of banks and other paricipating lenders. The Credit Facility expires March 28, 2016, or eatlier as
defined in the Credit Facility, and is comprised of term loans A and B (collectively, the Term Loans) and a

revolving loan facility. Term loans A and B are payable in quarterly principal installments of $762,500 and

$50,000, respectively, to January 2016, with the entire unpaid balance of each loan due March 28, 2016.
The Company prepaid certain quarterly principal instaliments on term loan A in 2013 and 2012 and as of
December 31, 2013, had prepaid one quarterly principal installment. The outstanding term loan A and B
balance was $56,719,5621 and $19,561,438, respectively, as of December 31, 2013, and $58,137,500

and $18,700,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2012. The revolving loan facility includes a sub-facility
for letters of credit, not to exceed $5.0 million. There were no outstanding letters of credit as of

December 31, 2013 and 2012.

12




AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Pledged Assets, Current and Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The Company was in violation of the Credit Facility's total leverage financial covenant for the 2013 2™
quarter calculation; however this violation was waived by the lenders in an amendment made as of
Qctober 1, 2013 (the CF Amendment). The CF Amendment’s terms also (i) reduced the maximum
revolving loan facility from $35.0 million to $25.0 million, subject to a $5.0 million additional reduction for
any fiscal guarter following if the Company’s fixed charge coverage ratio is below a defined threshold and
continuing thereafter until the quarter after such ratio is greater than or equal to the defined threshold, {ii)
added an additional interest component for Payment-in-Kind (PIK) interest, the applicable margin of
which is established quarterly based upon the Company’s total leverage ratio, (i) added a mandatory
prepayments provision on revolving loans that requires cash balances in excess of $5.0 million be
remitted on such loans within three business days, and (iv} revised mandatory prepayment provisions
from excess cash flows within 120 days after year end to increase the requirement to 75% of the
Company’s excess cash flows if the Company's leverage ratio exceeds a defined threshold. PIK interest
is computed and added quarterly to the unpaid principal balance of the Company's outstanding loans.
The CF Amendment also modified certain restricted payments (as defined in the Credit facility).

The Term Loans and the revolving loan facility bear interest at a base rate or a LIBOR ratg, at the
Company’s discretion, plus a margin and effective October 1, 2013, plus a PIK margin. Interest, -
excluding PIK interest, is payable monthly on all base rate Ioans and on the earlier of the |ast day of the
applicable interest period or the quarterly interval during such interest period for LIBOR rate loans. As of -
December 31, 2013, the revolving loan facility balance was at the LIBOR rate (an effective rate of 7.25%).
As of December 31, 2013, the entire term loan A balance was at the LIBOR rate (an effective rate of
7.25%). As of December 31, 2013, $19,400,000 of the term loan B was at the LIBOR rate (an effective
rate of 10.25%} and $100,000 was at the base rate {an effective rate of 11.00%). The Company is also
required to pay a monthly unused revolving loan facility fee at the rate of 0.75% per annum, certain
monthly letter of credit fees at the rate of 0.25% per annum and certain fees and expenses otherwise as
defined in the Credit Facility.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company.

The Credit Facility includes certain covenants that generally restrict the Company's ability to change its
business conducted, incur additional indebtedness, redeem equity interests or make other distributions
(other than permitted tax distributions), make certain investments, create liens on assets, enter into
transactions with affiliates, merge or consolidate, and transfer or sell assets, in excess of defined
amounts. In addition, the Credit Facility requires the Company to comply with certain financial covenants,
including maximum fotal leverage and minimum fixed charge coverage ratios, calculated quarterly for the
trailing twelve month period, and a limitation on annual capital expenditures.

The aggregate annual maturities on the Term Loans are subject to adjustment since the Company is
required to make prepayments, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after each fiscal year-end in
amounts equal to 50% or 75%, as determined based upon the Company's leverage ratio, of its excess
cash flows, as defined in the Credit Facility. There were no excess cash flows for the year ended

Pecember 31, 2013, and therefore no accelerated maturities were applicable to 2014 maturities in the
table below.

Aggregate annual maturities required on long-term debt are due in future years as follows:

Amount
Year Ending December 31,
2014 $ 2,487,500
2015 3,250,000
2016 75,725,661
3 81,463,161

13



AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Members’ Deficit and Operating Agreement

Members’ deficit: The Company’'s members’ deficit is primarily the result of a leveraged recapitalization
and other related transactions that occurred on March 31, 2005, and included payment of cash dividends
to AQG’s members, who were the sellers of approximately 50% of their voting and non-voting
membership units to AQ Acquisition LLC (as a part of such transactions), that reduced members’ equity
by approximately $110.8 million.

Authorized, issued and outstanding voting and non-voting membership units are summarized as follows
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Issued and Issued and
Authorized Outstanding Authorized Quistanding
Voting units 45,200,000 45,200,000 45,200,000 45,200,000
Non-voting units 49,202,212 (a) 35,178,908 49,254,071 (a) 35,230,767

(a) 14,023,304 of these units were reserved for issuance upon the exercise of warrants (6,554,168 units),
options (7,095,680 units) and unissued options {373,456 units).

Certain rights, features and/or terms of voting and non-voting units, warrants issued to AmeriQual
Holding, Inc. (AQH) and AQG’s Operating Agreement are summarized below:

Voting units’ rights: In general, actions required by interest holders in respect to the business affairs of
the Company may only be taken by holders of voting units and, in any event, actions require the approval
of both AQ Acquisition LLC {which owned 50% of outstanding voting and total units as of December 31,
2013 and 2012) and AQH (which owned 50% of outstanding voting units and approximately 33% of
outstanding total units as of December 31, 2013 and 2012). AQ Acquisition LLC is an affiliate of Ares
Management |.L.C (Ares) and Ares Corporate Opportunities Fund, L.P. (ACOF).

Non-voting units conversion rights: In the event of an issuance of additional voting units after
March 31, 2005, all holders of eriginal non-voting units have a right to convert their original non-voting
units into voting units such that one original non-voting unit may be converted for each newly issued
voting unit until all such original non-veting units are converted.

Warrants issued to AQH: AQG issued certain warrants to AQH that allow the holders to purchase non-
voting units of AQG at exercise prices of $2.17 or $2.92. Warrants issued to AQH included 5,982,777
warrants, 50% of which have an exercise price of $2.17 and 50% of which have an exercise price of
$2.92. All warrants issued to AQH were outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. Such warrants
were 100% vested upon issue and are exercisable for a 10-year period from date of issue (an expiration
date of March 31, 2015).

Operating agreement: AQG operates under a fourth amendment and restatement of its Operating
Agreement (the AROA) with its members. The AROA defines, among other things, AQG’s purpose and
terms with its members including: initial capital accounts determination and maintenance thereafter,
additional capital contributions of members, allocation of profits and losses, cash flow distributions and
liguidation and dissolution distributions, transfer of ownership interests and withdrawals of members,
voling and non-voting units issued and rights, deadlock resolution actions in the event of material
disagreements among voting members, covenants with respect {o transactions with affiliates, information
rights, advisory fees and other, and General Manager powers, authority and governance. The term of the
LLC shall continue perpetually, unless its existence is sconer terminated pursuant to terms as specified in
the ARQA.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Members’ Deficit and Operating Agreement (Continued)

Under the AROA, AmeriQual Management, Inc. (AMI) was designated to serve as the General Manager

and as such controls substantially all significant governance matters decisions with respect to AQG. AMI

ts owned equally by AQH and an affiliate of Ares and AMI's Board of Directors is authorized to have eight
directors with equal representation designated by AQH and the affiliate of Ares.

Certain provisions of the AROA with respect to withdrawals of membership unit holders are as follows:

Involuntary withdrawal of or termination of employee membership unit holder: Immediately upon
the cocurrence of an involuntary withdrawal of or the cessation of employment on a full-time basis in
respect of an employee membership unit holder, AQG has the first option right, but not the obligation, to
purchase all units of such affected employee member at its fair market value, In the event AQG decides
not to purchase such units, then each of AQ Acquisition LL.C and its affiliates and AQH have the second
option right to purchase such units under the same terms as the first option.

First offer rights: At any time or from time to time, and prior to a qualified initial public offering (IPO),
AQH and non-voting members may offer to sell all or part of their membership units and AQG has the first
option right, but not the obligation, to purchase such units on detailed terms specified in an investor's
notice. In the event AQG decides not to purchase such units, then AQ Acquisition LL.C or any of its
affiliates have the second option right to purchase such units on the same terms specified in the
investor's notice. AQ Acquisition LLC may assign its right to purchase to another interest holder or a
permitted transferee, at its sole option. These rights will not apply to transfers to a permitted transferee or
transfers to which drag-along rights or liquidity rights are to be applied.

Tag-along rights: If, at any time or from time to time prior to an IPQ, either (&) a proposed transfer of
membership units by AQ Acquisition LLC or any of its affiliates to a third party or (b} a proposed transfer
by AQH or any of its affiliates or by any other unit holder beneficially owning units representing 10% or
more of all the outstanding units (on a fully diluted basis assuming exercise of warrants and options) of
AQG, each other unit holder will have the right to participate in such sale on a pro rata basis and such
other unit holders shall also have the right to participate on the same terms and conditions as granted to,
provided to, or purchased by the proposed transfercr and its affiliates. These rights will not apply to
transfers to a permitted transferee or transfers to which drag-along rights or liquidity rights are to be
applied.

Drag-along rights: If at any time, and prior to an [PO, AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates intend to
effect a change of control, AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates shall have the right to require that all other
holders of membership units participate with it on a pro rata basis in any bona fide transaction with a
person that is not an affiliate (whether through a transfer of shares or a merger, consolidation or sale of
assets) resulting in a change of control. To the extent the other unit holders participate as set forth above,
such participation must be pro rata and on the same terms and conditions as granted to, provided to or
purchased by AQ Acquisition ELC and its affiliates.

Liguidity rights: At any time after a deadlock event as defined, ACOF may cause AQG to effect an IPO
or may initiate a process to realize value in whole or in part on a private basis, whether through the sale
of units, a recapitalization or a sale to a third party of AQG as an entirety {in any such case, a Liguidity
Event). ACOF can require that all other unit holders and the General Manager of AQG participate, and all
unit holders and the General Manager of AQG shall be entitled to participate, in a Liquidity Eventon a
pro rata basis as necessary to achieve liquidity for their economic interests in AQG and on the same
terms and conditions as granted fo, provided to or purchased by AQ Acquisition LLC and its affiliates.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Major Customer

Revenue for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, includes revenue from product sales to the

following major customer, together with the trade receivables due from such customer as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012:

Percent to Total

Product Sales, Net Product Sales, Net
Customer 2013 2012 2013 2012
LLS. Government agencies $ 112,078,810 $ 175,840,696 60.2% 73.1%

Information regarding trade receivables from the major customer is as follows:

Percent to Percent to
Total Trade Total Trade
Amount Receivables Amount Receivables
Cusiomer 2013 2012
U.S. Government agencies $ 7,304114 51.1% $ 9,949,448 68.9%

The segment revenue breakdown from preduct sales to the major customer among the Company’s
reportable operating segments is as foliows:

Percent to Total

Product Sales, Net Product Sales, Net
Customer 2013 2012 2013 2012
AmeriQual Foods:
U.5. Government agencies $ 22,761,708 § 57,071,740 40.7% 66.5%
AmeriQual Packaging.
U.5. Government agencias $ 816780904 $ 109,071,735 94.7% 92.3%
TP:
.5, Government agencies $ 7639010 $ 9697221 17.3% 26.8%
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9. Lease Commitments and Total Rent Expense

AQG leases the AmeriQual Packaging facility from AQ Real Estate, LLC, a related party whose members
are owners of AQH, under a noncancelable agreement (inclusive of certain amendments) that expires
December 2014. Under the lease terms, monthly rent payments required are approximately $61,600. In
addition to monthly rent, the Company is also responsible for substantially all executory costs applicable
to the facility leased including insurance, maintenance, utilities and property taxes and is required to
make all necessary repairs.

AQG has an option to extend the lease for an additional five-year period at inflation adjusted rent.

AQG is also obligated, under other operating leases with unrelated parties, for certain warehouse facilities
and equipment under noncancelable agreements that expire in various years through February 2017 and
generally require minimum monthly rental amounts and certain warehouse facilities on a month-to-month
basis.

TP leases operations facilities and equipment from various unrelated parties under operating leases that
expire in various years through July 2018 and generally require minimum monthly rental amounts. In
addition, certain leases also require the payment of property taxes, normal maintenance and insurance
on the properties.

Total rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, was approximately $2,074,000
and $1,935,000, respectively, inclusive of rental expense (and excluding executory costs) to the related
party LLC of $738,900 for each of the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The total approximate minimum rental commitment as of December 31, 2013, required under
noncancelable leases, is due in future years as follows:

Related Unrelated
Party Parties Total
Year Ending December 31,
2014 5 738,900 % 787,200 § 1,528,100
2015 - 613,200 613,200
2016 - 141,100 141,100
2017 - 111,600 111,600
2018 - 53,100 53,100

$ 738900 $ 1,706200 $ 2445100

Note 10. Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The Company participates in a defined contribution 401(k) pension plan offering substantially all
employees a choice to elect to make contributions pursuant to salary reduction agreements upon
attaining certain age and length-of-service requirements. Employees may participate by contributing up to
a maximum of 60% of their salary, a portion of which is required to be matched by the Company. The
Company matches a participant’s elective salary deferrals at 100% of the first 3%, and 50% of the next
3% of a participant’s compensation. The Company incurred matching contributions of approximately
$653,000 and $652,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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AmeriQual Group, LLC and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11.  Equity-Based Compensation Awards

AQG has an option plan (the Plan) that permits option holders the right to purchase its non-voting units.
The Plan allows for grants of non-voting units of AQG up to a maximum of 7,469,136 units. The primary
purpose of the Plan is to provide additional performance and retention incentives to key management
employees by facilitating their purchase of non-voting units of AQG. The Plan is administered by the .
Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. Under the terms of the Plan, options may be granted
to purchase non-voting units of AQG at exercise prices set on the date an option is granted and as
determined by the Board of Directors of the General Manager of AQG. Exercise or purchase price per
unit amounts are generally approved at or above the grant date estimated fair value per unit of AQG's
members’ equity. Awards issued under the Plan vest and become exercisable in five equal annual
installments from the date of grant provided the employee is continuously employed by the employer
through the applicable vesting date, subject to 100% acceleration of vesting upon a change of ownership
control, as defined in the Plan. Options are generally exercisable for a 10-year period from date of grant.

AQG has also issued 571,390 warrants to selected key employees and a non-employee who are non-
voting members that allow the holders to purchase non-voting units of AQG, 50% of which have an
exercise price of $2.17 and 50% of which have an exercise price of $2.92. These warrants meet the
conditions for compensation awards and are included with options in the tables below. Such warrants
were 100% vested upon issue and exercisable for a 10-year period from date of issue {an expiration date
of March 31, 2015),

AQG receives no monetary consideration for the granting of equity-based awards pursuant to the Plan or
otherwise, However, it receives the optionwarrant price for each non-voting unit issued to holders upon
the exercise of the options/warrants.

The fair value of each award is estimated as a single award and recognized as compensation expense on
a straight-line basis over its vesting period.

The Company estimates the fair value of all option awards and applicable warrants issued as of the grant
date by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The use of this valuation model involves
assumptions that are judgmental and highly sensitive in the determination of compensation expense and
include the expected life of the optionfwarrant, unit price volatility, risk-free interest rate, dividend yield,
exercise price and forfeiture rate. Under FASB issued accounting guidance effective for awards issued or
maodified after December 31, 2005, forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuation and reduce expense
ratably over the vesting period. The forfeiture rate, which is estimated at a weighted average of 8% of
unvested options cutstanding, is adjusted periodically based on the extent to which actual forfeitures
differ, or are expected to differ, from the previous estimate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11. Equity-Based Compensation Awards (Continued)

A summary of options and applicable warrants at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and changes during the
years then ended is as follows:

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Units Price Units Price

QOutstanding at beginning of year 7,853,798 % 1.52 7,853,798 § 1.52
Granted - - - -
Exercised - - - -
Forfeited (186,728) 1.50 - -
Expired - - - -
Outstanding at end of year 7,667,070 1.52 7,853,798 1.52
Exercisable at end of year ‘ 7,368,304 1.53 7,144,230 1.53
Unvested at end of year 298,766 1.50 709,568 1.50

There were 373,456 non-voting units available for future employee grants at December 31, 2013, There
was no future compensation cost at December 31, 2013, related to non-vested awards not yet
recognized.

A further summary of equity-based compensation awards outstanding at December 31, 2013, was as
follows:

Options and Options and
Warrants Qutstanding Warrants Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Number Contractual Number Contractual

Qutstanding Life Exercisable Life
Exercise Prices
$0.92 2,520,834 1.25 2,520,834 1.25
$1.92 2,520,834 125 2,520,834 1.25
$2.17 285,695 125 285,695 1.25
$2.92 285,695 1.25 285,695 1.25
$1.00 1,027,006 477 877,623 473
$2.00 1,027,006 477 877,623 473
7,687,070 7,368,304
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Note 12. Related-Party Transactions
Building Rent Expense

AQ Real Estate, LLC owns a building which is leased to AQG. Reference should be made to Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements for those lease arrangements, commitments and total rent expense
applicable thereto.

Advisory Fees

AQG has certain agreements with AQH and an affiliate of Ares the terms of which require each party to
provide advisory and consulting services to AQG for $250,000 annually, payable quarterly in advance.
Effective October 1, 2013, these agreements were amended whereby the services and related quarterly
payments were waived from that date until such time that the Company’s debt obligations owed under its
primary credit facility are paid in full. In addition, the term of the agreement was extended 5 years,
expiring March 31, 2020. The Company incurred $375,000 and $500,000 in advisory and consulting
services expense for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company has future commitments as of December 31, 2013, under these agreements for $375,000
in 2016, $500,000 annuaily for the years 2017 through 2019 and $125,000 for 2020.

Note 13,  Other Commitiments and Contingencies

Commitments

in order to complete the equipment installations in progress, the Company was committed to vendors for
equipment purchases of approximately $2,120,000 as of December 31, 2013. These commitments are
expected to be financed by cash flows from operating activities.

Contingencies, including legal proceedings and product liabifity matters

In May 2011, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) first warned against using a food thickening
agent sold under the product brand name SimplyThick (ST). TP was one of certain companies that
manufactured ST for a product design, marketing and distribution company located in Missouri (the
Customer). The FDA conducted an inspection of TP’s manufacturing facilities located near Aflanta, GA
from May 23 to June 3, 2011, and discovered that TP had failed to file with the FDA a scheduled process
designed to ensure that vegetative cells of microorganisms (harmful bacteria) of possible public health
significance are destroyed during the manufacturing process. Upon notification of the FDA observations,
TP veluntarily ceased producing and shipping ST product and, on June 4, 2011, the Customer initiated a
voluntary recall of ST manufactured by TP. Shortly after the FDA inspection observations were issued, TP
issued responses to the FDA specifying that all applicable ST product (for which production had resumed
after the voluntary recall) was produced following filed and accepted process parameters as accepted by
the FDA. In June of 2012, TP ceased all manufacture of ST. In September of 2012, based on an
extensive review of reports of health problems potentially tied to ST, the FDA updated its May 2011
warning regarding ST. The 2012 update (i) expanded FDA’s recommendation against consumption of ST
to include infants of any age (ii} reported that identified instances of a rare intestinal-tissue disease known
as necrotizing enterocolitis (NEC) among children born at hospitals using the ST product had increased to
twenty-two, including seven deaths and (jii) concluded that further study is warranted to establish if there
is a link between NEC and ST and other thickening agents.
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Note 13.  Other Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, the Company has been
served with notice of approximately 30 claims relating to alleged damages resulting from the alleged
consumption of ST. Of these claims, 7 claims have been settled on behalf of the Company, and pursuant
to the settlements, both TP and AQG have been dismissed, with prejudice in all instances. It is possible
that additional claimants will be identified in the future as the statute of limitations has not expired for all
possible claims in all jurisdictions. In the case of those claims now in litigation, the recovery sought
includes money damages for personal injuries and/or death resulting from the consumption of claimed
defective or tainted ST. The various legal theories and/or claims asserted against the Company include:
(1) strict product liability - manufacturing defect; (2} strict product liability - failure to warn; (3) strict product
liability - design defect; (4) negligence; (5) negligence per se; (6) gross negligence; (7) breach of express
and implied warranty; (8) negligent misrepresentation; (9) negligent infliction of emotional distress; (10)
wrongful death; (11) loss of consortium; (12} Survival Act; (13) compensatory, punitive and/or unspecified
damages; and (14) violation of various other state-specific consumer protection laws and/or statutes. The
lawsuits and threatened fitigation, in each case, name several of the following defendants: TP; AQG; the
Customer; the principal owner of the Customer; the former owner and operator of the TP manufacturing
facility; the third party distributors of ST; and the hospital medical providers (the Defendants).

The Company plans to contest all matters in controversy in each of the lawsuits and incidents of
threatened litigation. The Company has taken steps to preserve any rights it may have for insurance
recovery, for indemnification by other third parties or for contribution by other named Defendants.
According to external legal counsel, based on their investigation through the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued, they (i) have not identified any direct evidence linking
any bacterial contamination in any of the ST products manufactured or processed by TP or AQG to those
which were allegedly consumed by any of the claimants, and {ii} are not aware of any established causal
connection between any alleged bacterial contamination brought about by the processing of ST and the
subsequent onset of NEC. The Company’s management and external legal counsel believe it is
premature to evaluate the likelihood of a favorable or unfavorable outcome in any case alleging
consumption of ST or to estimate the amount or range of potential loss in the event of an unfavorable
outcome. Once discovery is completed, external legal counsel has indicated they will be in a better
position to estimate the likelihood of success on the merits of the defense and/or the amount or range of
potential loss, although it is generally not feasible to predict the ultimate outcome of litigation.

On or about May 30, 2013, the Customer filed a complaint against the Company and the former owner
and operator of the TP manufacturing facility. The Customer asserts claims against defendants for
breach of express warranty and breach of implied warranty of fitness and seeks damages for lost profits,
costs associated with the recall of ST and lost goodwill. The Company has asserted counterclaims
against the Customer for negligence, breach of contract and constructive fraud for the Customer's failure
to disclose material information relating to the ST product. The Company has also asserted a cross-claim
against the former owner and operator of the TP manufacturing facility for contractual indemnity pursuant
to a 2008 Asset Purchase Agreement between TP and the former owner and operator of the TP
manufacturing facility, and for contribution to any judgment awarded to the Customer. The Company
plans to contest all matters in controversy in this lawsuit and to vigerously pursue the counterclaims and
cross-claim. As discovery has not yet commenced, the Company’s management and external legal
counsel believe it is premature to evaluate the likelihood of a favorable or unfavorable outcome in this
case or to estimate the amount or range of potential loss in the event of an unfavorable outcome.

The damages amounts claimed in the pending lawsuits referred to above are significant, and other claims
made or unknown claims that may be asserted in the future related to ST product liability matters may
also be significant and, in the event of an unfavorable outcome, may have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows,
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Note 13.  Other Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The Company is involved in certain other legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. In the opinion of management, the outcome of such other proceedings and litigation will not
materially affect the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The Company self-insures a portion of the risks associated with medical expenses incurred by its

employees and their dependents. The Company has secondary insurance coverage for individual claims

in excess of $100,000 and for aggregate annual claims exceeding an estimated contract maximum,

approximately $5.5 miilion for the policy year ending September 30, 2014. Claims are expensed as

incurred. In establishing accruals for claims incurred and reported and estimates for claims incurred but ;
not yet reported, the Company uses factors such as historical experience, known trends and third-party
administrator estimates to determine the appropriate amounts to report as accrued liabilities. Changes in i
the perceived severity of unreported claims, significant changes in medical costs and legislative changes

affecting the administration of the Company’s plan could significantly impact the determination of

appropriate accruals. Amounts charged to expense for such claims were approximately $3,345,000 and

$4,138,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

A loss or substantial negative revision of any U.8. Government sales contract could adversely affect the
Company’s results of operations and cash flows and a loss or substantial negative revision to the
Company’s MRE assembly or Unitized Group Rations-A contracts would have a material adverse
consequence to the Company’s results of operations and cash flows.

In November 2011, the Company was awarded a new MRE contract that expires in November 2016. To
date the U.S. Government {Department of Defense), through its Defense Logistics Agency - Troop
Support (DLATS), has issued delivery orders for minimum contract quantities for calendar year 2014.
The new MRE contract requires annual re-pricing in conjunction with the allocation of delivery orders for
the calendar year minimum contract quantities.

Note 14. Segment Information

The Company’s three reportable segments offer different products and services and consist of AmeriQual
Foods (Foods), AmeriQual Packaging (Packaging) and TP. The Foods segment processes (i) shelf stable
food products in microwavable bowls, trays and pouches which are sold to commercial customers,

(i) shelf stable pouches which are sold to the Packaging segment, (iii) high-pressure processed food
products which are sold to commercial customers and (iv) perishable UGR-A modules which are sold to a
governmental customer. The Packaging segment assembles food and other products into packages
which are primarily sold to governmental, non-governmental relief organization and commercial
customers. The TP segment processes shelf stable food products in cups and pouches that are sold to
commercial customers, a governmental customer and to the Packaging segment, The accounting
policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Inter-segment transactions have been eliminated.

Inter-segment transactions are recorded at prices typically consistent with sales prices to external
customers.

The Company evaluates segment profit based on operating income.,
The Company’s two main product lines are military rations and commercial branded products. For the

years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, approximately 60% and 71%, respectively, of the Company's
net product sales were military products and the remainder was commercial products.
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Note 14. Segment Information {Continued)
The Company's sales by product line for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, are as follows:

2013 2012
Military products $ 110,980,170 $ 169,823,458
Commercial products 75,291,384 70,585,950

$ 186,271,554 § 240,409,408

Reportable operating segment financial information as of or for the years ended Dacember 31, 2013 and
2012, is as follows:

Product Inter-segment Operating Depreciation/ Capital

Operating Segments Sales, net Revenue Income (Loss) Amortization Total Assets Expenditures
AmeriQual Foods

2013 $ 55,802,754 § 25,962,003 $ (5,305,297y § 4,415449 $ 58404647 $§ 4,729,719

2012 85,834,454 31,827,691 633,112 3,629,187 54,665,922 3,476,668
AmeriQual Packaging

2013 86,220,075 - 13,397,127 451,214 144,537 856 177,461

2012 118,118,363 - 15,857,621 626,150 135,809,464 205,334
TP

2013 44,148,725 1,584,484 331,701 1,038,872 20,963,716 1,011,971

2012 36,456,591 2,480,009 (3,027,144) 1,108,322 17,505,889 586,780
Eliminations

2013 - {27,546,577) 15,8615 - (134,527 665) -

2012 - (34,307,700) 139,312 - (117,702,936) -
Tetal Company

2013 186,271,554 - 8,439,046 5,915,535 89,378,554 5,919,151

2012 240,409,408 - 13,602,901 5,663,659 90,278,339 4,268,782

Note 15.  Fair Value Disclosures

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including trade receivables and accounts payable are
estimated to approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of
term loans and revolving loan facilities debt is estimated to approximate fair value because the interest
rates fluctuate with market rates or are based on estimated current rates offered to the Company for debt
with similar terms and maturities.

As-of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company did not have any financial or non-financial assets or
liabilities that were reported at fair value.
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Mote 16. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2013, as to their potential
impact to the consolidated financial statements through March 21, 2014, which represents the date the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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NOVATION AGREEMENT

This Novation Agreement {Agreement) is entered Into by the Contractor; the Department of Public Safety (DPS); and

Texas Division  of Emergency Management, a part of the Texas A&M University System (TDEM TAMUS).

L Background

On 10/31/2014, DPS entered Into contract no, 405-15-P001290 (Contract) with AMERIQUAL GROUP LLC (Contractor).
H.B. 2794 (86th Leg., R.S.) requires DPS to assign the Contract to TDEM TAMUS.

. Agreement

a. Effectlve September 1, 2019, DPS assigns all its rights, title, and interest, and delegates all its obligations,
responsibliities, and duties, in and to the Contract to TDEM TAMUS, TDEM TAMUS accepts the assignment of all
of DPS's obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Contract and all of DPS’s rights, title, and interest in

and to the Contract to TDEM TAMUS.

Except as otherwlse provided in this Agreement, all terms and conditlans of the Contract, including payment
provisions, remain in effect, Insofar as rights and obligations under the Contract from the date of execution of
this Agreement are concerned, references to DPS in the Contract are deemed replaced with references to TDEM

TAMUS.

ll,  Signatories

The parties execute this Agreement In tﬁeir stated capacities with authority to bind their organizations on the date noted.

Texas Division  of Emergency Management

Department of Public Safety of the State of Texas
through t exas A&M University System

By:M Gt — B

Steven C, McCraw @ Name: Billy'Hamilton
Title: Deputy Chancellor and Chief Financial Officer

Director ~

Date: %ZJ///',? Date: oV/}Z/,/?

Contractor: AMERIQUAL GROUP LLC

By: ar %0
v

I
Name: CL/ANA LIS

Title: DIRECTOR GOVERNMENT SALES

Date: 8/12/2019
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